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^  STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-052-3345 ExL 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 16. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral
Health, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital (VC#177160), Lebanon, NH to provide integrated obstetric, primary care,
pediatric. and Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) for pregnant and postpartum women
with opioid use disorder, by increasing the price limitation by $600,000 from $5,455,413 to
$6,055,413 and by extending the completion date from September 29, 2021, to June 30,
2022 effective upon Govemor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Govemor and Council on January 24, 2018,
item #8. It was subsequently amended with Govemor and Council approval on October 2,
2019, item #16A, and most recently amended with Govemor and Council approval on
February 3, 2021, Item IDA.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2022, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL
SERVICES, STR GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92052559

$862,630 $0 $862,630

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92052559

$1,892,813 $0 $1,892,813

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92052559

$600,000 $0 $600,000

Subtotal $3,355,442 $0 $3,355,443

Tht DtportrMnt of Health and Human Seruieea'Miaeion is to Join communiliet and families
in prouiding opportunities for citieens to achieve health and independence.
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State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040

$603,472 $0 $603,472

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057046

$1,196,498 $0 $1,196,498

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057046

$300,000 $0 $300,000

2022 074-500585

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Rel

92057048

$0 $600,000 600,000

Subtotal $2,099,970 $600,000 $2,699,970

Total $5,455,413 $600,000 $6,055,413

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and there are no renewal options available. This contract was originally
awarded in January 2018 through a competitive solicitation process. The Contractor was the only
respondent to the Request for Proposals published on the Department's website. Subsequently,
the Department has contracted with the Bi-State Primary Care Association to ensure wider access
to these services through the Association's Federally Qualified Health Centers, as approved on
September 15, 2021, Item #16J.

The Department seeks to continue services provided by the current vendor for several
reasons. First, the Department wants to ensure that continuity of care is maintained for clients and
critical services are not disrupted. Second, the Department does not believe putting this service
back out to bid would result in additional competition or lower costs Third, the vendor is responsible
for overseeing five (5) sites across the state and has the infrastructure to perform the function.

State Opioid Response funding has been awarded on an annual basis since its inception.
This puts the Department in the position of having to go through the Accept and Expend process
prior to entering into procurements and contracting, which tightens the timeline within which to
continue critical services. Despite the uncertainty of continued federal funding, the Department
intends to conduct a procurement process for these services so there is no lapse between this
contract and subsequent ones.

The purpose of this request is to continue serving pregnant and postpartum women
with opioid use disorder without interruption at five (5) sites. The Contractor will continue
providing integrated obstetric care, primary care, pediatric care and Medication Assisted
Treatment for pregnant and postpartum women with opioid use disorder and any co-
occurring mental health disorders. Medication Assisted Treatment services will continue to
be integrated with prenatal and postpartum care, and will continue to be accompanied by
parenting support and education at five (5) sites across New Hampshire, including sites in
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the high need areas of Belknap and Coos Counties where opioid use disorder treatment
services are limited.

Approximately 1300 individuals will be served from September 30. 2021, to June 30,
2022.

The State continues to need population-specific Substance Use Disorder Treatment
and Recovery Support Services for pregnant women due to a rise in Neonatal Abstinence
Syndrome in infants bom to mothers who have used opioids. Babies with this syndrome
experience symptoms of drug withdrawal and require special treatment prior to leaving the
hospital. It is critical that providers offer integration of sen/ices; approaches to meet individual
client needs; and the means to maximize funding to meet the demand for these .specific
services. The services provided by the Contractor are comprehensive and focus not only on
the mother's recovery, but also on ensuring that the infant is receiving the nectary health
and social supports and services to mitigate risk associated with maternal opioid use.

The Department will monitor contracted services by reviewing ad hoc reports, periodic
surveys and other data deemed rtecessary, monthly reports and the final report sulimitted by
the Contractor.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, pregnant, post-partum,
and parenting women in New Hampshire diagnosed with opioid use disorder, and their infants
and children, may not receive the comprehensive integrated services and supports
necessary to overcome their addiction, which could negatively affect their health and the
health of their infants and children.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing #93.788, FAIN #H79TI083326

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully,
^"^OocuSlgnad by:

1  A.
On behalf of Lori^^C^iSniette

Commissioner



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

wvvw.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

Lori A. Shibinette, Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinette:

September 16, 2021

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend a contract with Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, of
Lebanon NH as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2018-047C.

This is a request to amend a current contract with Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital to
continue serving pregnant and postpartum women with opioid use disorder without
interruption at five (5) sites.

The price limitation will increase by $600,000, from $5,455,413 to $6,055,413, and the
completion date will extend from September 29, 2021 to June 30, 2022 effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/ik

DoIT #2018-0470

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant and Postpartum Women
contract is by and between the State of-New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 24, 2018, Item #8, as amended on October 2, 2019, Item # 16A, and as amended on February
3, 2021, Item #1 OA, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$6,055,413.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 7, State Opioid Response (SOR)
Grant Standards, Subsection 7.11, to read:

7.11. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana for treatment using marijuana. The Contractor shall ensure:

7.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (ODD).

7.11.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that provides or
permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental health
disorders.

7.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOD) that receive SOR funding.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 7, State Opioid Response (SOR)
Grant Standards, by adding Subsection 7.13, to read:

7.13. The Contractor shall provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the Department for
approval prior to implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes:

•7.13.1 Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyi strips;

7.13.2 Distribution methods and frequency; and

7.13.3 Other key data, as requested by the Department.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 SOR II Budget.

EJM

RFP-2018-BDAS-05-INTEG-A03 Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Contractor Initials
9/8/2021

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 5 Date
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6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, to
read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation In a form
satisfactory to the State by the twenty-fifth (25th) working day of the following month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department in
order to initiate payment. Invoices shall be net any other revenue received towards the
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to;

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or-provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an allowable
expense in the FOA. Grant funds may be used for light
snacks, not to exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for
clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not need

to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon
request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

EJM

RFP-2018-BOAS-05-INTEG-A03 Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 5 Date 9/8/2021
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5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

7. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

EJM

RFP-2018-BDAS-05-INTEG-A03 Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Contractor Initials
9/8/2021

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 5 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

^"DoeuStgn«d by:

9/9/2021
Date S. FOX

Title. Director

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

9/8/2021 Edward Merrens

Date Name; Edward Merrens

Chief Clinical officer

RFP-2018-BDAS-05-INTEG-01-A03 Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OoetiSigMd by:

9/10/2021

Qate L-^ro®3E3oo446hristopher Marshall
Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

RFP-2018-BDAS-05-INTEG-01-A03 Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

A-S-1.0 Page 5 of 5
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that MARY HITCHCOCK

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

August 07, 1889. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is

in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 68517

Certificate Number: 0005357410

%

iu

e ■9

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26th day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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Dartmouth-Hitchcocls

DarrmoulK-Hilchcock

Dartmbulh-Hitchcock Medico! Center

I AAedico) Conlor Drive

lebqnon, NH 03756

Darlinoulh-H[lchcock.oig

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORTrY

I, Edward H. Stansfield. Ill, of Dartmouth-HitchcQck Clinic and Marv Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, do hereby certify that:

1. 1 am the duly eiwted Chair of the Board of Trustees of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock

Memorial Hospital;

2. The followirig is a true and accurate excerpt from tlie December T"*, 2012 Bylaws of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic

and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital:

ARTICLE 1 - Section A. Fiduciary Duty. Stewardship over Cor^rate Assets

"In exercising this (fiduciary] duty, the Board may, consistent with the Corporation's Articles of Agreement and

these Bylaws, delegate authority to the Board of Governors, Board Committees and various officers the right to

give input with respect to issues and strategies, incur indebtedness, make expenditures, enter into contracts and.

agreements and take such other binding actions on behalf of the Corporation as may be necessary or desirable."

3. Article I - Section A, as referenced above, provides authority for the chief officers, including the Chief Executive

Officer, the Chief Clinical Officer, and other officers, of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock

Memorial Hospital to sign and deliver, either individually or collectively, on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic

and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital.

4. Edward J. MerfensVMD is the Chief Clinical Officer of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial

Hospital and therefore has the authority to enter into contracts and agreements on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Chair of the Board of Trustees of Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Clinic and Marv Hitchcock Memorial Hospital this

Edwafd H.^tafitfi€l3, III, Bt^rd Chair

STATE OF NH

COUNTV OFGRAFTON

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this j7 day of . by Edward Stansfield.

.WW- \ ̂  _-
:  5 ; s Notary Public
=  : = Mv Commission Expires:
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DATE: August 30, 2021

COMPANY AFFORDING COVERAGE

Hamden Assurance Risk Retention Group, Inc.
P.O. Box 1687

30 Main Street, Suite 330
Burlington, VT 05401
INSURED

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
One Medical Center Drive

Lebanon, NH 03756
(603)653-6850

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only
and confers no rights upon the Certificate Holder. This
Certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage
afforded by the policies below.

COVERAGES

The Policy listed below has been issued to the Named Insured above for the Policy Period notwithstanding any
requirement, term or condition of any contract or other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued. The
insurance afforded by the policy is subject to all the terms, exclusions and conditions of the policy. Limits shown may
have been reduced by paid claims.

TYPE OF

INSURANCE
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY

EFFECTIVE

DATE

POLICY

EXPIRATION

DATE

LIMITS

GENERAL

LIABILITY

0002021-A 7/1/2021 7/1/2022 BACH

OCCURRENCE
$1,000,000

DAMAGE TO

RENTED

PREMISES

$1,000,000

X CLAIMS MADE

MEDICAL

EXPENSES
N/A

PERSONAL &

ADV INJURY
$1,000,000

OCCURRENCE GENERAL

AGGREGATE

OTHER PRODUCTS-

COMP/OP AGG
$1,000,000

PROFESSIONAL

LIABILITY

0002021-A 07/01/2021 07/01/2022 EACH CLAIM $1,000,000

CLAIMS MADE
X ANNUAL

AGGREGATE
$3,000,000

OCCURENCE

OTHER

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES/SPECIAL ITEMS (LIMITS MAY BE SUBJECT TO RETENTIONS)

Certificate is issued as evidence of insurance.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

NH Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

CANCELLATION

Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date
thereof, the issuing company will endeavor to mail 30 DAYS written notice to the
certificate holder named below, but failure to mail such notice shall impose no
obligation or liability of any kind upon the company, its agents or representatives.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
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A.COKO- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE nuTT eiwnnrnnh

en0/2021

TWS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A HATTER OF WFORMATIOM ONLY AND CONFERS HO RIGHTS UPON THE CBITIHCATE HOLDER. TWS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATTVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. TWS CERTTRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT a)NSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETVlfEEN THE ISSUING {NSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AMD THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER

IMPORTANT; If the certifieate holder is an AOOJTV)NAL INSURED, the policyfws] nuist have AOOmONAL INSURED provisions or tie endorsed.
If SUBROGATX)N IS WAIVED, subject to the tenns and oond^ns of the policy, certain polides may require an endofsemenL A statement on
this cectilicate doK not confer righte to the certSicate holder in lieu of such erHtorsefflent|s|L

„,^LkrenseiH7BM«
HUB Intmatiooai New England
275 US Routie 1
Cumliieriand Foreside. ME 04110

Angela CdumtMS

S?!LMi: f7741 233^04 ECS-H*
SitfMbif Anaela.Cohant}usC^t>intefTiattonal.com

MMIRBVtl AmJRlMMS COVBlAee HMC«

nuufWRA-Safety National Casuatty Corporation 15105

POURED

Dartmouth-ffitchoock Health

1 UedicM Center Dr.

Lebanon. NH 03756

umiHTRBr

MKHWRC:

MUUHPID:

imUXEREl

oBuietP:

COVERAGFS CBRTIHCATE NUMBER: REVISION MUI«at

TWS tS TO CBTTIFY THAT THE POUaES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO "He INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERICO
DOJICATED. MOTWrmSTiWDING ANY RGQUREMENT. TERM OR CONOfTIOM OP ANY CONTRACT OR OTHB* DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO W«CH THIS
CCRTmCATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE APPORDBD BY THE POUCIES OCSCRJBH) MBIEIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOfTlONS OP SUCH POUCIES. UMHS SHOWN MAY H4VE BEEN Rg)UCg> BY PAP CLAIMS.

M*n

LIB. TTFC OP MKRAMCE
ADOL

jcsai pojcYNinBa*
KUCVW POUCYCCP

COMEXCUL OCNSMl. UAOUTY

^CLNM&MACe I I OCXLR
EAWOOaWgWCE

VMACE TO RENTED
woasga iB» occuwct)

UED EXP tN<yone pgCT)

PERSOW-AAPVIHIUIY

crwvAOORHltiE Liwrr APEUEB PER

pouctI I I toe ffTOOUCTS-OO^PtOPAOO

AUTOMOOLE UABEJTV
00MBME08M0LE LMT

ANT AUTO

OWKEO
AUTOS OM.Y

gOCDULEO
AUTCe

PCOLTOUUTTiPtf peraoni

BCOK-YPUURYIPg-KOaera

TfinniAii^B

I Iflft

coon

OLAsyewAsoe

Ei^OCOl^CNK

jflgSESSIB.

RETOVnONI

IWOftlBIt eOMPBtSATlDN
A»«> EaPLOYBtr UABirr

ANYPHUmiLTaWCTCTBganiVE
— EXQJLCED?

T / M

□
AGC406S1SS 7M/2Q21 7H/2Q22

OTH-

EI_E>OHJ^CCgNT
1,000.000

EL DtSEASE • EA EMPLOYS 1.000.000
If fd dBS066 tfittr
PEaCWPTXTNOFCPgRATTONSPtfe* EHKEAffi-POLICY LiWTT 1,000.000

OESCWPnOWOFUmmiCJWmjOCATOOTWWCLES MCOHOtt.
EwdeiKe of Woikm Cocnpmsition ctwcnge for

Cheshire MkScM Center
Dsrtmouth-HitEhcodi HeaBh
llay Hrtchcoct Menwriai Hoytal
Afice Peck Dw MecnoriM HospitM
New London Hospital Association
HL Ascuktey Ho^iitaJ and Heottti Center

>fcweeiin

CERTinCATE HOLDER rAMTFI I ATinw

NH OHHS
129 Pteasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OP THE ABOVE OESOttSS) POUOES BE CANCELLB) BEFORE
THE EXPIRAT1GN DATE TKERBOP. NOTICE WILL BE DBJVEREO M
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVBIONS.

MJTHQRBED RWrCSarTATItfE

ACORD25(201Gra3)
TheACORD name and logo are

e 198$-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. AB rights reserved.
r«(psteted mario of ACOftD
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Dartmouth-Hitchcock (D-H) is comprised of the Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

and several clinics throughout New Hampshire and Vermont. Our physicians and

researchers collaborate with Geisel School of Medicine scientists and faculty as well as

other leading health care organizations to develop new treatments at the cutting edge of

medical practice bringing the latest medical discoveries to the patient.

Dartmouth-Hitchcock includes:

S3

i

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center (DHMC)

DHMC is the state's only academic medical center, and the only Level t Adult and Pediatric

Trauma Center in New Hampshire. The Dartmouth-Hitchcock Advanced Response Team

(DHART). based in Lebanon and Manchester, provides ground and air medical

transportation to communities throughout northern New England. DHMC was named in

2020 as the #1 hospital in New Hampshire by U.S. News &■ World Report
(https://heaith.usnews.com/best-hospitais/area/nh), and recognized for high performance in nine
clinical specialties, procedures, and conditions.
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The Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic

The Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic is a network of primary and speciality care physicians

located throughout New Hampshire and Vermont, with major community group practices

in Lebanon. Concord. Manchester. Nashua, and Keene. NH. and Bennington, VT.

r

(ASera

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital is New Hampshire's only teaching hospital, with an

inpatient capacity of 396 beds.

Children's Hospital at Dartmouth-Hitchcock (CHaD)

CHaD is New Hampshire's only children's hospital and a member of the Children's

Hospital Association, providing advanced pediatric inpatient. outpatient and surgical

services at DHMC in Lebanon as well as in Bedford, Concord, Manchester, Nashua, and

Dover. NH.
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Norris Cotton Cancer Center (NCCC)

NCCC is a designated Comprehensive Cancer Center by the National Cancer Institute,

and is one of the premier facilities for cancer treatment, research, prevention, and

education. Interdisciplinary teams, devoted to the treatment of specific types of cancer,

work together to care for patients of all ages in Lebanon, Manchester, Nashua, Keene, NH,

and St. Johnsbury, VT.

Our mission, vision, and values

Our mission

We advance health through research, education, clinical practice and community

partnerships, providing each person the best care, in the right place, at the right time,

every time.

Our vision

Achieve the healthiest population possible, leading the transformation of health care in

our region and setting the standard for our nation.

Our values

• Respect

•  Integrity

• Commitment

• Transparency

• Trust

• Teamwork

• Stewardship

• Community
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees of

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and subsidiaries

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and
its subsidiaries (the "Health System'), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and of
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider intemal control relevant to the Health
System's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements In order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, lOi Seaport Boulevard, Suite 500, Boston, MA 02210
T: (617) 530 5000, F: (617) 530 5001, wAw.pwc.com/us
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and its subsidiaries as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations, changes in net assets and their cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Health System changed the manner
in which it accounts for revenue recognition from contracts with customers and the manner in which it
presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its financial statements as a not-for-profit entity in 2019.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The consolidating information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves
and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The consolidating information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to
present the financial position, results of its operations, changes in net assets and cash flows of the
individual companies and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the financial position, results of operations, changes in net assets and cash
flows of the individual companies.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30,
2019 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
The information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated

• financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
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our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 26.
2019 on our consideration of the Health System's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters for the year ended June 30, 2019. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Health System's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Boston, Massachusetts

November 26, 2019
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  143,587 $ 200,169

Patient accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectible of
$132,228 at June 30. 2018 (Note 4) 221,125 219,228

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 95,495 97,502

Total current assets 460.207 516,899

Assets limited as to use (Notes 5 and 7) 876,249 706,124

Other investments for restricted activities (Notes 5 and 7) 134.119 130,896

Property, plant, and equipment, net (Note 6) 621,256 607,321

Other assets 124,471 108,785

Total assets $  2,216,302 $ 2,070,025

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current iiabilities

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 10) $  10,914 $ 3,464

Current portion of liability for pension and other postretirement
plan benefits (Note 11) 3,468 3,311

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Dlote 13) 113,817 95,753

Accrued compensation and related benefits 128,408 125,576

Estimated third-party settlements (Note 4) 41,570 41,141

Total current liabilities 298,177 269,245

Long-term debt, excluding current portion (Note 10) 752,180 752,975

Insurance deposits and related liabilities (Note 12) 58,407 55,516

Liability for pension and other postretirement plan benefits,
excluding current portion (Note 11) 281,009 242,227

Other liabilities 124,136 88,127

Total liabilities 1,513,909 1,408,090

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4, 6, 7,10, and 13)

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions (Note 9) 559,933 524,102

Net assets with donor restrictions (Notes 8 and 9) 142,460 137,833

Total net assets 702,393 661,935

Total liabilities and net assets $  2,216,302 $ 2,070,025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

4
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Operating revenue and other support
Patient service revenue $  1,999,323 $ 1,899,095

Provision for bad debts {Notes 2 and 4) - 47,367

Net patient service revenue 1,999,323 1,851,728

Contracted revenue (Note 2) 75,017 54,969

Other operating revenue (Notes 2 and 5) .210,698 148,946

Net assets released from restrictions 14,105 13,461

Total operating revenue and other support 2,299,143 2,069,104

Operating expenses

Salaries 1,062,551 989,263

Employee benefits 251,591 229,683

Medical supplies and medications 407,875 340,031

Purchased services and other 323,435 291,372

Medicaid enhancement tax (Note 4) 70,061 67,692

Depreciation and amortization 88,414 84,778

Interest (Note 10) 25,514 18,822

Total operating expenses 2,229,441 2,021,641

Operating income (loss) 69,702 47.463

Nonoperating gains (losses)
Investment income, net (Note 5) 40,052 40,387

Other losses, net (Note 10) (3,562) (2,908)

Loss on early extinguishment of debt (87) (14,214)

Loss due to swap termination - (14,247)

Total nonoperating gains, net 36,403 9,018

Excess of revenue over expenses $  106,105 $ 56,481
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses
Net assets released from restrictions

Change in funded status of pension and other postretirement
benefits {Note 11)
Other changes in net assets
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps (Note 10)
Change in interest rate swap effectiveness

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

$ 106,105 $ 56,4

Net assets with donor restrictions

Gifts, bequests, sponsored activities
Investment income, net

Net assets released from restrictions

Contribution of assets with donor restrictions from acquisition

Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets

Beginning of year

End of year

81

1,769 16,313

(72,043) 8,254

- (185)
- 4,190
- 14,102

35,831 99,155

17,436 14,171

2,682 4,354

(15,874) (29,774)

383 -

4,627 (11.249)

40,458 87,906

661,935 574,029

$ 702,393 $ 661,935

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

6
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 40.458 $ 87,906

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating and nonoperating activities
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps - (4.897)

Provision for bad debt -
47.367

Depreciation and amortization 88,770 84.947

Change in funded status of pension and other postretiremen! benefits 72,043 (8,254)

(Gain) on disposal of fixed assets (1.101) (125)

Net realized gains and change in net unrealized gains on investments (31,397) (45,701)

Restricted contributions and investment earnings (2,292) (5,460)

Proceeds from sales of securities 1,167 1,531

Loss from debt defeasance -
14,214

Changes in assets and liabilities
Patient accounts receivable, net (1.803) (29,335)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,149 (8,299)

Other assets, net (9,052) (11,665)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17.898 19,693

Accrued compensation and related benefits 2,335 10,665

Estimated third-party settlements 429 13,708

insurance deposits and related liabilities 2,378 4,556

Liability for pension and other postretirement benefits (33,104) (32,399)

Other liabilities 12,267 (2,421)

Net cash provided by operating and nonoperating activities 161,145 136,031

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (82,279) (77.598)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment 2,188 -

Purchases of investments (361,407) (279.407)

Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments 219,996 273.409

Cash received through acquisition 4,863 -

Net cash used in investing activities (216,639) (83,596)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from tine of credit 30,000 50,000

Payments on line of credit (30,000) (50,000)

Repayment of long-term debt (29,490) (413,104)

Proceeds from issuance of debt 26,338 507,791

Repayment of interest rate swap • (16,019)

Payment of debt issuance costs (228) (4.892)

Restricted contributions and investment earnings 2,292 5,460

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,088) 79,236

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (56,582) 131,671

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 200,169 68,498

End of year $ 143,587 S 200,169

Supplemental cash flow Information
Interest paid $ 23,977 $ 18,029

Net assets acquired as part of acquisition, net of cash aquired (4,863) -

Noncash proceeds from issuance of debt -
137,281

Use of noncash proceeds to refinance debt -
137,281

Construction in progress included in accounts payable and
accrued expenses 1,546 1,569

Equipment acquired through issuance of capital lease obligations -
17,670

Donated securities 1,167 1,531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

7
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Organization and Community Benefit Commitments

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health (D-HH) serves as the sole corporate member of the following entities:
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Subsidiaries (DHC), Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital and
Subsidiaries (MHMH), {DHC and MHMH together are referred to as D-H), The New London
Hospital Association and Subsidiaries (NLH), Windsor Hospital Corporation (d/b/a Mt. Ascutney
Hospital and Health Center) and Subsidiaries (MAHHC), Cheshire Medical Center and Subsidiaries
(Cheshire). Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital and, effective July 1, 2018, Subsidiary (APD), and
the Visiting Nurse and Hospice for Vermont and New Hampshire and Subsidiaries (VNH). The
"Health System" consists of D-HH, its members and their subsidiaries.

The Health System currently operates one tertiary, one community and three acute care
(critical access) hospitals in New Hampshire"(NH) and Vermont (VT). One facility provides
inpatient and outpatient rehabilitation medicine and long-term care. The Health System also
operates multiple physician practices, a nursing home, a continuing care retirement community,
and a home health and hospice service. The Health System operates a graduate level program for
health professions and is the principal teaching affiliate of the Geisel School of Medicine (Geisel), a
component of Dartmouth College.

D-HH, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic, Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital. The New London Hospital
Association. Cheshire Medical Center, and Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital are NH not-for-profit
corporations exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code (IRC). Windsor Hospital Corporation and the Visiting Nurse and Hospice of VT and NH are
VT not-for-profit corporations exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of
the IRC.

Community Benefits
The mission of the Health System is to advance health through clinical practice and community
partnerships, research and education, providing each person the best care. In the right place, at the
right time, every time.

Consistent with this mission, the Health System provides high quality, cost effective,
comprehensive, and integrated healthcare to individuals, families, and the communities it serves
regardless of a patient's ability to pay. The Health System actively supports community-based
healthcare and promotes the coordination of services among healthcare providers and social
services organizations. In addition, the Health System also seeks to work collaboratively with other
area healthcare providers to improve the health status of the region. As a component of an
integrated academic medical center, the Health System provides significant support for academic
and research programs.

Certain member hospitals of the Health System file annual Community Benefits Reports with the
State of NH which outline the community and charitable benefits each provides. VT hospitals are
not required by law to file a state community benefit report. The categories used in the Community
Benefit Reports to summarize these benefits are as follows:

•  Community Health Services include activities carried out to improve community health and
could include community health education (such as classes, programs, support groups, and
materials that promote wellness and prevent illness), community-based clinical services (such
as free clinics and health screenings), and healthcare support services (enrollment assistance
in public programs, assistance in obtaining free or reduced costs medications, telephone
information services, or transportation programs to enhance access to care. etc.).
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

•  Health Professions Education includes uncompensated costs of training medical students,
Residents, nurses, and other health care professionals.

•  Subsidized health services are services provided by the Health System, resulting in financial
losses that meet the needs of the community and would not otherwise be available unless the
responsibility was assumed by the government.

•  Research support and other grants represent costs in excess of awards for numerous health
research and service initiatives awarded to the organizations within the Health System.

•  Financial Contributions include financial contributions of cash, as well as in-kind contributions

such as time, supplies, and expertise to local organizations to address community health
needs.

•  Community-Building Activities include expenses incurred to support the development of
programs and partnerships intended to address public health challenges as well as social and
economic determinants of health. Examples include physical improvements and housing,
economic development, support system enhancements, environmental improvements,
leadership development and training for community members, community health improvement
advocacy, and workforce enhancement.

•  Community Benefit Operations includes costs associated with staff dedicated to administering
benefit programs, community'health needs assessment costs, and other costs associated with
community benefit planning and operations.

•  Chanty Care and Costs ofGovemment Sponsored Health Care includes losses, at-cost,
incurred by providing health care services to persons qualifying for hospital financial
assistance programs, and uncompensated costs of providing health care services to patients
who are Medicaid Beneficiaries.

•  The uncompensated cost of care for Medicaid patients reported in the unaudited Community
Benefits Reports for 2018 was approximately $139,683,000. The 2019 Community Benefits
Reports are expected to be filed in February 2020.

The following table summarizes the value of the community benefit initiatives outlined in the Health
System's most recently filed Community Benefit Reports for the year ended June 30, 2018:

(in thousands of dollars)

Government-sponsored healthcare services $ 246,064
Health professional education 33,067
Charity care 13,243
Subsidized health services 11,993

Community health services 6,570
Research 5,969

Community building activities 2,540
Financial contributions 2,360

Community benefit operations 1,153

Total community benefit value $ 322,959
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

2. Summai7 of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
have been prepared consistent with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FAS6) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 954, Healthcare Entities, which addresses the accounting for
healthcare entities. The net assets, revenue, expenses, and gains and losses of healthcare
entities are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, net assets without donor restrictions are amounts not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations and are available for operations. Net assets with donor restrictions are those whose
use has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose, or whose use has been
restricted by donors to be maintained in perpetuity. All significant intercompany transactions have
been eliminated upon consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. The most significant areas that are
affected by the use of estimates include implicit and explicit pricing concessions, valuation of
certain investments, estimated third-party settlements, insurance reserves, and pension
obligations. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include the excess of
revenue over expenses. Operating revenues consist of those items attributable to the care of
patients, including contributions and investment Income on investments of net assets without donor
restrictions, which are utilized to provide charity and other operational support. Peripheral
activities, including contribution of net assets without donor restrictions from acquisitions, loss on
early extinguishment of debt, loss due to swap termination, realized gains/losses on sales of
investment securities and changes in unrealized gains/losses in investments are reported as
nonoperating gains (losses).

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from the excess of revenue
over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets
(including assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the
purpose of acquiring such assets), change in funded status of pension and other postretirement
benefit plans, and the effective portion of the change in fair value of interest rate swaps.

Charity Care
The Health System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under their financial
assistance policies without charge or at amounts less than their established rates. Because the
Health System does not anticipate collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they
are not reported as revenue.

10
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

The Health System grants credit without collateral to patients. Most are local residents and are
insured under third-party arrangements. The amount of charges for implicit price concessions is
based upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections, business and
economic conditions, trends in federal and state governmental healthcare coverage, and other
collection indicators (Notes 1 and 4).

Patient Service Revenue

The Health System applies the accounting provisions of ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (ASC 606). Patient service revenue is reported at the amount of consideration to which
the Health System expects to be entitled from patients, third party payors, and others for services
rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-
party payors and implicit pricing concessions. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
estimates change or final settlements are determined (Note 4).

Contracted Revenue

The Health System has various Professional Service Agreements (PSAs), pursuant to which
certain organizations purchase services of personnel employed by the Health System and also
lease space and equipment. Revenue pursuant to these PSAs and certain facility and equipment
leases and other professional service contracts have been classified as contracted revenue in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Other Revenue

The Health System recognizes other revenue which is not related to patient medical care but is
central to the day-to-day operations of the Health System. Other revenue primarily consists of
revenue from retail pharmacy, which the Health System records as customer revenues in the
amounts that reflect the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the
prescription. Other revenue also includes joint operating agreements, grant revenue, cafeteria
sales and other support service revenue.

Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid investments with maturities of three months
or less when purchased, excluding amounts where use is limited by internal designation or other
arrangements under trust agreements or by donors.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values, mutual funds and
pooled/commingled funds, and all investments in debt securities are considered to be trading
securities reported at fair value with changes in fair value included in the excess of revenues over
expenses. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (Note 7).

Investments in pooled/commingled investment funds, private equity funds and hedge funds that
represent investments where the Health System owns shares or units of funds rather than the
underlying securities in that fund are valued using the equity method of accounting with changes in
value recorded in the excess of revenues over expenses. All investments, whether held at fair
value or under the equity method of accounting, are reported at what the Health System believes to
be the amount they would expect to receive if it liquidated its investments at the balance sheet
dates on a nondistressed basis.
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Certain members of the Health System are partners in a NH general partnership established for the
purpose of operating a master investment program of pooled investment accounts. Substantially
all of the Health System's board-designated and assets with donor restrictions, such as endowment
funds, were invested in these pooled funds by purchasing units based on the market value of the
pooled funds at the end of the month prior to receipt of any new additions to the funds. Interest,
dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses earned on pooled funds are allocated
monthly based on the weighted average units outstanding at the prior month-end.

Investment income or losses (including change in unrealized and realized gains and losses on
investments, change in value of equity method investments, interest, and dividends) are included in
the excess of revenue over expenses and classified as nonoperating gains and losses, unless the
income or loss is restricted by donor or law (Note 9).

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

The Health System estimates fair value based on a valuation framework that uses a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The three levels of fair value hierarchy, as defined by ASC 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, are described below:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement
date for assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Prices other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the date of measurement.

Level 3 Prices or valuation techniques that are both significant to the fair value measurement
and unobservable.

The Health System applies the accounting provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2009-12, Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or its
Equivalent) (ASU 2009-12). ASU 2009-12 allows for the estimation of fair value of investments for
which the investment does not have a readily determinable fair value, to use net asset value (NAV)
per share or its equivalent as a practical expedient, subject to the Health System's ability to redeem
its investment.

The carrying amount of patient accounts receivable, prepaid and other current assets, accounts
payable and accrued expenses approximates fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment, and other real estate are stated at cost at the time of purchase or
fair value at the time of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Health System's policy is to
capitalize expenditures for major improvements and to charge expense for maintenance and repair
expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. The provision for depreciation
has been determined using the straight-line method at rates which are intended to amortize the
cost of assets over their estimated useful lives which range from 10 to 40 years for buildings and
improvements. 2 to 20 years for equipment, and the shorter of the lease term, or 5 to 12 years, for
leasehold improvements. Certain software development costs are amortized using the straight-line
method over a period of up to 10 years. Net interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the
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period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring
those assets.

The fair value of a liability for legal obligations associated with asset retirements Is recognized in
the period in which it Is Incurred. If a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the obligation can be
made. When a liability is initially recorded, the cost of the asset retirement obligation is capitalized
by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability Is accreted
to its present value each period and the capitalized cost associated with the retirement is
depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the obligation, any
difference between the actual cost to settle the asset retirement obligation and the liability recorded
Is recognized as a gain or loss in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets.

Gifts of capital assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as support, and excluded
from the excess of revenue over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the
donated assets must be used. Gifts of capital assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the
assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire capital assets
are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those capital
assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or
acquired capital assets are placed in service.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond Issuance costs, classified on the consolidated balance sheets within long-term debt, are
amortized over the term of the related bonds. Amortization is recorded within Interest expense in
the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets using the straight-line method
which approximates the effective interest method.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill
The Health System records within other assets on the consolidated balance sheets goodwill and
intangible assets such as trade names and leases-in-place. The Health System considers trade
names and goodwill to be indefinite-lived assets, assesses them at least annually for impairment or
more frequently if certain events or circumstances warrant and recognizes impairment charges for
amounts by which the carrying values exceed their fair values. The Health System has recorded
$10,524,000 and $2,462,000 as intangible assets associated with Its affiliations as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
The Health System applies the provisions of ASC 815. Derivatives and Hedging, to Its derivative
instruments, which require that all derivative Instruments be recorded at their respective fair values
in the consolidated balance sheets.

On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the Health System designates the derivative as a
cash-flow hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid
related to a recognized asset or liability. For all hedge relationships, the Health System formally
documents the hedging relationship and its risk-management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the
hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed, and a description
of the method of measuring ineffectiveness. This process includes linking cash-flow hedges to
specific assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, specific firm commitments or
forecasted transactions. The Health System also formally assesses, both at the hedge's inception
and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly

13



DocuSign Envelope ID; 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

effective in offsetting changes in variability of cash flows of hedged items. Changes in the fair
value of a derivative that is highly effective and that is designated and qualifies as a cash-flow
hedge are recorded in net assets without donor restrictions until earnings are affected by the
variability in cash flows of the designated hedged item. The ineffective portion of the change in fair
value of a cash flow hedge is reported in excess of revenue over expenses in the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets.

The Health System discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined: (a) the
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged item; (b) the
derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; (c) the derivative is undesignated as a
hedging instrument because it is unlikely that.a forecasted transaction will occur; (d) a hedged firm
commitment no longer meets the definition of a firm commitment; and (e) management determines
that designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

In all situations in which hedge accounting is discontinued, the Health System continues to carry
the derivative at its fair value on the consolidated balance sheets and recognizes any subsequent
changes in its fair value in excess of revenue over expenses.

Gifts

Gifts without donor restrictions are recorded net of related expenses as nonoperating gains.
Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give to the Health System are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received. Gifts are reported with donor restrictions if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is. when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net
assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported
in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as net assets released
from restrictions.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014. the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606)
and in August 2015, the FASB amended the guidance to defer the effective date of this standard by
one year. ASU 2014-09 affects any entity that either enters into contracts with customers to
transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets unless
those contracts are within the scope of other standards. The core principle of the guidance in ASU
2014-09 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Health System adopted ASU 2014-09
effective July 1, 2018 under the modified retrospective method, and has provided the new
disclosures required post implementation. For example, patient accounts receivable are shown net
of the allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately $132,228,000 as of June 30. 2018 on the
consolidated balance sheet. If an allowance for doubtful accounts had been presented as of
June 30. 2019, it would have been approximately $121,544,000. While the adoption of ASU 2014-
09 has had a material effect on the presentation of revenues in the Health System's consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets, and has had an impact on certain disclosures,
it has not materially impacted the financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Refer to
Note 4, Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable, for further details.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 - Leases (Topic 842), which requires a lessee to
recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments, on its balance sheet. The standard also requires a lessee to recognize a single
lease cost, calculated so that the cost of the lease is allocated over the lease term, on a generally
straight-line basis. The guidance also expands the required quantitative and qualitative disclosures
surrounding leases. The ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15. 2018, or
fiscal year 2020 for the Health System. The Health System is evaluating the impact of the new
guidance on the consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01- Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities, which address certain aspects of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. This guidance allows an entity to choose,
investment-by-lnvestment, to report an equity investment that neither has a readily determinable
fair value, nor qualifies for the practical expedient for fair value estimation using NAV, at Its cost .
minus impairment (if any), plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in
orderly transactions for the identical or similar investment of the same issue. Impairment of such
investments must be assessed qualitatively at each reporting period. Entities must disclose their
financial assets and liabilities by measurement category and form of asset either on the face of the
balance sheet or in the accompanying notes. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018 or fiscal year 2020 for the Health System. The provision to
eliminate the requirement to disclose the fair value of financial instruments measured at cost (such
as the fair value of debt) was early adopted during the year ended June 30, 2017.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14 - Presentation of Financial Statements forNot-for-
Profit Entities. The new pronouncement amends certain financial reporting requirements for not-
for-profit entities. It reduces the number of classes of net assets from three to two: net assets with
donor restrictions includes amount previously disclosed as both temporarily and permanently
restricted net assets, net assets without donor restrictions includes amounts previously disclosed
as unrestricted net assets. It expands the disclosure of expenses by both natural and functional
classification. It adds quantitative and qualitative disclosures about liquidity and availability of
resources. The ASU is effective for the Health System for the year ending June 30, 2019. The
Health System has adopted this ASU on a retrospective basis, except for the presentation of
expenses based on natural and functional classification and the discussion of liquidity, as permitted
in the ASU. Please refer to Note 14, Functional Expenses, and Note 15. Liquidity.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958), Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The new
pronouncement was intended to assist entities in evaluating whether transactions should be
accounted for as contributions or exchange transactions and whether a contribution is conditional.
This ASU was effective for the Health System on July 1, 2018 on a modified prospective basis and
did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Health System.

3. Acquisitions

Effective July 1, 2018, Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital became the sole corporate member of
APD LifeCare Center Inc. (LifeCare). LifeCare owns and operates Harvest Hill, an assisted living
facility, the Woodlands, a residential living community and the Elizabeth S. Hughes Care Unit,
which provides hospice care.
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In accordance with applicable accounting guidance on not-for-profit mergers and acquisitions, Alice
Peck Day Memorial Hospital recorded goodwill related to the acquisition of LifeCare of
approximately $5.131,000. Restricted contribution income of $383,000 was recorded within net
assets with donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated statement of changes in net
assets. Included in the transaction was LifeCare's cash balance of $4,863,000. No consideration

was exchanged for the net assets assumed and acquisition costs were expensed as incurred.
LifeCare's financial position, results of operations and changes in net assets are included in the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

4. Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable

The Health System reports patient service revenue at amounts that reflect the consideration to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from
patients, third-party payers (including managed care payers and government programs), and
others: and they include variable consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to
settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the Health System bills patients and
third-party payers several days after the services were performed or shortly after discharge.
Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied under contracts by providing
healthcare services to patients.

The Health System determines performance obligations based on the nature of the services
provided. Revenues for performance obligations satisfied over time are recognized based on
actual charges incurred in relation to total expected charges as this method provides a reasonable
estimate of the transfer of services over the term of performance obligations based on inputs
needed to satisfy the obligations. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to
patients receiving inpatient acute care services. For inpatient services, performance obligations
are measured from admission to the point when there are no further services required for the
patient, which is generally the time of discharge. For outpatient services and physician services,
performance obligations are recognized at a point in time when the services are provided and no
further patient services are deemed necessary.

Generally, the Health System's patient service performance obligations relate to contracts with a
duration of less than one year, therefore the Health System has elected to apply the optional
exemption provided in ASC 606-10-50-14a and, therefore, we are not required to disclose the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. This generally refers to inpatient services
at the end of the reporting period. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally
completed when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs within days or weeks of the
end of the reporting period.

Established charges represent gross charges. They are not the same as actual pricing, and they
generally do not reflect what a hospital is ultimately entitled to for services it provides. Therefore,
they are not displayed in the Health System's consolidated statements of operations and changes
in net assets.

Hospitals are paid amounts negotiated with insurance companies or set by government entities,
which are typically less than established or standard charges. Gross charges are used to calculate
Medicare outlier payments and to determine certain elements of payment under managed care
contracts. Gross charges are what hospitals charge all patients prior to the application of
contractual adjustments and irnplicit price concessions.
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Explicit Pricing Concessions
Revenues for the Health System under the traditional fee-for service Medicare and Medicaid
programs are based on prospectively determined rates per discharge or visit, reasonable
(allowable) cost, or prospective rates per episodic period, depending on the type of provider.

•  Inpatient acute care services provided to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid using the
prospective payment system ('PPS') to determine rates-per-discharge. These rates vary
according to a patient classification system ('DRG'), based on diagnostic, clinical and other
factors. In addition, inpatient capital costs (depreciation and interest) are reimbursed by
Medicare on the basis of a prospectively determined rate per discharge. Medicare outpatient
services are paid on a prospective payment system, based on a pre^ietermined amount for
each outpatient procedure (APC), subject to various mandated modifications. Retrospectively
determined cost-based revenues under these programs, such as indirect medical education,
direct graduate medical education, disproportionate share hospital, transplant services, and
bad debt reimbursement are based on the hospital's cost reports and are estimated using
historical trends and current factors. The Health System's payments for inpatient services
rendered to New Hampshire ("NH') and Vermont ("VT) Medicaid beneficiaries are based on
PPS, while outpatient services are reimbursed on a retrospective cost basis or fee schedules
for NH beneficiaries. VT outpatient beneficiaries are paid on a prospective basis per
outpatient procedure.

•  Inpatient acute, swing, and outpatient services furnished by critical access hospitals ("CAH")
are reimbursed by Medicare at 101% of reasonable costs, subject to 2% sequestration,
excluding ambulance services and inpatient hospice care.

•  Providers of home health services to patients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are
paid on a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is
based on the scoring attributed to the acuity level of the patient at a rate determined by federal
guidelines.

•  Hospice services to patients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per diem
basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the aggregate annual Medicare
reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate.

•  The Health System's cost based services to Medicare and Medicaid are reimbursed during the
year based on varying interim payment methodologies. Final settlement is determined after
the submission of an annual cost report and subject to audit of this report by Medicare and
Medicaid auditors, as well as administrative and judicial review. Because the taws,
regulations, and rule interpretations, governing Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement are
complex and change frequently, the estimates recorded could change over time by material
amounts.

•  Revenues under Managed Care Plans (Plans) consist primarily of payment terms involving
mutually agreed upon rates per diagnosis, discounted fee-for service rates, or similar
contractual arrangements. These revenues are also subject to review and possible audit.
The Plans are billed for patient services on an individual patient basis. An individual patient's
bill is subject to adjustments in accordance with contractual terms in place with the Plans
following their review and adjudication of each bill.
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The Health System is not aware of any claims, disputes, or unsettled matters with any payer that
would materially affect its revenues for which it has not adequately provided in the accompanying
Health System's consolidated financial statements.

The Health System provides charity care to patients who are unable to pay for healthcare services
they receive as determined by financial conditions. Patients who qualify receive partial or full
adjustments to charges for services rendered. The Health System's policy is to treat amounts
qualified as charity care as explicit price concessions and as such are not reported in net patient
service revenue.

During fiscal year 2016, Vermont state legislation passed changes to the tax base for home health
providers from 19.30% of core home health care services (primarily Medicaid services) with a cap
of 6% of net patient service revenue to 3.63% of net patient revenue for fiscal year 2017 and fiscal
year 2018. Home health provider tax paid, which is included in other operating expenses, was
$628,000 and $737,000 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

On June 30, 2014, the NH Governor signed into law a bi-partisan legislation reflecting an
agreement between the State of NH and 25 NH hospitals on the Medicaid Enhancement Tax
(MET) Senate Bill 369. As part of the agreement, the parties have agreed to resolve all pending
litigation related to MET and Medicaid Rates, including the Catholic Medical Center Litigation, the
Northeast Rehabilitation Litigation, 2014 DRA Refund Requests, and the State Rate Litigation. As
part of the MET Agreement Effective July 1, 2014, a "Trust / Lock Box' dedicated funding
mechanism will be established for receipt and distribution of all MET proceeds with all monies used
exclusively to support Medicaid services.

On May 22, 2018, the State of New Hampshire and all New Hampshire hospitals (NH Hospitals)
signed a new settlement agreement and multi-year plan for Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH)
payments, with provisions to create alternative payments should there be federal changes to the
DSH program by the United States Congress. The agreement may change or limit federal
matching funds for MET when used to support DSH payments to hospitals and the Medicaid
program, or change the definition of Uncompensated Care (UCC) for purposes of calculating DSH
or other allowable uncompensated care payments. The term of the agreement is through state
fiscal year (SFY) 2024. Under the agreement, the NH Hospitals forgo approximately $28,000,000
of DSH payment for SFY 2018 and 2019, in consideration of the State agreeing to form a pool of
funds to make directed payments or otherwise increase rates to hospitals for SFY 2020 through
2024. The Federal share of payments to NH Hospitals are contingent upon the receipt of matching
funds from Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) in the covered years. In the event
that, due to changes in federal law, the State is unable to make payments in a way that ensures the
federal matching funds are available, the Parties will meet and confer to negotiate in good faith an
appropriate amendment to this agreement consistent with the intent of this agreement. The State
is required to maintain the UCC Dedicated Fund pursuant to earlier agreements. The agreement
prioritizes payments of funds to critical access hospitals at 75% of allowable UCC, the remainder
thereafter is distributed to other NH Hospitals in proportion to their allowable uncompensated care
amounts. During the term of this agreement, the NH Hospitals are barred from bringing a new
claim in federal or state court or at Department of Revenue Administration (DRA) related to the
constitutionality of MET.
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During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Health System received DSN payments of
approximately, $69,179,000 and $66,383,000, respectively. DSN payments are subject to audit
pursuant to the agreement with the state and therefore, for the years ended June 30. 2019 and
2018, the Health System recognized as revenue DSH receipts of approximately $64,864,000 and
approximately $54,469,000, respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Health System recorded State of NH
Medicaid Enhancement Tax ("MET") and State of VT Provider tax of $70,061,000 and
$67,692,000. respectively. The taxes are calculated at 5.5% for NH and 6% for VT of certain net
patient service revenues in accordance with instructions received from the States. The Provider
taxes are included in operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets.

Implicit Price Concessions
Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payer contracts are responsible for related co-
pays, co-insurance and deductibles, which vary depending on the contractual obligations of
patients. The Health System also provides services to uninsured patients and offers those patients
a discount from standard charges. The Health System estimates the transaction price for patients
with co-pays, co-insurance, and deductibles and for those who are uninsured based on historical
collection experience and current market conditions. The discount offered to uninsured patients
reduces the transaction price at the time of billing. The uninsured and patient responsible
accounts, net of discounts recorded, are further reduced through implicit price concessions based
on historical collection trends for similar accounts and other known factors that impact the
estimation process. Subsequent changes to the estimate of transaction price are generally
recorded as adjustments to net patient service revenue in the period of change.

The implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction price represent the difference
between amounts billed to patients and the amounts the Health System expects to collect based on
collection history with similar patients. Although outcomes vary, the Health System's policy is to
attempt to collect amounts due from patients, including co-pays, co-insurance and deductibles due
from insurance at the time of service while complying with all fedieral and state statutes and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act
(EMTALA). Through various systems and processes the Health System estimates Medicare and
Medicaid net patient service revenue and cost report settlements and accrues final expected
settlements. For filed cost reports, the accrual is recorded based on those filings, subsequent
activity, and on historical trends and other relevant evidence. For periods in which a cost report is
yet to be filed, accruals are based on estimates of what is expected to be reported, and any trends
and relevant evidence. Cost reports generally must be filed within five months of the closing
period.

Settlements with third-party payers for retroactive revenue adjustments due to audits, reviews or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the
estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely amount. These
settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payer,
correspondence from the payer and historical settlement activity, including assessments to ensure
that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved.
Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known, or as years
are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews or investigations. As of June 30, 2019
and 2018, the Health System had $52,470,000 and $52,041,000, respectively, reserved for
estimated third-party settlements.
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For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. additional increases (decreases) in revenue of
$1,800,000 and ($5,604,000), respectively, was recognized due to changes in Its prior years
related to estimated third-party settlements.

Net operating revenues for the hospital operations of the PPS and CAM, and other business
segments consist primarily of patient service revenues, principally for patients covered by
Medicare, Medicaid, managed care and other health plans as well as patients covered under the
Health System's uninsured discount and charity care programs.

The table below shows the Health System's sources of net operating revenues presented at the net
transaction price for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018.

2019
(in thousands of dollars) PPS CAH Total

Hospital

Medicare

Medicaid

Commercial

Self pay

Professional

Professional

VNH

Other revenue

Total operating revenue and other support

$  456,197 $ 72,193 $  528,390

134.727 12,794 147,521

746,647 64,981 811,628

8,811 2,313 11,124

1,346,382 152,281 1,498,663

454,425 23,707 478,132

22,528
285,715

$  1,800,807 $ 175,988 $  2,285,038

2018

(in thousands of dollars) PPS CAM Total

Hospital
Medicare

Medicaid

Commercial

Self pay

$  432,251 $ 76,522 $  508,7

Professional

Professional

VNH

Other revenue

Total operating revenue and other support

73

117,019 10,017 127,036

677,162 65,916 743,078

10,687 2,127 12,814

1,237,119 154,582 1,391,701

412,605 24,703 437,308

22,719

203,915

$  1,649,724 $ 179,285 $  2,055,643

20



DocuSign Envelope ID; 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Accounts Receivable

The principal components of patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as
follows;

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Patient accounts recivable $ 221,125 $ 351,456

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ^ (132,228)

Patient accounts receivable $ 221,125 $ 219,228

The following table categorizes payors into four groups based on their respective percentages of
gross patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Medicare 34 % 34 %

Medicaid 12 14

Commercial 41 40

Self pay 13 12

Patient accounts receivable 100% 100%
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5. Investments

The composition of investments at June 30, 2019 and 2018 is set forth in the following table:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Assets limited as to use

Internally designated by board
Cash and short-term investments $  21,890 $ 8,558

U.S. government securities 91,492 50,484

Domestic corporate debt securities 196,132 109,240

Global debt securities 83,580 110,944

Domestic equities 167,384 142,796

International equities 128,909 106,668

Emerging markets equities 23,086 23,562

Real estate investment trust 213 816

Private equity funds 64,563 50,415

Hedge funds 32,287 32,831

809,536 636,314

Investments held by captive insurance companies (Note 12)
U.S. govemment securities 23,241 30,581

Domestic corporate debt securities 11.378 16,764

Global debt securities 10,080 4,513

Domestic equities 14,617 8,109

International equities 6,766 7,971

66,082 67,938

Held by trustee under indenture agreement (Note 10)
Cash and short-term investments 631 1,872

Total assets limited as to use 876.249 706,124

Other Investments for restricted activities

Cash and short-term investments 6,113 4.952

U.S. government securities 32,479 28,220

Domestic corporate debt securities 29,089 29,031

Global debt securities 11,263 14,641

Domestic equities 20,981 20,509

International equities 15,531 17,521

Emerging markets equities 2,578 2,155

Real estate investment tnjst -
954

Private equity funds 7,638 4.878

Hedge funds 8,414 8,004

Other 33 31

Total other investments for restricted activities 134,119 130,896

Total investments $  1,010,368 $ 837,020
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Investments are accounted for using either the fair value method or equity method of accounting,
as appropriate on a case by case basis. The fair value method is used for all debt securities and
equity securities that are traded on active markets and are valued at prices that are readily
available in those markets. The equity method is used when investments are made in
pooled/commingled investment funds that represent investments where shares or units are owned
of pooled funds rather than the underlying securities In that fund. These pooled/commingled funds
make underlying investments in securities from the asset classes listed above. All investments,
whether the fair value or equity method of accounting is used, are reported at what the Health
System believes to be the amount that the Health System would expect to receive if it liquidated its
investments at the balance sheets date on a nondistressed basis.

The following tables summarize the investments by the accounting method utilized, as of June 30.
2019 and 2018. Accounting standards require disclosure of additional information for those
securities accounted for using the fair value method, as shown in Note 7.

2019

(in thousands of dollars) Fair Value Equity Total

Cash and short-term investments $  28,634 $ $  28,634

U.S. government securities 147,212 - 147,212

Domestic corporate debt securities 164,996 71,603 236,599

Global debt securities 55,520 49,403 104,923

Domestic equities 178,720 24,262 202,982

International equities 76,328 74,878 151,206

Emerging markets equities 1,295 24,369 25,664

Real estate investment trust 213 - 213

Private equity funds - 72,201 72,201

Hedge funds - 40,701 40,701

Other 33 - 33

$  652,951 $  357,417 $  1,010,368

2018

(in thousands of dollars) Fair Value Equity Total

Cash and short-term investments $  15.382 $  - $ 15,382

U.S. government securities 109,285 - 109,285

Domestic corporate debt securities 95,481 59,554 155,035

Global debt securities 49,104 80,994 130,098

Domestic equities 157,011 14,403 171,414

International equities 60,002 72,158 132,160

Emerging markets equities 1,296 24,421 25,717

Real estate investment trust 222 1,548 1,770

Private equity funds - 55,293 55,293

Hedge funds - 40,835 40,835

Other 31 - 31

$  487,814 $  349,206 $ 837,020
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Investment income is comprised of the following for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions

Interest and dividend income, net

Net realized gains on sales of securities
Change in net unrealized gains on investments

$ 11,333 $

17,419

12,283

12,324

24,411

4,612

41,035 41.347

Net assets with donor restrictions

Interest and dividend income, net

Net realized gains on sales of securities
Change in net unrealized gains on investments

987

2,603

(908)

1,526

1,438

1,390

2,682 4,354

$ 43,717 $ 45,701

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 investment income is reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as operating revenue of
approximately $983,000 and $960,000 and as nonoperating gains of approximately $40,052,000
and $40,387,000, respectively.

Private equity limited partnership shares are not eligible for redemption from the fund or general
partner, but can be sold to third party buyers in private transactions that typically can be completed
In approximately 90 days. It is the intent of the Health System to hold these investments until the
fund has fully distributed all proceeds to the limited partners and the term of the partnership
agreement expires. Under the terms of these agreements, the Health System has committed to
contribute a specified level of capital over a defined period of time. Through June 30, 2019 and
2018, the Health System has committed to contribute approximately $164,319,000 and
$137,219,000 to such funds, of which the Health System has contributed approximately
$109,584,000 and $91,942,000 and has outstanding commitments of $54,735,000 and
$45,277,000, respectively.
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6. Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are summarized as follows at June 30, 2019 and 2018;

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

7.

Land $  38,232 $  38,058

Land improvements 42,607 42,295

Buildings and improvements 898,050 876,537

Equipment 888,138 818,902

Equipment under capital leases 15,809 20,966

1,882,836 1,796,758

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,276,746 1,200,549

Total depreciable assets, net 606,090 596,209

Construction in progress 15,166 11,112

$  621,256' $  607,321

As of June 30, 2019, construction in progress primarily consists of an addition to the ambulatory
surgical center located in Manchester, NH as well as renovations taking place at the various
pharmacy locations to bring their facilities compliant with Regulation USP800. The estimated cost
to complete the ambulatory surgical center at June 30, 2019 is approximately $59,000,000 over the
next two fiscal years while the pharmacy renovation is estimated to cost approximately $8,300,000
over the next fiscal year.

The construction in progress reported as of June 30, 2018 for the building renovations taking place
at the birthing pavilion in Lebanon, NH was completed during the first quarter of fiscal year 2019
and the information systems PeopleSoft project for Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital and Cheshire
was completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2019.

Depreciation and amortization expense included in operating and nonoperating activities was
approximately $88,496,000 and $84,729,000 for 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies for assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis:

Cash and Short-Term Investments

Consists of money market funds and are valued at net asset value (NAV) reported by the
financial institution.

Domestic, Emerging Markets and International Equities
Consists of actively traded equity securities and mutual funds which are valued at the closing price
reported on an active market on which the individual securities are traded (Level 1 measurements).
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U.S. Government Securities, Domestic Corporate and Global Debt Securities
Consists of U.S. govemment securities, domestic corporate and global debt securities, mutual
funds and pooled/commingled funds that invest in U.S. government securities, domestic corporate
and global debt securities. Securities are valued based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes
where available (Level 1 measurement). If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are
based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments or, if necessary, matrix pricing from a
third party pricing vendor to determine fair value (Level 2 measurements). Matrix prices are based
on quoted prices for securities with similar coupons, ratings and maturities, rather than on specific
bids and offers for a designated security. Investments in mutual funds are measured based on the
quoted NAV as of the close of business in the respective active market (Level 1 measurements).

The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Health System
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the
use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

Investments are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The following tables set forth the consolidated financial assets and
liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2019 and 2018;

(in thousands 0/ Oohars)

ASMtS

InvMtmtnts

Cash and short tsrm inv«stm«r>t*

U.S. Qovommont sacuhttet
Oomcstic corporate debt tacuriiias
Global dabi sacurtdas

Domasiic aquKlas
Intamsticrial aqUtlat
Emerging market aqultiaa
Real estate investmera trust

Other

Total Irtvestmenis

Deferred compettsaiion plan assets
Cash arxl sTtorMenn investments

U.S. goverranent securities
Oontestic corporate debt securities
Global debt securities

Donrestic equities
Intemaliortal equities
Emerging market eqUties
Real estate

Multl strategy lund
Guaranteed contract

Total deferred compensation plan assets

BeneAdel interest in trusts

Total assets

Retlemptlon Days'

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total or LIquldatlof) Notica

S  28.634 S 5 S  28.634 Daily 1

147.212 . 147.212 CMly 1

34.723 130.273 164.998 Daily-Monthly 1-15

28.412 27,108 55.520 Daily-Mortthly 1-15

171,318 7,402 178.720 Daily-Monthly 1-10

76.295 33 78.328 Daily-Monthly 1-11

1.295 - 1.295 Gaily-Monthly 1-7

213 . 213 Daily-Monthly 1-7

. 33 33 Not applicable Not applicable

488.102 184.849 652.951

2.952 2,952

45 45

4.932 4,932

1.300 1.300

22.403 22.403

3.576 3,576

27 27

11 11

48.941 48.941

. 89 89

84.187 89 84.278 Not appHcatie Not applicable

. 9.301 6.301 Not applicable Not applicable

5  572.289 i  164.849 $  9.390 S  746.528
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2018

RtdsmpUon Oiys'

(in tnousanda ot OoUars) Lsv«l1 Lsvst 2 Lsvsl 3 ToUl or Liquidation Notica

A»MtS

lnvMim«nts
Daily 1Cftth and snon term Invesimenu S  15.382 S s S  15.382

U.S. govemmant faculties 109.285 • 109.285 Daily 1

Oomasttc corporate debt secuttiet 41.488 53.993 95.481 Oaily-MontMy 1-15

Global debt secutiies 32.874 16.230 49.104 OaHy-MontNy 1-15

Domestic equities 157,011 - 157.011 Daily-Monthly 1-10

International equities 59.924 78 80.002 Dab^onthly 1-11

Emerging mariiet equities 1,296 - 1.296 Dalty-Monthly 1-7

Real estate investment trust 222 - 222 Daily-Monthly 1-7

Other - 31 31 Notapplicabia Not appbcabla

Total Iftvestmenls 417.482 70.332 487.814

Deferred compensation plan assets
2.637Cash and short-term investments 2.837

U.S. govemment secutbes 38 38

Oorrtestic corporate det>t securibes 3.749 . 3.749

Global debt secutties 1.089 1.089

Domestic etMties 18.470 18.470

Irrterrwtionsl equities 3.584 3.584 •

Emerging market etjuities 28 28

Reel estate 9 9

Miiti strategy fund 48.680 48.680

Guaranteed contract •
86 66

Total deferred compensation plan assets 76,284 86 76.370 Not appNcabla Not appvcable

Banaflcial interest in trusts -
9.374 9.374 Not appiicabia Notapplicabia

Total assets $  493.768 s 70.332 S 9.460 5 573.558

The following table is a rollforward of financial instruments classified by the Health System within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy defined above.

2019

Beneficial

Interest in

Perpetual Guaranteed

(in thousands of dollars) Trust Contract Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 9,374 $ 86 $ 9,460

Net unrealized gains (losses) (73) 3 (70)

Balances at end of year $ 9,301 $ 89 $ 9,390

2018

Beneficial

Interest In

Perpetual Guaranteed

(in thousands of dollars) Trust Contract Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 9,244 $ 83 $ 9,327

Net unrealized gains 130 3 133

Balances at end of year $ 9,374 $ 86 $ 9,460

There were no transfers into and out of Level 1 and 2 measurements due to changes in valuation
methodologies during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.
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8. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at June 30, 2019 and
2018:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Healthcare services $ 20,140 $ 19,570

Research 26.496 24,732

Purchase of equipment 3,273 3,068

Charity care 12,494 13,667

Health education 19,833 18,429

Other 3,841 2,973

Investments held in perpetuity 56,383 55,394

$ 142,460 $ 137,833

Income earned on donor restricted net assets held in perpetuity is available for these purposes.

9. Board Designated and Endowment Funds

Net assets include numerous funds established for a variety of purposes including both donor-
restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments. Net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the
Board of Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Board of Trustees has interpreted the NH and VT Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Acts (UPMIFA or Act) for donor-restricted endowment funds as requiring the preservation of
the original value of gifts, as of the gift date, to donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit
donor stipulations to the contrary. The Health System's net assets with donor restrictions which
are to be held in perpetuity consist of (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to be held in perpetuity, and (c)
accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift Instrument at the time the accumulation Is added to the fund, if any.
Collectively these amounts are referred to as the historic dollar value of the fund.

Net assets without donor restrictions include funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function
as endowments and the income from certain donor-restricted endowment funds, and any
accumulated investment return thereon, which pursuant to donor intent may be expended based on
trustee or management designation. Net assets with donor restrictions that are temporary in
nature, either restricted by time or purpose, include funds appropriated for expenditure pursuant to
endowment and Investment spending policies, certain expendable endowment gifts from donors,
and any retained income and appreciation on donor-restricted endowment funds, which are
restricted by the donor to a specific purpose or by law. When the restrictions on these funds have
been met, the funds are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.
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In accordance with the Act, the Health System considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: the duration and
preservation of the fund; the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment fund; general economic
conditions: the possible effect of inflation and deflation; the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; other resources available; and investment policies.

The Health System has endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding for programs supported by its endowment while ensuring that the
purchasing power does not decline over time. The Health System targets a diversified asset
allocation that places emphasis on investments in domestic and international equities, fixed
income, private equity, and hedge fund strategies to achieve its long-term return objectives within
prudent risk constraints. The Health System's Investment Committee reviews the policy portfolio
asset allocations, exposures, and risk profile on an ongoing basis.

The Health System, as a policy, may appropriate for expenditure or accumulate so much of an
endowment fund as the institution determines is prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes, and
duration for which the endowment is established, subject to donor intent expressed in the gift
instrument and the standard of prudence prescribed by the Act.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below their original contributed value. Such market losses were not material as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund consists of the following at June 30. 2019 and
2018:

2019

(in thousands of dollars)

Donor-restricted endowment funds

Board-designated endowment funds

Total endowed net assets

(in thousands of dollars)

Donor-restricted endowment funds

Board-designated endowment funds

Total endowed net assets

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Totai

$ $ 78,268 $ 78,268

31.421 - 31,421

S  31,421 $ 78,268 $ 109,689

2018

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

$ $ 78,197 $ 78,197

29.506 - 29,506

$  29.506 $ 78.197 $ 107,703
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Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019

Without With

Donor Donor

(in thousands of dollars) Restrictions Restrictions Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 29,506 $ 78,197 $ 107,703

Net investment return 1,184 2,491 3,675

Contributions 804 1,222 2,026

Transfers (73) (1,287) (1.360)

Release of appropriated funds - (2.355) (2.355)

Balances at end of year $ 31,421 $ 78,268 $ 109,689

2018

Without With

Donor Donor

(in thousands of dollars) Restrictions Restrictions Total

Balances at beginning of year $ 26,389 $ 75,457 $ 101.846

Net investment return 3,112 4,246 7,358

Contributions - 1,121 1,121

Transfers 5 (35) (30)

Release of appropriated funds - (2,592) (2,592)

Balances at end of year $ 29,506 $ 78,197 $ 107,703
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10. Long-Term Debt

A summary of long-term debt at June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as follows;

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Variable rate Issues

New Hampshire Health and Education facilities
Authority (NHHEFA) revenue bonds
Series 2018A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2037 (1) $  83,355 $ 83,355

Fixed rate Issues

New Hampshire Health and Education facilities
Authority revenue bonds

Series 2018B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2048 (1) 303,102 303,102

Series 2017A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2040 (2) 122,435 122,435

Series 2017B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2031 (2) 109,800 109,800

Series 2014A, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2022 (3) 26,960 26.960

Series 2018C, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2030 (4) 25,865 -

Series 2012, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through July 2039 (5) 25,145 25,955

Series 2014B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2033 (3) 14,530 14,530

Series 2016B, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2045 (6) 10,970 10,970

Total variable and fixed rate debt $  722,162 $ 697,107
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A summary of long-term debt at June 30, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Other

Series 2010, principal maturing in varying annual
amounts, through August 2040 (7)* $  - $ 15,498

Note payable to a financial institution payable in Interest free
monthly installments through July 2015;
collateralized by associated equipment* 445 646

Note payable to a financial institution with entire

principal due June 2029 that is collateralized by land
and building. The note payable is interest free* 323 380

Mortgage note payable to the US Dept of Agriculture;
monthly payments of $10,892 include interest of 2.375%
through November 2046* 2,629 2,697

Obligations under capital leases 17,526 18,965

Total other debt 20,923 38,186

Total variable and fixed rate debt 722,162 697,107

Total long-term debt 743,085 735,293

Less: Original issue discounts and premiums, net (25,542) (26,862)

Bond issuance costs, net 5,533 5,716

Current portion 10.914 3,464

$  752,180 $ 752,975

*  Represents nonobligated group bonds

Aggregate annual principal payments required under revenue bond agreements and capital lease
obligations for the next five years ending June 30 and thereafter are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 $ 10,914

2021 10.693

2022 10,843

2023 7,980

2024 3,016

Thereafter 699,639

$  743,085

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Obligated Group (DHOG) Bonds
MHMH established the DHOG in 1993 for the original purpose of issuing bonds financed through
NHHEFA or the "Authority". The members of the obligated group consist of D-HH, MHMH, DHC,
Cheshire, NLH, MAHHC, and, effective August 15, 2018, APD. D-HH is designated as the
obligated group agent.
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Revenue Bonds issued by members of the DHOG are administered through notes registered in the
name of the Bond Trustee and in accordance with the terms of a Master Trust Indenture. The
Master Trust Indenture contains provisions permitting the addition, withdrawal, or consolidation of
members of the DHOG under certain conditions. The notes constitute a joint and several obligation
of the members of the DHOG (and any other future members of the DHOG) and are equally and
ratably collateralized by a pledge of the members' gross receipts. The DHOG is also subject to
certain annual covenants under the Master Trust Indenture, the most restrictive Is the Annual Debt
Service Coverage Ratio (1.1 Ox).

(1) Series 2018A and Series 2018B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A and Series 20188 in
February 2018. The Series 2018A Revenue Bonds were primarily used to refund a portion of
Series 2015A and Series 2016A. The Series 2018B were primarily used to refund a portion of
Series 2015A and Series 2016A, Revolving Line of Credit, Series 2012 Bank Loan and the
Series 2015A and Series 2016A Swap terminations. A loss on the extinguishment of debt of
approximately $578,000 was recognized In nonoperating gains (losses) on the statement of
operations and changes in net assets, as a result of the refinancing. The interest on the
Series 2018A Revenue Bonds is variable with a current interest rate of 5.00% and matures in

variable amounts through 2037. The interest on the Series 2018B Revenue Bonds is fixed
with an interest rate of 4.18% and matures in variable amounts through 2048.

(2) Series 2017A and Series 2017B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A and Series 20178 in December,
2017. The Series 2017A Revenue Bonds were primarily used to refund Series 2009 and
Series 2010 and the Series 2017B Revenue Bonds were used to refund Series 2012A and

Series 2012B. The interest on the Series 2017A Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate

of 5.00% and matures in variable amounts through 2040. The interest on the Series 2017B
Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate of 2.54% and matures in variable amounts

through 2031.

(3) Series 2014A and Series 2014B Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A and Series 2014B in
August 2014. The proceeds from the Series 2014A and 2014B Revenue Bonds were used to
partially refund the Series 2009 Revenue Bonds and to cover cost of issuance. Interest on the
2014A Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate of 2.63% and matures at various dates
through 2022. Interest on the Series 2014B Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate of
4.00% and matures at various dates through 2033.

(4) Series 20180 Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series 2018C in August, 2018. The Series
2018C Revenue Bonds were used primarily to refinance the Series 2010 Revenue Bonds.
The interest on the series 2018C Revenue Bonds is fixed with an interest rate of 3.22% and

matures in variable amounts through 2030.
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(5) Series 2012 Revenue Bonds

The NHHEFA issued $29,650,000 of tax-exempt Revenue Bonds, Series 2012. The proceeds
of these bonds were used to refund 1998 and 2009 Series Bonds, to finance the settlement
cost of the interest rate swap, and to finance the purchase of certain equipment and
renovations. The bonds have fixed interest coupon rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% (a net
interest cost of 3.96%), and matures in variable amounts through 2039.

(6) Series 201 SB Revenue Bonds

The DHOG issued NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Series 2016B in July 2016 through a private

placement with a financial institution. The Series 2016B Revenue Bonds were used to finance
2016 projects. The Series 2016B is fixed with an interest rate of 1.78% and matures at
various dates through 2045.

Outstanding joint and several indebtedness of the DHOG at June 30, 2019 and 2018
approximates $722,162,000 and $697,107,000. respectively.

Non Obligated Group Bonds
(1) Series 2010 Revenue Bonds

The Business Finance Authority (BFA) of the State of NH issued Revenue Bonds, Series
2010. Interest is based on an annual percentage rate equal to the sum of (a) 69% of the 1-
Month LIBOR rate plus (b) 1.8975/5. The Health System redeemed these bonds in
August 2018.

The Health System Indenture agreements require establishment and maintenance of debt service
reserves and other trustee held funds. Trustee held funds of approximately $631,000 and
$1,872,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, are classified as assets limited as to use in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (Note 5). The debt service reserves are mainly
comprised of escrowed funds held for future principal and interest payments.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 interest expense on the Health System's long term
debt is reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets as operating expense of approximately $25,514,000 and $18,822,000 and other
nonoperating losses of $3,784,000 and $2,793,000, respectively.

Swap Agreements

The Health System is subject to market risks such as changes in interest rates that arise from
normal business operation. The Health System regularly assesses these risks and has established
business strategies to provide natural offsets, supplemented by the use of derivative financial
instruments to protect against the adverse effect of these and other market risks. The Health
System has established clear policies, procedures, and internal controls governing the use of
derivatives and does not use them for trading, investment, or other speculative purposes.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there was no liability for interest rate swaps as all remaining swaps
were terminated in February 2018. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Health System
recognized a nonoperating loss due to swap termination of $14,247,000 relating to the swap
termination. The change in fair value during the year ended June 30, 2018 was a decrease of
$4,897,000. For the year ended June 30, 2018 the Health System recognized a nonoperating gain
of $145,000 resulting from hedge ineffectiveness and amortization of frozen swaps.
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11. Employee Benefits

All eligible employees of the Health System are covered under various defined benefit and/or
define contribution plans. In addition, certain members provide postretirement medical and life
benefit plans to certain of its active and former employees who meet eligibility requirements. The
postretirement medical and life plans are not funded.

All of the defined benefit plans within the Health System have been frozen and therefore there are
no remaining participants earning benefits in any of the Health System's defined benefit plans.

The Health System continued to execute the settlement of obligations due to retirees in the defined
benefit plans through bulk lump sum offerings or purchases of annuity contracts. The annuity
purchases follow guidelines established by the Department of Labor (DOL). The Health System
anticipates continued consideration and/or implementation of additional settlements over the next
several years.

Defined Benefit Plans

Net periodic pension expense included in employee benefits in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets is comprised of the components listed below for the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018:

(in thousands of dollars)

Service cost for benefits earned during the year
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Net toss amortization

Total net periodic pension expense

2019

150 $

47,814

(65,270)

10,357 _

(6,949) $

2018

150

47,190

(64,561)

10,593

(6,628)

The following assumptions were used to determine net periodic pension expense as of June 30,
2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Discount rate

Rate of increase in compensation

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

3.90 % - 4.60%

N/A

7.50%

4.00%-4.30%

N/A

7.50 % - 7.75 %
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The following table sets forth the funded status and amounts recognized in the Health System's
consolidated financial statements for the defined benefit pension plans at June 30, 2019 and 2018;

(in thousands of dollars)

Change in benefit obligation

2019 2018

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $  1,087,940 $ 1,122,615

Service cost 150 150

Interest cost 47,814 47,190

Benefits paid (51,263) (47,550)

Expenses paid (170) (172)

Actuarial (gain) loss 93,358 (34,293)

Settlements (42,306) -

Benefit obligation at end of year 1,135,523 1,087,940

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 884,983 878,701

Actual retum on plan assets 85,842 33,291

Benefits paid (51,263) (47,550)

Expenses paid (170) (172)

Employer contributions 20,631 20,713

Settlements (42,306) -

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 897,717 884,983

Funded status of the plans (237,806) (202,957)

Less: Current portion of liability for pension (46) (45)

Long term portion of liability for pension (237,760) (202,912)

Liability for pension $  (237,760) $ (202,912)

As of June 30. 2019 and 2018 the liability, for pension is included in the liability for pension and
other postretirement plan benefits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic pension expense and included in the change in net assets
without donor restrictions include approximately $478,394,000 and $418,971,000 of net actuarial
loss as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The estimated amounts to be amortized from net assets without donor restrictions into net periodic
pension expense in fiscal year 2020 for net actuarial losses is $12,032,000.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plans was approximately
$1,135,770,000 and $1,087,991,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The following table sets forth the assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation at June 30,
2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Discount rate

Rate of increase in compensation

4.20%-4.50%

N/A

4.20%-4.50%

N/A
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The primary investment objective for the Plan's assets is to support the Pension liabilities of the
Pension Plans for Employees of the Health System, by providing long-term capital appreciation and
by also using a Liability Driven Investing ('LDI') strategy to partially hedge the impact fluctuating
interest rates have on the value of the Plan's liabilities. As of both June 30, 2019 and 2018, it is

expected that the LDI strategy will hedge approximately 60% of the interest rate risk associated
with pension liabilities. To achieve the appreciation and hedging objectives, the Plans utilize a
diversified structure of asset classes designed to achieve stated performance objectives measured
on a total return basis, which includes income plus realized and unrealized gains and losses.

The range of target allocation percentages and the target allocations for the various investments
are as follows:

Range of
Target Target

Allocations Allocations

Cash and short-term investments 0-5% 3 %

U.S. government securities 0-10 5

Domestic debt securities 20-58 38

Global debt securities 6-26 8

Domestic equities 5-35 19

International equities 5-15 11

Emerging market equities 3-13 5

Real estate Investment trust funds 0-5 0

Private equity funds 0-5 0

Hedge funds 5-18 11

To the extent an asset class falls outside of its target range on a quarterly basis, the Health System
shall determine appropriate steps, as it deems necessary, to rebalance the asset class.

The Boards of Trustees of the Health System, as Plan Sponsors, oversee the design, structure,
and prudent professional management of the Health System's Plans' assets, in accordance with
Board approved investment policies, roles, responsibilities and authorities and more specifically the
diowing:

Establishing and modifying asset class targets with Board approved policy ranges.

Approving the asset class rebalancing procedures.

Hiring and terminating investment managers, and

Monitoring performance of the investment managers, custodians and investment consultants.

The hierarchy and inputs to valuation techniques to measure fair value of the Plans' assets are the
same as outlined in Note 7. In addition, the estimation of fair value of investments in private equity
and hedge funds for which the underlying securities do not have a readily determinable value is
made using the NAV per share or its equivalent as a practical expedient. The Health System's
Plans own interests in these funds rather than in securities underlying each fund and. therefore, are
generally required to consider such investments as Level 2 or 3, even though the underlying
securities may not be difficult to value or may be readily marketable.
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The following table sets forth the Health System's Plans' investments and deferred compensation
plan assets that were accounted for at fair value as of June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019

On thousands of (Mars) Levell Level 2 Level 3

InvMUnsnts

Cssti and short-term investments S  166 S  18.232 S

U.S. government securities 46,580 - •

Domestic detn securities 122,178 273.424 -

Global debt securities 428 75.146 -

Domestic equities 159,259 16.316 •

International equKies 17.232 77.146 -

Errterglrtg marxet equities 321 39,902
■

REIT funds 357 2.883 -

Private equity funds • - 21

Hedge funds - •
44.126

Total Investments 348.S21 505,049 44.147

Redemption Days'

ToUl or Liquidation Notice

$  18,398 Daily 1

48,580 Oally-Monthiy 1-15

395,602 Dally-Montftly 1-15

75,574 Daily-MontMy 1-15

177,575 Daily-Monthly 1-10

94.378 Dsily-MonOtly 1-11

40.223 Daily-Monthly 1-17

3.240 Dally-Monthly 1-17

21 See Note 7 See Note 7

44.126 Quarlarty-Annual 60-96

$  897.717

2018

Redemption Daya'

On thousands of dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total or Liquidation Notice

Investments

Cash and short-term investments S  142 $  35,817 S  - S 35.959 OaUy 1

U.S. government securities 46.265 - - 46.265 Daily-Monthly 1-15

Domestic detn securities 144.131 220,202 - 364.333 Daily-Monthly 1-15

Global debt securities 470 74.678 - 75.146 DaVy^onthly' 1-15

Domestic equities 158,634 17.594 - 176.228 Davy-Monthly 1-10

Intemational equities 18,656 80.803 - 99.459 Davy-Monthly 1-11

Emerging market equKies 382 39.881 - 40.263 DaVy-Monthly 1-17

REIT funds 371 2.688 - 3,057 Davy-Monthly 1-17

Private equity funds . - 23 23 See Note 7 See Note

Hedge funds - - 44,250 44.250 Quart erly-Anrtual 60-96

Total investments S  369.051 S  471.659 $  44.273 S 884,983

The following table presents additional information about the changes in Level 3 assets measured
at fair value for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019

(in thousands of dollars)

Balances at beginning of year

Net unrealized losses

Balances at end of year

(in thousands of dollars)

Balances at beginning of year

Sales

Net realized losses

Net unrealized gains

Balances at end of year

Private

Hedge Funds Equity Funds Total

$ 44,250 $ 23 $ 44,273

(124) (2) (126)

$ 44,126 $ 21 $ 44,147

2018

Private

Hedge Funds Equity Funds Total

$ 40,507 $ 96 $ 40,603

- (51) (51)
- (51) (51)

3,743 29 3,772

$ 44,250 $ 23 $ 44,273
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The total aggregate net unrealized gains (losses) included in the fair value of the Level 3
investments as of June 30. 2019 and 2018 were approximately $14,617,000 and $14,743,000,
respectively. There were no transfers into and out of Level 3 measurements during the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

There were no transfers into and out of Level 1 and 2 measurements due to changes in valuation
methodologies during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

The weighted average asset allocation for the Health System's Plans at June 30, 2019 and 2018
by asset category is as follows;

2019 2018

Cash and short-term investments 2 % 4 %

U.S. government securities 5 5

Domestic debt securities 44 41

Global debt securities 9 9

Domestic equities 20 20

International equities 11 11

Emerging market equities 4 5

Hedge funds 5 5

100 % 100 %

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is reviewed annually, taking into consideration
the asset allocation, historical returns on the types of assets held, and the current economic
environment. Based on these factors, it is expected that the pension assets will earn an average of
7.50% per annum.

The Health System is expected to contribute approximately $20,426,000 to the Plans in 2020
however actual contributions may vary from expected amounts.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected
to be paid for the years ending June 30 and thereafter

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 $ 50,743

2021 52,938

2022 55,199

2023 57,562

2024 59,843

2025 - 2028 326,737
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Defined Contribution Plans

The Health System has an employer-sponsored 401(a) plan for certain of its members, under
which the employer makes base, transition and discretionary match contributions based on
specified percentages of compensation and employee deferral amounts. Total employer
contributions to the plan of approximately $40,537,000 and $38,563,000 in 2019 and 2018,
respectively, are included in employee benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets.

Various 403(b) and tax- sheltered annuity plans are available to employees of the Health System.
Plan specifications vary by member and plan. No employer contributions were made to any of
these plans in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Postretlrement Medical and Life Benefits

The Health System has postretiremen! medical and life benefit plans covering certain of its active
and former employees. The plans generally provide medical or medical and life Insurance benefits
to certain retired employees who meet eligibility requirements. The plans are not funded.

Net periodic postretiremen! medical and life benefit (income) cost is comprised of the components
listed below for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018;

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Service cost $ 384 $ 533

Interest cost 1,842 1,712

Net prior service income (5.974) (5.974)

Net loss amortization 10 10

$ (3.738) $ (3,719)

The following table sets forth the accumulated postretiremen! medical and life benefit obligation
and amounts recognized in the Health System's consolidated financial statements at June 30, 201
and 2018:

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Change In benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 42,581 $ 42,277

Service cost 384 533

Interest cost 1,842 1,712

Benefits paid (3.149) (3,174)

Actuarial loss 5,013 1,233

Employer contributions - -

Benefit obligation at end of year 46,671 42,581

Funded status of the plans $ (46,671) $ (42,581)

Current portion of liability for postretiremen!

medical and life benefits $ (3.422) $ (3,266)

Long term portion of liability for
postretiremen! medical and life benefits (43.249) (39,315)

Liability for postretiremen! medical and life benefits $ (46.671) $ (42,581)
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As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the liability for postretirement medical and life benefits is included in
the liability for pension and other postretirement plan benefits in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic postretirement medical and life benefit income and
included in the change in net assets without donor restrictions are as follows;

(in thousands of dollars) 2019 2018

Net prior service income $ (9,556) $ (15,530)
Net actuarial loss 8.386 3,336

$  (1,170) $ (12,194)

The estimated amounts that will be amortized from net assets without donor restrictions into net

periodic postretirement income in fiscal year 2020 for net prior service cost is $5,974,000.

The following future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid for the year ending June 30, 2020 and thereafter:

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 $ 3,468

2021 3,436

2022 3,394

2023 3,802

2024 3,811

2025-2028 17,253

In determining the accumulated postretirement medical and life benefit obligation, the Health
System used a discount rate of 3.70% in 2019 and an assumed healthcare cost trend rate of
6.50%, trending down to 5.00% in 2024 and thereafter. Increasing the assumed healthcare cost
trend rates by one percentage point in each year would increase the accumulated postretirement
medical benefit obligation as of June 30. 2019 and 2018 by $1,601,000 and $1,088,000 and the
net periodic postretirement medical benefit cost for the years then ended by $77,000 and $81,000,
respectively. Decreasing the assumed healthcare cost trend rates by one percentage point in each
year would decrease the accumulated postretirement medical benefit obligation as of June 30,
2019 and 2018 by $1,452,000 and $996,000 and the net periodic postretirement medical benefit
cost for the years then ended by $71,000 and $72,000, respectively.
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12. Professional and General Liability Insurance Coverage

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital and Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic, along with Dartmouth College,
Cheshire Medical Center, The New London Hospital Association. Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health
Center, and the Visiting Nurse and Hospice for VT and NH are provided professional and general
liability insurance on a claims-made basis through Hamden Assurance Risk Retention Group, Inc.
(RRG), a VT captive insurance company. Effective November 1, 2018 Alice Peck Day Memorial
Hospital is provided professional and general liability insurance coverage through RRG. RRG
reinsures the majority of this risk to Hamden Assurance Company Limited (HAC), a captive
insurance company domiciled in Bermuda and to a variety of commercial reinsurers. Mary
Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic, and Dartmouth College have ownership
interests in both HAC and RRG. The insurance program provides coverage to the covered
institutions and named insureds on a modified claims-made basis which means coverage is
triggered when claims are made. Premiums and related insurance deposits are actuarlally
determined based on asserted liability claims adjusted for future development. The reserves for
outstanding losses are recorded on an undiscounted basis.

Selected financial data of HAC and RRG, taken from the latest available financial statements at
June 30, 2019 and 2018, are summarized as follows:

2019

(in thousands of dollars) HAC RRG Total

Assets $ 75,867 $ 2,201 $ 78,068
Shareholders'equity 13,620 50 13,670

2018

(in thousands of dollars) HAC RRG Total

Assets $ 72,753 $ 2.068 $ 74.821
Shareholders'equity 13,620 50 13,670

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation
The Health System is Involved In various malpractice claims and legal proceedings of a nature
considered normal to its business. The claims are in various stages and some may ultimately be
brought to trial. While it is not feasible to predict or determine the outcome of any of these claims,
it is the opinion of management that the final outcome of these claims will not have a material effect
on the consolidated financial position of the Health System.

Operating Leases and Other Commitments
The Health System teases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases with varying
expiration dates. The Health System's rental expense totaled approximately $12,707,000 and
$14,096,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Minimum future lease payments under noncancelable operating leases at June 30, 2019 were
as follows;

(in thousands of dollars)

2020 $ 11,342

2021 10.469

2022 7,488

2023 6,303
2024 4,127
Thereafter 5,752

$  45,481

Lines of Credit

The Health System has entered into Loan Agreements with financial institutions establishing
access to revolving loans ranging from $2,000,000 up to $30,000,000. Interest is variable and
determined using LIBOR or the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The Loan Agreements are due to
expire March 27, 2020. There was no outstanding balance under the lines of credit as of June 30,
2019 and 2018. Interest expense was approximately $95,000 and $232,000, respectively, and is
Included in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

14. Functional Expenses

Operating expenses are presented by functional classification in accordance with the overall
service missions of the Health System. Each functional classification displays all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Salaries, employee benefits, medical
supplies and medications, and purchased services and other expenses are generally considered
variable and are allocated to the mission that best aligns to the type of service provided. Medicaid
enhancement tax is allocated to program services. Interest expense is allocated based on usage
of debt-financed space. Depreciation and amortization is allocated based on square footage and
specific identification of equipment used by department.

Operating expenses of the Health System by functional and natural basis are as follows for the
year ended June 30, 2019:

2019

Program Management

(in thousands of dollars) Services and General Fundraising Total

Operating expenses
Salaries $  922,902 $  138,123 $  1,526 $  1,062,551

Employee benefits 178,983 72,289 319 251,591

Medical supplies and medications 406,782 1,093 - 407,875

Purchased services and other 212.209 108,783 2.443 323,435

Medicaid enhancement tax 70,061 - - 70,061

Depreciation and amortization 37,528 50,785 101 88,414

Interest 3,360 22,135 19 25,514

Total operating expenses $  1,831,825 $  393,208 $  4,408 $  2,229,441

Operating expenses of the Health System by functional classification are as follows for the year
ended June 30, 2018:
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(in thousands of dollars)

Program services $ 1.715,760
Management and general 303,527
Fundraising 2,354

$  2,021,641

15. Liquidity

The Health System is substantially supported by cash generated from operations. In addition, the
Health System holds financial assets for specific purposes which are limited as to use. Thus,
certain financial assets reported on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet may not be
available for general expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date.

The Health System's financial assets available at June 30, 2019 to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year of June 30, 2019 are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 143,587
Patient accounts receivable 221,125

Assets limited as to use 876,249

Other investments for restricted activities 134,119

Total financial assets 1,375,080

Less: Those unavailable for general expenditure
within one year:
Investments held by captive insurance companies 66,082
Investments for restricted activities 134,119

Other investments with liquidity horizons
greater than one year 97,063

Total financial assets available within one year $ 1,077,816

For the years ending June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, the Health System generated positive cash
flow from operations of approximately $161,853,000 and $136,031,000, respectively. In addition,
the Health System's liquidity management plan Includes investing excess daily cash in intermediate
or long term investments based on anticipated liquidity needs. The Health System has an available
line of credit of up to $30,000,000 which it can draw upon as needed to meet its liquidity needs.
See Note 13 for further details on the line of credit.

16. Subsequent Events

The Health System has assessed the impact of subsequent events through November 26, 2019,
the date the audited consolidated financial statements were issued, and has concluded that there

were no such events that require adjustment to the audited consolidated financial statements or
disclosure in the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements other than as noted below.

Effective September 30, 2019, the Boards of Trustees of D-HH, GraniteOne Health, Catholic
Medical Center Health Services, and their respective member organizations approved a
Combination Agreement to combine their healthcare systems. If regulatory approval of the
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transaction is obtained, the name of the new system will be Dartmouth-Hitchcock
Health GraniteOne.

The GraniteOne Health system is comprised of Catholic Medical Center (CMC), a community
hospital located in Manchester NH, Huggins Hospital located in Wolfeboro NH, and Monadnock
Community Hospital located in Peterborough NH. Both Huggins Hospital and Monadnock
Community Hospital are designated as Critical Access Hospitals. GraniteOne is a non-profit,
community based health care system.

On September 13, 2019, the Board of Trustees of D-HH approved the issuance of up to
$100,000,000 par of new debt. On October 17, 2019, D-HH closed on the direct placement tax-
exempt borrowing of $99,165,000 on behalf of the DHOG acting through the New Hampshire
Health and Education Facilities Authority and issued its DHOG Issue, Series 2019A Bonds.

On January 29, 2020, D-HH closed on a tax-exempt borrowing of $125,000,000 on behalf of the
DHOG acting through the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority and issued its
DHOG Issue. Series 2020A Bonds.

17. Subsequent Events - Unaudited

Subsequent to the issuance of the audited financial statements on November 26, 2019, the novel
strain of coronavirus emerged and in January 2020 the World Health Organization has declared the
novel coronavirus a Public Health Emergency of International Concern. Beginning in March 2020,
the State of New Hampshire and Vermont have adopted various measures to address the spread
of this pandemic, including supporting social distancing, requests to stay home unless necessary
(i.e., groceries or medications) and work from home recommendations. Such restrictions and the
perception that such orders or restrictions could occur, have resulted in business closures, work
stoppages, slowdowns and delays, work-from-home policies, travel restrictions and cancellation of
events, including the rescheduling of elective or non-critical procedures (which management
believes is temporary and such procedures will be performed at a later date) and redeployment of
resources to address the novel coronavirus needs, among other effects. The outbreak has also
negatively impacted the financial markets and has and may continue to materially affect the returns
on and value of our investments. While we expect that the novel coronavirus may negatively
impact our 2020 results, we believe we have sufficient liquidity to meet our operating and financing
needs; however, given the difficulty in predicting the ultimate duration and severity of the impact of
the novel coronavirus on our organization, the economy and the financial markets, the ultimate
impact may be material.
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Dartmouth- Chathira Alica Pack Haw London ML Ascutnay DH Obll0atad Ail Othar Non- Health

Hitchcock Dartmouth- Modical Day HospHai Hospital and Group Obllg Group System

(in ihousanCs o/<k3tars) Haalth KHcheock Canlar Memorial Association Haalth Carrtar EIlmlnBtioits Subtotal AfflOstss 0lmlnatlons Consolidated

AsMts

Cun^nt assats

Cast) and cast aqutvalants S  42.456 J  47.465 S  9.411 S  7.066 t  10.462 S  6,372 S S  125,232 S  18.355 8 •
8  143.587

Patiant accounts racatvaOte, nat - 160.938 15.880 7.279 8.960 5.010 216.067 3.058 •
221.125

PrapakJ axpansas and othar curani asaats 14.176 139.034 6.563 2.401 5.567 1.423 (74.0831 97.083 1.421 (3.009) 95.495

Total currant assats 56.654 367.437 33.854 16.746 24.989 14.805 (74,083) 440.382 22.834 (3.009) 460.207

Assats IMtad as to usa 92.602 688,445 18,759 12.664 12.427 11.619 - 836.576 30.673 - 876,249

Noias racaivabla. ralatad party 553,444 752 1.406 - - (554.236) 1.406 (V406) •

Odw invastmants for rastrictad activiiies . 91,882 6.970 31 2.973 6.323 - 106.179 25,940 •
134,119

Proparty. plant, and aquipmant. nat 22 432,277 67,147 30,945 41.946 17.797
•

590.134 31,122 621,256

Ottiar assais 24.864 108.208 1,279 15,019 6.042 4.388 (10.970) 148,830 (3.013) (21,346) 124.471

Total assats $  727.606 $  1.669,041 %  128,009 3  76,831 S  88,377 S  54.932 S  (639.289) $  2.125,507 8  115.150 8 (24.355) 8  2.216.302

Utb»ltl«t and Nat Aaaats

Currant liaMitlas

Currant portion of long-term datK
Currant portion of liability (or partsion artd
olhar postratiramani p(w benefits
Accounts payable and accrued expanses
Accrued compensation arxl ralatad banafits
Estbrutad tMrd-party satfiantents

8  - 8

55.499

6.226 8

3.468
99.884

110.839
26,405

830 8

15.620

5.851
103

954 8

6.209
3.694

1.290

.547 8

3.878

2.313

10.851

262 8

2.776

4.270

2.921

•  8

(74.083)

10,819 8

3,468
109,873

128.767
41.570

95 8

6.953
1,641

-  8

(3.009)

10.914

3.468
113.817

128,408
41.570

Total current UabiStias 55,499 248.622 22.404 12.237 17.589 10.229 (74.083) 292,497 8,689 (3,009) 298.177

Notes payalilo. ralatad party
Long-term debt, axduding currant portion
Insurance deposits and ralalad It8t>iliijas
UabHiiy for pension and other postratiramant
plan banafits, axduding current portion
Othar labUUas

643.257
526,202
44.820

56,786

266.427

98.201

24,503

440

10.262
1.104

35.604

513

28

28.034

643

388

1.585

11.465

240

4,320

(554.236)
(10.970) 749.322

58.367

261.009

100.918

2,858

40

23.218

752.180

58.407

281.009

124.136

Total ttablities 698.756 1.241.058 58.713 48.382 48.239 26,254 1639.289) 1.482.113 34.805 (3.009) 1.513.909

Commltmants and continoencias

Nat assats

Net sssats wlthoul donor restrictions

Net assets vKith dorwr restrictions

28.832
18

358.880
91.103

63.051
6.245

27.653
796

35.518
4.620

21,242
7.436

533,176
110.218

48.063
32.282

(21.306)
(40)

559.933

142.460

Total nal assais 28.850 447.983 69.296 28.449 40.138 28.678 . 643,394 80.345 (21.346) 702.393

Total liabditias and nal assais 8  727,606 8 1.689.041 8 128.009 8 78.831 8 86.377 8 54.932 8 (639,289) 8 2.125,507 8 115,150 8 (24.355) 8 2.216,302
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries

Consolidating Balance Sheets
June 30, 2019

D-HH Health

and Other D-H and Cheshire and NLH and MAHHCand APD and VNH and System

On thousands ot dottars) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

ASMt*

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents % 42,456 % 48,052 S 11,952 $ 11,120 % 8,549 $ 15,772 S 5,686 8 - 8 143,587

Patient accounts recetvaUe, net - 160.938 15,880 8,960 5,060 7,280 3,007 - 221,125

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 14,178 139.832 9,460 5,567 1.401 1,678 471 (77,092) 95,495

Total curent assets 56,634 368.822 37,292 25,647 15,010 24,730 9,164 (77,092) 460,207

Assets limited as to use 92,602 707.597 17,383 12,427 12,738 12,685 20,817 - 876.249

Notes receivable, related party 553,484 752 - • - - -
(554,236) -

Other investments for restricted activities . 99,807 24,985 2,973 6,323 31 - - 134.119

Property, plant, and equipment, net 22 434,953 70.846 42,423 19.435 50,338 3,239 - 621.256

Other assets 24.864 108.366 7.388 5,476 1,931 8.688 74 (32.316) 124.471

Total assets S 727.606 $ 1.720,297 % 157,894 $ 88,946 % 55,437 $ 96,472 $ 33,294 S (663.644) 8 2.216,302

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities

Current portion of lonq-lerm debt $ - $ 8,226 i 830 $ 547 % 288 $ 954 $ 69 S - 8 10,914

Current portion of liability for pertsion artd
other postretirement plan trertefits • 3,468 - - - - - - 3,468

Accounts payable arid accrued expenses 55.499 100,441 19.356 3,879 2,856 6,704 2,174 (77.092) 113,817

Accnjed compensation and related benefits • 110,639 5.851 2,313 4,314 4,192 1,099 -
128,408

Estimated third-party settlements - 26,405 103 10.851 2.921 1,290 - - 41.570

Total current liatrilities 55.499 249,179 26,140 17,590 10,379 13,140 3,342 (77,092) 298.177

Notes payable, related party . 526,202 . 28.034 - - (554,236) -

LonQ-term debt, exctudir>g current portion 643,257 44,820 24,503 643 11,763 35,604 2,560 (10,970) 752.180

Insurartce deposits and related llabiiities - 56,786 440 388 240 513 40 • 58.407

Liability for pension and other postretirement
plan benefits, exdudir>g current portion - 266,427 10,262 • 4,320 • • - 281,009

Other liabilities . 96,201 1,115 1.585 . 23,235 - - 124,136

Total liatxiilies 698,756 1,241,615 62,460 48.240 26,702 72,492 5,942 (642.298) 1,513,909

Commitments and continger>des

Net assets

Net assets without dorwr restrictions 28,832 379,498 65,873 36,087 21,300 22,327 27,322 (21,306) 559,933

Net assets with donor restrictions 18 99,184 29,561 4,619 7,435 1,653 30 (40) 142,460

Total net assets 28.850 478,682 95,434 40,706 28,735 23.980 27,352 (21.346) 702,393

Total Babilities and net assets $ 727,606 S 1.720,297 157,894 $ 88,946 % 55,437 $ 96.472 $ 33,294 S (663.644) 8 2,216,302
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OocuSign Envelope 10: 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets
June 30, 2018

Dartmouth- Cheshire New London ML Ascutney OH Obligated All Other Non- Health

Hitchcock Dartmouth- Medical Hospital Hospital and Group Obllg Croup System

(7/) thousands ofdota/s) Health Hitchcock Center Association Health Center Eliminations Subtotal Affiliates Eliminations Consolidated

A«s«u

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalenls $ 134.634 S 22.544 S 6.668 $ 9.419 S 6.604 $ - $ 179.689 S 20.280 $ • $ 200.169

Patient accounts receivable, net . 176.981 17,183 8.302 5.055 - 207,521 11.707 • 219.228

Prepaid expenses artd other current assets 11.964 143.893 6.551 5.253 2.313 172.3611 97.613 4.766 (4,877) 97.502

Total current assets 146.598 343.418 30.422 22.974 13.972 (72.361) 485.023 36.753 (4.877) 516.899

Assets limited as to use 8 616.929 17,438 12.821 10.829 - 658.025 48.099 • 706.124

Notes receivable, related party 554.771 . • - - (554.ni) - - • -

Other Investments for restricted activities . 87.613 6.591 2.981 6.238 - 105.423 25,473 • 130.896

Property, plant, and equipment, net 36 443.154 66.759 42.438 17.356 • 569.743 37,578 - 607,321

Other assets 24.863 101.078 1.370 5.906 4.280 (10.970) 126.527 3.604 (21.3461 108,785

Total assets $ 726.276 $ 1.592.192 s 124.580 $ 87.120 $ 52.675 S (638.102) $ 1.944.741 $ 151.507 S (26.223) $ 2.070.025

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities

Current portion of long^erm debt $ . S 1.031 s 610 $ 572 s 187 5 - S 2,600 S 864 s - $ 3.464

Currerti portion of liatrUity for pension and •

other postretirement plw benefits - 3.311 • - - • 3.311 • - 3.311

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 54.995 82.061 20,107 6.705 3.029 (72.361) 94.536 6.094 (4.877) 95.753

Accrued compensatian artd related bertelUs - 106.485 5.730 2.487 3.796 - 118.498 7.078 - 125.576

Estimated ttWparty settlements 3.002 24.411 . 9.655 1.625 • 38.693 2.448 •
41.141

Total current BablGties 57,997 217.299 26.647 19.419 8.637 (72.381) 257.638 16,484 (4.877) 269.245

Notes payable, related party • 527.346 . 27.425 . (554.771) . • - -

Lonp-lerm debt, exdudirtg current portion 644.520 52.876 25.354 1.179 11.270 (10.970) 724.231 28,744
• 752.975

Insurance deposits end related labilities . 54.616 465 155 240 -
55.476 40 - 55.516

Liability for pension and other postretirement •

plan benefits, excluding current portion - 232.696 4.215 • 5.316 - 242.227 - - 242.227

Other Hablities . 85.577 1.107 1.405 - - 88.089 38 - 68.127

Total labilities 702.517 1.170.412 67.788 49.583 25.463 (638.102) 1,367.661 45.300 (4.877) 1,408,090

Commitments and contingencies

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions 23.759 334.882 61.628 32.897 19.812 - 473.178 72.230 (21.306) 524,102

Net assets with donor restrictions . 66.898 4.964 4.640 7.400 - 103.902 33.971 (40) 137,833

Total net assets 23.759 421.780 66.792 37.537 27.212 . 577.080 106.201 (21.346) 661,935

Total labilities artd net assets $ 726.276 s 1.592.192 $ 124.580 $ 87.120 s 52.675 S (636.102) 5 1.944.741 s 151.507 $ (26.223) S 2.070,025
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheets

D-HH Health

and Other D-H and Cheshire and NLH and MAHHC and VNH and System

fin thousands of debars) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries APO Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

ASMtS

Current essets

Cash arrd cash equivalents S 134.634 S 23.094 S 8.621 8 9.982 8 6.654 8 12.144 8 5.040 8 - 8 200.169

Patient accounts receivable, net . 176.981 17.183 8.302 5.109 7.996 3.657 -
219.228

Prepaid expenses and other currern assets 11,964 144.755 5.520 5.276 2.294 4,443 488 177.238) 97.502

Total current assets 146.598 344.830 31.324 23.560 14.057 24,583 9,185 (77.238) 516.699

Assets limited as to use 8 635.028 17,438 12.821 11.862 9,612 19,355 - 706,124

Notes receivable, related party 554,771 . • ■ - - - (554.771)
-

Other investments for restricted activities . 95.772 25,873 2.981 6,238 32 - -
130,896

Property, plant and equipment r>et 36 445.829 70.607 42.920 19,065 25,725 3.139
-

607,321

Other assets 24.863 101.235 7.526 5.333 1.886 130 126 (32.316) 108,785

Total assets $ 726.276 S 1.622,694 $ 152,768 S 87.615 8 53.108 8 60,082 8 31.807 8 (664.325) 8 2,070.025

Uabilltie* and Net Assets

Current liabilities

Current portion of lorrg-term debt s - s 1.031 i 810 8 572 8 245 8 739 8 67 8 - 8 3,464

Current portion of liability for pension and
other postretirement plan benefits - 3,311 - - - - -

- 3,311

Accounts payaUe ar>d accrued expenses 54,995 62,613 20.052 6,714 3,092 3,596 1,929 (77.238) 95,753

Accrued compensation and related berreflts - 106.485 5.730 2.487 3,831 5,814 1,229
-

125,576

Estimated third-party settlements 3,002 24.411 - 9,655 1,625 2,448 - - 41,141

Total current liatxiities 57.997 217.851 26.592 19.428 8,793 12,597 3.225 (77,238) 269.245

Notes payable, related party - 527.346 - 27.425 - - - (554.771) -

Long-term debt exduding cunent portion 644.520 52.878 25.354 1.179 11.593 25,792 2.629 (10.970) 752.975

Irrsurance deposits and related liabilities • 54.616 465 155 241
-

39 - 55,516

Liability for pension arrd otfter postretirement
plan bertefits. exduding current portion • 232.696 4.215 - 5.316 - - •

242,227

Other liabilities . 85.577 1.117 1.405 - 28 - - 88.127

Total liabilities 702.517 1.170,964 57,743 49.592 25.943 38,417 5.893 (642.979) 1,408.090

Commitments ar>d contirtgendes

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions 23.759 356.518 65.069 33,363 19,764 21,031 25,884 (21,306) 524,102

Net assets with donor restrictions . 95,212 29.956 4,640 7,401 634 30 (40) 137.833

Total net assets 23.759 451.730 95.025 38,023 27,165 21,665 25.914 (21,346) 661.935

Total liabilities and net assets s 726.276 s 1.622,694 % 152.768 8 87.615 8 53,108 8 60.082 8 31.807 8 (664.325) 8 2.070.025
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 22E1D175-C472-43AE.AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2019

(h tAouMod* el deltn}

Op*nting r»v«nu« ind ottttr tup port
Patwni t«rv<ct rpvtnu*

Centncitd rtvtnu*

OBmt epanting r«««nu«
N«( ititU ratoiMd from rottrtctiont

Tout oparolino rtvanut and ofhar tuppoft

Opanting azpanaat
Salariai

Empleyaa banaftu
Ma<tesl tuppliat and madieationt
Purehatad tarvteaa and oOtar

Madlcaid anhancamant lax

Oapradatten and amortkaiidn
Iniarati

Total oparatino axpanaat

Opa rating (tott) margin

Nenoparatino galrtt (toaaai)
Invasanani incoma (lotaa*). nat
Othar (iMtat) incoma. nat
Lett on aaily aidhguiahmant el daPt
Let* on awap lamAtaiien

Total non^parating g^ (btaat). nat

(Dafidancy) axcait el ravanua evar ai^antai

Nat aaaata without donor tatliiction*

Nat attatt ralaaaad from raitiictions

Changa in furtdad itatui of paniion and oihar
pottratiramant banaflti
N*i attoi* irantfarrad to (from) aflMatet
AddMonal paid in capital
Other changa* in nat ataat*

Changa in lair vafcia en intaratt rat* twapt
Changa in tundad ttatui e( iniarast rat* twapt

Incnata in nat attatt wHhout donor rataiaion* 5,07 21.098 0.822 2.021

Dartmouth- Chathira Alice PMk Maw London ML Aacutnay DH Obligatad AlOtharNon. Health

HHehcock Oarttnouth- Madcal Day Hoaphal HoapKal and Croup Oblig Croup Smtam

Haalth Hitehceek Cantar Memorial Aaaociation Haalth Conlar Elltninallons Subtotal AfflVitai 0imlnatient Conaelidatad

0 $  1.580,552 t  220,255 S  09.794 $  00.160 5  40.029 $ S  1,970.796 5  22,527 t S  1.999.323

5.011 109,051 355 . 5.902 (46.100) 74.219 790 0 75,017

21.120 100,052 3.407 1,740 4.201 2.289 (22.070) 197,609 13,300 (297) 210.098

309 11.550 732 137 177 24 12,995 1,110 14.105

20.508 1.880.011 224.749 71 079 04.004 54.244 108.176) 2201019 37.013 (289) 2 299.143

808.311 107.071 37,297 30.549 20.514 (24.082) 1.045,600 15.705 l.lOO 1.062,551

208.340 24.225 0.454 5,434 0.960 P.703) 247.002 3.042 207 251.591

354.201 34,331 0.034 0,298 3.032 . 400.496 1.379 407.875

11.300 242.100 35,008 15.306 13,528 13.950 (21.170) 310.170 14.887 (1.022) 323.435

. 54,954 8,005 3.062 2.204 1,770 . 70.001 70.001

14 09,343 7,977 2.305 3.915 2.300 . 05.914 2.500 08.414

20.077 21.585 1,053 1.109 1.119 220 (20,050) 24,981 533 25.514

32.057 1.818.840 218.350 74.229 03.107 54.820 (70.471) 2.190 944 38.720 (229) 2.229.441

15.5491 09.105 0.399 12.550) 1.497 (582) 2.295 70.075 (913) (60) 09.702

3,929 32.193 227 409 034 023 0»8) 38.077 1.975 40.052

(3,704) 1.580 (»87) 30 (2«) 279 (2.097) (4.413) 791 00 P.562)

• •
(07)

-

(07)
.

(07)

145 33.779 40 412 594 902 (2,295) 33.577 2.706 00 30.403

(5,404) 102.944 0.439 (2.130) . 2,091 320 104252 1.053
-

100,105

. 419 SOS
•

402 310
-

1,704 65 1.769

. (05.005) (7.720) . 002 . (72,043) . (72.043)

10.477 (10,380) 1,939 S.700 128 110
•

5.054 (5.054)
-

35.031
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OocuSign Envelope ID; 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2019

On 0>ovs»n<}s of^oHtrs)

Operating ravenut and other support

Patient service revenue

Contracted revenue

Other operating revenue

Net assets released from restrictions

Total operating revenue end other support

Operating expanses
Salaries

Employee beneHts
Medical supplies end medications
Purchased services and other

Medicaid enhancement tax

Depredation and amortization

Interest

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss) margbt

Non-operating gains (losses)
Investment income (losses), net
Other (losses) irrcome. net

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

Loss on swap termination

Total nonoperating gains (losses), net

(Defldency) excess of revenue over expenses

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets released from restrtctions

Change in furtded status of pension and other
postretirenteni benefits

Net assets transferred to (from) affiSates
Additional paid in capital
Other changes in net assets

Change in fair value on interest rate swaps
Change in funded status of interest rats swaps

Increase In net assets without donor restrictions

D-HH Health

and Other D-H and Cheshire and NLH and MAHHC and APO and VNH and System

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Sut>sidlarlas Eliminations Consolidated

$ $  1,580,552 $  220,254 S  60,166 8  46,029 S  69,794 $  22,528 8 . 8  1,999,323

S.010 109,842 355 . 5,902 - • (46,092) 75,017

21,128 188,775 3,549 4,260 3,868 10,951 540 (22,373) 210,698

371 12,637 732 177 26 162 - - 14,105

26.500 1,891,806 224.890 64,603 55.825 80.907 23.068 (68.465) 2.299,143

868,311 107,708 30,549 27,319 40,731 11,511 (23,576) 1,062,551

. 208.346 24,235 5,434 7,133 7,218 2,701 (3,476) 251,591

. 354,201 34,331 6,298 3,035 8,639 1,371 - 407,875

11.366 246,101 35,396 13,390 14,371 18,172 7,437 (22,798) 323,435
. 54,954 8,005 2,264 1,776 3,062 - • 70,061

14 69,343 8,125 3,920 2,478 4,194 340 • 88,414

20,678 21,585 1,054 1.119 228 1,637 63 (20.850) 25,514

32,056 1.822,841 218,852 62,974 56,340 83,653 23,423 (70,700) 2,229,441

(5.549) 68,965 6,038 1,629 (515) (2,746) (355) 2,235 69,702

3.929 33,310 129 785 645 469 983 (198) 40,052

(3,784) 1,586 (171) (240) 288 31 765 (2,037) (3.562)

• •
■

(87) ■ -

(87)

145 34.696 (42) 545 933 413 1,748 (2,235) 36,403

(5,404) 103,861 5,996 2,174 418 (2,333) 1,393
-

106,105

•
484 565 402 318

- • -
1,769

. (65,005) (7,720) . 682 . . (72,043)

10,477 (16,360) 1,963 128 118 3,629 45

$  5.073 $  22,980 S  804 S  2,704 $  1,536 $  1,296 8  1.438 8 8  35.831
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Dartmouth- Cheshire New London ML Aseutney DH Obligated All Other Non Health

Hlteheoek Dartmouth- Medtoal Hospital Hospital and Oroup ObUg Oroup System

(in Uwusands otOoBars) Health Hiteheeek Center Association Health Center EOmlnatlons Subtotal AfflUates Eliminations CoctsoUdated

Opcnting r*v*nu« and othar support
9  1.899.095Pattern service ravarwo 9 9  1,475.314 9  216.736 9  60.466 9 52.014 9 9  1,804.550 9  94.545 9 •

Provision for bad debts . 31,358 10.967 1,554 1,440 - 45.319 2.048 - 47.367

Net patient service revertue . 1,443.656 205.766 58,932 50,574
•

1,756.231 62.497
-

1.851,728

Contracted revenue (2.305) 97.261 - - 2,166 (42,870) 54.285 716 (32) 54.666

Other operatino revenue 9.796 134.461 3.365 4.169 1,814 (10,554) 143.054 6.678 (1.086) 148,946

Net assets released from rastrictiorts 658 11.605 620 52 44 - 12.979 482 • 13,461

Total operatirtg reveraje end other support B.I 52 1.687.313 209,754 63.153 54.601 (53.424) 1.666.549 100.673 (1.118) 2.069,104

Operating expenses
1,605 986.263Sataries . 806,344 105,607 30.360 24.854 (21.542) 945,623 42.035

Employee barteftts . 181,833 28,343 7.252 7.000 (5.385) 216.043 10,221 419 229.683

Medical statpUes and medicatiorts . 286,327 31.293 6.161 3.055 - 329.836 10.195 •
340.031

Purchased services and other 8,506 215,073 33.065 13,587 13.660 (16.394) 264.800 29.360 (2.818) 261.372

Medlcaid enhancement tax - 53.044 8.070 2.659 1.744 - 65.517 2.175 •
67.662

Depredation and amortization 23 66.073 10.217 3,934 2.030 -
82.277 2.501 - 84.778

Interest 8 664 15.772 1.004 681 224 (8,882) 17.783 1.036 • 18,822

1

1
•

17.216 1,627.466 217.566 64.934 52,867 (55,203) 1.624.876 67.556 (794) 2.021,641

Operating mar;^ (loss) (9.064) 59.647 (7.845) (1.781) 1,734 1.776 44,670 3,117 (324) 47.483

Non<opersting gains (losses)
40.387Investmen Income (losses), net (26) 33,628 1,408 1.151 858 (198) 36.621 3,566

-

Other (losses) IrKome. r>ot (1,364) (2.596) - 1,276 266 (1.561) (4.002) 733 361 (2.908)

Loss on early extinguishment of debt • (13,606) - (305) • -

(14.214)
- •

(14.214)

Loss on swap termination . (14.247) . - - - (14.247) - - (14.247)

Total norxperating gaira (losses), net (1.390) 2.873 1.408 2.122 1.124 (1.776) 4.358 4.299 361 6,018

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses (10.454) 62.720 (6.437) 341 2.856
-

49.028 7.416 37 56.481

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net esseu released from restrictions • 16.038 • 4 252 •
16.294 16

•
16,313

Change in lurvled status of pension arxl other
8,254posiretiremenl benefits - 4.300 2.627

•
1,127 8.254

• •

Net assets transferred to (from) affiliates 17,791 (25.355) 7.188 48 328
• • • •

Additional paid in capital - - - • - •
58 (58)

•

Ottw ctwiges in rtet assets - - - • - •
(165)

-
(185)

Chertge in fair value on interest rate swaps • 4,190 • - •
4,190

• •
4,190

Chartge in furtded status of iruerest rate swaps . 14.102 • - -
14,102 • - 14,102

Inaease in net assaU without donor restrictions $  7.337 9  75.665 9  3,578 9  393 9 4.565 9 9  91,868 9  7,308 9 (21) 9  96.155
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DocuSign Envelope 10: 22E1O175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Year Ended June 30, 2018

fin thousands 0/ doOers)

Operating revenu* and other support
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service reveruje

Contracted revenue

Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Total operating revenue and other support

Operating expenses
Salaries

Employee berwfHs
Medical supplies and medications
Purchased services and other

Medicaid enhancement tax

Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss) margin

Nonoperating gains (losses)
Investment Income (losses), net
Other (losses) income, net
Loss on earty extinguishment of debt
Loss on swap tenrdnation

Total norvoperating gains (losses), net

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses

Net assets without donor rastrlctlons

Net assets released from restrictions

Change in funded status of pension and other
postretlrement benefits
Net assets transferred to (from) affiliates
Additional paid in ca;^al
Other changes in net assets
Change in fair value on interest rate swaps
Change In funded status of interest rate swaps

Increase (decrease) In net assets without
donor restrictions

D-HH Haatth

and Other 041 and Cheshire and NLH and MAKHC and VNHand System

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries APD Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

$ %  1.475.314 S  216,736 S  60,466 $ 52.014 S 71,456 S  23,087 $ . t  1,899.095

. 31.358 10,967 1.554 1.440 1,680 368 -
47.367

. 1.443.956 205,769 58.932 50,574 69,778 22,719 -
1.851.728

(2.305) 98.W7 . - 2,169 . - (42.902) 54.969

9.799 137.242 4.061 4.166 3,168 1,697 453 (11.640) 148.946

656 11.984 620 52 44 103 - - 13,461

6.152 1.691.189 210.450 63.150 55.955 71.578 23.172 (54.542) 2.069.104

606,344 105,607 30,360 25,592 29,215 12.082 (19,937) 989.263
. 161.633 28.343 7,252 7,162 7,406 2,653 (4.966) 229.683
. 269.327 31,293 6,161 3.057 8,484 1,709 • 340,031

8.512 218.690 33,431 13,432 14,354 19,220 5,945 (22.212) 291,372
. 53.044 8,070 2.659 1,743 2,176 • - 67,692

23 66.073 10.357 3.939 2,145 1.831 410 - 84.778

8.684 15,772 1.004 981 223 975 65 (8.882) 18,822

17.219 1,631,083 216.105 64.784 54.276 69.307 22.864 (55.997) 2,021.641

(9.067) 60,106 (7.655) (1.634) 1,679 2.271 308 1.455 47.463

(26) 35,177 1,954 1.097 767 203 1.393 (198) 40,387

(1,364) (2.599) (3) 1,276 273 (223) 952 (1.220) (2,908)

(13.909) . (305) • - - •
(14,214)

. (14.247) . -
-

- - - - (14.247)

(1.390) 4.422 1.951 2.068 1,060 (20) 2.345 (1,418) 9.018

(10.457) 64,528 (5.704) 434 2.739 2.251 2.653 37 56.481

- 16,058
-

4 251
- - •

16.313

4,300 2,827 . 1.127 . . . 6.254

17,791 (25.355) 7,186 46 328 - - - -

56 . . • - - (58) -

. . . . • (185) - - (185)

. 4.190 . . - - - - 4,190

. 14.102 . . - • - - 14,102

S  7,392 $  77,823 5  4.311 $  466 $ 4,445 S 2.066 %  2,653 % (21) S  99.155
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Supplemental Consolidating Information
June 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying supplemental consolidating information includes the consolidating balance
sheet and the consolidating statement of operations and changes in net assets without donor
restrictions of D-HH and its subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions between D-
HH and its subsidiaries have been eliminated. The consolidating information presented is prepared
on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America consistent with the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated
financial statements and is not required as part of the basic financial statements.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

F*dtnl Prognm
Riiflwch and Davtlopmtnt Clutlar
OapartfiMM of D*(*nM
Nattonal Cuaid Miftary Opantiont and Uaimananea (O&M) Pnjacts

MStary Uadeal RaMarch and Oavatopmani
Mlttary Madkal RaMarch and Oavalopmem

Oaparvnanl of Dafarva

Environmantal RroMctton Aganey
Sdanca To Aeiaava Raaulti (STAR) Raaaareh Program

Oapartmaflt of Haalth ai>d Human $arv4eaa
fnnovationa In Appiad Pubie HaaKh RaMarch

Envirenmantaf HaaRh

Environmantal Haatt)

NtEHS SuparAmd Hazardeua Sutraiartcai
HaaRh Prc^m for Toxic SubataiKai attd OiMOM RagUiry
Rasaarch Ralatad to Oaafnati and Communication Oiaordara

Natienal RaMarch SartAea Award in Primary Cara Madidna

Rataarch and Trainirtg In Complamantary and tntagrativa HaaRh
RaMarch and Training in Com|3lamantary and Intagraiiva HaaRh
Raaaareh and Training in Compiamantary attd Intagrathra HaaRh
Rataarch and Training in CompiarTMntary artd Intagrativa HaaRh

Rataarch on HaaRhcara Coats, OuaRty artd Ovicomai
RoMarch on HaaRhcara Costs, Ouaity artd OvtcariMi
RoMotch on HaaRhcara Costs, Ouaity and ̂ rtcomat

Mamal HaaRh

Manul HaaRh

Mantai HaaRh

Manul HaaRh

Manul HaaRh

Manul HaaRh

Manul HaaRh

Manul HaaRh

Manul HaaRh

RaMarch Grants

RoMarch Grants

RaMarch GranU

RaMarch Grams

Rataarch Grants

RaMarch Grants

RaMarch Grama

RaMarch Grants

Rasaarch Grants

t2.420

t2.420

93.061

93.lt3

03.tt3

93.143

93.161

93.173

93.186

93J13

93.213

93.213

93.213

93.226

93.226

93.226

93.242

93.242

93.242

93.242

93.242

93.242

93,242

93.242

93.242

Award Numbatfpaat'tfirovgh
Idantiflcation Numbar

VM1XWHte20076

VVeiXVAtt8l0712

R1t43

3I220SU8S296S

I ROt T$000268

6K23ES02S7ai-06

R1118

R1099

AtA000010S23

6R21DC015t33-03

T32HP32520

Rt1l2

R1187

12272

Not Providad

5P30HS024403

R1128

R1t46

tK08MH1t7347-01A1

6K23MH116367472

6R01MK110966

6T32MH0735S3-1S

6R2SMH068S02-t7

6R01MH107e2S05

Rt082

Rt144

R11$6

Funding Seurea

DIraet

Oiract

Past-Through

Pass-Ttirough

Pats-Through

Oiract

Oiract

Piti-TTirough

Patt-TTtrough
Oiract

Oiract

Oiract

- Past-Through
Pttt-Threugh
Pttt-Through
Pats-Through

Oiract

Pata-Throvgh
Pats-Through

Oiraet

Oiract

Oiraci

Oiract

Okaa

Oiraet

Pass-TTirough
PasvThrough
Pats-TTuough

Paat-Threugh
Entity

Truslaaa of Oartmoufh Colaga

Craara, inc.

Univarstty of Varmem

Truaiaat of Oartmeuih Cc6aga

Truttaai c< OarVnouth Cdaga

Tiutiaas of OartmouSt Cdaga
Trustaaa of Oartmoulh CcRaga
Patmar Co6aga of Cltkoprsctic
Southern Caifomia Univtrtily of HaaRh

Truslaaa of Oanmoudi Coiega
TrutUat of Dar«nou9i Co6oga

Trustoaa of Oonmeuth CoBega
Trustaaa of Dortmouih Coiago
Trustaaa of Dartmouth CofMga

Amount

Tout Paasod Through
Ezpondlturaa to Subiaclploi'iU

S  234 630 S

131.525

2.055

133.560

46.275

414.485

1.031

1.031

84,057 8.367

111,125

5 087

116,212

6,457

61,180

119.896 61.908

309.112

21.197

446

30.746
12.030

64.421

641.114
6,003
4.696

651.613

54.211

109.228

220,076 84,623

130.340

157.599

200.805 27.964

11.740

5.897
4.721

894.617 tt2.787
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Drug ADuM end Addctlen ReMareft Program*
Drug ADuM and Addcdon Rasaaret) Progr am*
Drug ACuaa and ArUcdon R***ar«ti Program*
Drug AOuM and Addkdon Ra*aarcn Program*
Drug AAu** and AddWfon R*»*arcft Program*
Drug Abut* and Addcdon R«**ateh Progmn»

OUeovtry and Appdad R**aareft for Taehrwlogical Innovatton* to
Improvo Human H*alBi
D(*c«v«ry and Appdad R***aioh lor T*ennelegk*l Innevaden* to
Improv* Human HaalDt
DUcovtry artd Appi*d Raaaarch lor TacArtcfoglcai Inrtevadoru to
Improv* Human H«am
Diteovaiy and Appiad R**«*rcx for Tachrwfoglcal Innovatwn* lo
Improv* Human HaaUi

National Cantor ler Advandng Transtadonal Sdanea*
21 (I Cantury Cura* Act - Baau BIdan Cartear Meottattei

Cartcar Cau** artd Pr«v«n0on Rataartfi

Cancar Cauta artd Pravandon Raaaarclt

Canear Cau** and Pravandon Rataamft

Cartear Cau** and Pravandon Ra«aaren

Cartcar Cau»* and Pravandon Raaaarch

Canear Cau** aitd Pravandon Rataareti

Cartcar Cauaa and Pravandon Raaaarch

Cancar Cauaa and Pravandon Raaaarch

Cancar Dalaeden artd

Cartcar Oatacdon and

Cartcar Oatacdonartd

Cartcar Datacdon artd

Cartcar Datacdcn artd

Cartcar Oatacdon and

Cartcar Datacdcn and

Cartcar Datacdon and

Diagrto*!*
Diagno*!*
Oiagrteali
Diagneti*
Olagrtosis
Olagctoai*
01*910*1*
Diagno*!*

Raaaarch

Rataardi

Raaaarch

Raaaarch

Raaaarch

Raaaarch

Raaaarch

Raaaarch

Cancar Traalmant Raaaarch

Cancar Traatmant RaaaatOi

Cancar Traatmant Raaaarch

Atvard Numbarfpaaa^hrough Paaa-Through Tout Pasaad Throug

CFDA Idantincation Numbar Funding Source Entity Expandtturaa to Subraelpianti

93^79 6R010A034699-05 Diraa 390.647 90.965

93^79 6R21DA04450t.03 Oiraet 118,741 •

93^79 6R010A(l4t41»«4 Olract 135.687 62.277

93.279 R1105 Paaa-Thrautpt Tnm*** d OardneuOi Cciaga 11,957 •

93.279 RtIM PaavThroufp Trust*** d OardTBUIh Cctaga 4,109 •

93.279 Rn92 Paa^Through Tnrst*** d Oartmouih Colaga 5.059

666.200 153.262

93.2te 6K23EB026S07.02 Diract 96.499 9.582

93.2W 6R2IEB02t4S6-03 Diract 23.293

93.286 Rt103 Pias-Through Truataa* d Oanmoudi Co4aga 16,635

93.286 5R2lEB02477l-«2 Paaa-Through Truttaaa d Oacdnouth Ce9aga 5.936

144.365 9.582

93.3S0 R1113 Pa**-Throu|^ Tniaiaas d Oartmouih Ceiaga 342.790

93.353 t20490l Paaa-Through Dana Farbar Cartear btstButa 166.421

93.393 tR01C,A22S793 Odact 54.351

93J93 R21CA227776A Odaet 28.640

93.393 R0t(>229197 Diract 65.701

93.393 Rt127 Pa»a-Throu^ Tniaiaa* d Dartmouth Co9aga 6.035

93.393 RI097 Paaa-Threu^ Tniaiaa* d Oartmouih Colaga 5.170

93.393 Rt109 .Paaa-Throuf^ Trust*** d OartmoirSi Colaga 1.984

93.393 DHMCCA222648 1 Paaa-Throuf^ Tha Panntytvania Siaia Unlvarslly 3.173

93.393 R44CA210810 Paaa-Through Calm Surgical, LLC 38241

203.995

93.394 4R0OCAt9O690-O3 Odacl 1.7t7

93.394 6R37CA2t 2187-03 Oiraci 106,110 2.907

93.394 6R03CA2I9445-03 Odaci 18,880

93.394 R1079 Paaa-Through Trust*** d Oartmeudt Coiaga 23.031

93.394 R1080 Paaa-Through Trustaas d Dartmouth Ceiaga 23,031

93.394 R1086 Paaa-Through Trust*** d OartmouVi Coiaga 6,772

93.394 R1096 Paaa-Through Trust*** d Dafdnouli Ceiaga 1,174

93.394 R1t24 Paaa-Threu^ Truataa* d DartmouOi Ceiaga 63.174

263.869 2.907

93.395 tUG1CA233323-0t Diract 14,675

93.395 6UI0CA1SO654-O6 Diract 27.790

93.395 0AC-t94321 Paaa-Throu^ UayoClnic 36.708
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Award Numbarfpati^hrough
Idantifieatfen Numbar Funding Sourca

Paaa-Througtt

Entity

Total

Expandlturaa

Amount

Paisad Througti
to Subracipiant*

Canear Traasmnt Raaaardi

Canearlraaimant RaMardi

Canear Cantara Support Grants

Car4ovtseular OUaasaa Rasaatdi

Cardovttcular Diaaasat Rasaarcti

Lung Oiaaaaaa Raaaartdi
ArthrlBa. Muacubakalatal and Skin Oiaaaaaa Raaaardi

Oiabaiai, Oigaativa, and Kidnty Oiaaaaaa Extramural Raaaardi

&aramural Raaaardi Ptograma in Bia Neuroadaneaa
and Naurological DtaortMrs
Eidramural Raaaardi Ptograma in lha Nauroaciancat
and Naurelegicd Diaordara

Alatvy and Mactioua Oiaaaaaa Raaaardi
Margy and kdacdoua Oiaaaaaa Raaaardi
Alargy and Macdoua Oiaaaaaa Raaaardi

Diomadkal Raaaardi and Raaaardi Trailing
Biomadieal Raaaardi and Raaaardi TraMng
Biomadical Raaaardi and Raaaardi Trailing

Child HaalOi and Human Oavoiopmani Extramural Raaaardi
CAW HadBi and Hunan Davalopmani Extramural Raaaardi
ChW HaaMi and Human Davtioiamani Exiramurd Raaaardi
ChW Hadai and Hunan DavalopmofU Extramurd Raaaardi
ChW Haddi and Hunan Oawatopmant Exttamurd Raaaardi

A(m Raaaardi
Agiig Raaaardi

NAaion Raaaardi

Uadkal Library Aiaittanca
Madkal Library Aasiaianca

Intamational Raaaardi and Raaaardi TraMng
Intamatknal Rataard and Rtaaard TraMng

93.)S5

93.39S

93.937

93.937

93.939

93.949

93.947

93.9S3

93.953

93.955

93.955

93.955

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.995

93.995

93.965

93.665

93.865

93.866

93.666

93.679

93.679

93.989

93.969

R1087

t10408

tUMtHLt47371-01

7K23HL142835-02

6R0lHim372-05

6T32ARCM9710-16

RI098

6R01NSOS2274-11

16-21095KI4

R108I

RES5I3934

R115S

RtlOO

R1U1

Rn45

SP2CH0066641-04

6UG1OD02494643

6R01HD067270

Rni9

51460

6K23AG051661-04

H1I02

6R21EY026677-02

R1107

Rt190

RII23

6R2STVim76934)9

Paaa-Throu^
Paaa-Throu^

Paaa-Thtough

Oiad

Oiad

Oiaei

Oiaet

Paaa-Through

Oiad

Oiad

Paaa-Thfough
Paaa-Through
Paaa-Through

Paaa-Thtough
Paaa-Through
Paaa-Through

Oract

Oiaci

Diact

Paaa-Throu(^
Paaa-Through

Oiad

Paaa-Through

Paaa-Through
Paaa-Through

Paaa-Through
Paaa-Through

Truaiaaa ol Oanmeinh Ce9aga
Btigham and Vkman'a Heipitd

Tniaiaaa el Oartnouih CeWga

Truataaa ol Oartmoulh CeWga

Truataaa of Oartmeun Co9aga
Caaa Waatam Raaarva IMwaraily
Truataaa of Dartmouth Ceiaga

Truataaa ol Oarbmuth CoWga
Truataaa ol Oatbnouth CeWga
Truataaa el Oartmouth CeWga

Truaiaaa of Dartmouth Cetago
LMv el A/kanaaa lor Uadkd Sdatkaa

Truaiaaa of Daitnoubi Colagt

Truataaa ol Dartmouth CeWga
Truataaa ol Dartmouth CoWga

Truataaa ol Dartmouth Cc9a9a
Fegirty Mamational Canter

2,630

20,430

11,774
65,544

205,920 8,664

73,049
70,736 704

50.412

18,016

68.429

3.797

4.170
14.592

22.539

14,901

597

241

15.729

127.400 10,132

260.914

314.056 223,695

13,264

4.696

720.332 234,017

76.377 2,993
6.265

64.662 2,993

28.751 3,149

4.273

1 244

5.517

5.936

96 327 65,097

102.263 65,097
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

DcpaftmcM oi Hi«ni in« Human S«(v4e«t

Total Oepanmoftt of HtalSi and Human Sorvleaa

Teul Kasoarah and Dovolepmtnt Cluitor

Modkaid Clusiar

Uodteal Aaaltlanea Program

Uodeal Aaalatanco Program

Modkal Aaiistaneo Program

Modkal Aialitanea Program

Madkal Aaatatanea Program

Total ModkaW Ctuator

IMghtm, Safaty Clutter

Slata and Cennwetlty HlgTiway Safaty

State attd Commundy Highway Safaty

State artd Cotryrajnlty Highway Safety

Total HIgliway Safely Chiater

Offier Sponscred Programi
Oapartntont af Justfea
Crlma >rtellm Aatlttance

brptovkg Ota Invatllgallon and ProMCullen of CfiM AbuM artd Vre

Regknal and local CfiMren't Advocacy Center*

Oapartntem of Education
Race to Ota Top

Oaparvnam o( Health and Human Sorvkaa
Hoipttal Praparattta** Program (HPP) and PuOlk HaaRh Emargartcy
Preparadnat* (PHEP) Algnad Cooparatlva AgreamanU
Blood Dlterdar Ptogmrv Prevantkn, SurvaKanca. and Rataareh

Uatorrtaf and ChH HaaRh Fadarai CenteMdalad Program*

Matenul and Chid Ha«h Fadarai Ccntaddatad Piogram*

Emergency Madkal Strvka* for ChSdran
Camen for Rataarth'and Oamenatratlon lor HaatOi Premelkn

artd Dkaaaa PravanOon

HIV-Ralatad Training and Tactviical Aaalatartca
Coerdkalad Sarvka* and Aeeat* to Rattarch lor Waman. Mant*. ChOdran

Subtianca Abu«a and Mental HaaRh Sarvka* Pioiaeu el

RagknM artd Natknal Signldcanca
SuMtvtca ABu*a and Menial HtaOh Sarvka* Preset* of
RaglenM and National Slgntteanea
Suostanea Abu** and Mantsl HaaRh Sarvka* Pro^acts of
RegknM and National SignMcaitca
Subttanee Abuaa artd Mental HaaRh Sarvka* Prefacu of

Regknd and National Signlfkanca

Drug Free CdmrrunRle* Support Piegnm Ctarrt*
Oaparvnam el HaaRh and Human Sarvka*

91.77#

91.778

91.779

91.778

91.778

10.800

20.800

20.800

18.87$

18.758

93.074

91.080

91.110

91.110

91.118

91.148

91.151

91.241

91.241

91.241

91.243

91.278

91.S28

Award Numbarfpata-through
fdantifkatlen Number

$f4HH 2-18-19

fteiPiovtdad

RFP-2017-0COM-0I-PHYSI-0I

03420-721SS

014I0-2020-I9

19-286 Youth Operator

19-200 eUNH

19-200 Slalawida CPS

Pata-Through

Fuftdiftg Source Entity

Patt-Through Leldo* Bkmadkai Rataarch. Inc.

2018-VA-<1X0007

1-CLAR-NH-SA17

03440-34119-18-EICG24

Not Provkad

OENFD0001808488

e T71MC321910I01

02$>e84S-4009

7Hl}MC3219SOtOO

R1140

Nei Prevldad

HI2HA3in2

7H79SM0fl38B4 01

RFP-20I8-OPHS-01-REGION-1

Not PrevMad

01420VM9006S

SH78SP020182

RFP-2018-OPHS-Ot-RECION-1

Pa**-Thcough

Pata-Through

Pala-Through

PaiaThrough

Pa*aThrough

■Pata-Thmugh
- Paaa-Through
PaaaThrough

.Paaa-Through

■PasaThrough

PataThrough

PaaaThrough
PaaaTtuough

DIrael
PaaaThrough

PaaaThrough
PaaaThrough
Direct

Oirecl

PataThroutFi

PaaaThrough

PaaaTtuough

DfrtO
PataThrough

Soudiam New Hampaliirt HaaRh
NH Dtpl of HaaRh and Human Sardcaa
NH Oapl of HaaRh and Human Sarvka*
Vatmoni OapartmenI of HtiRh
Varmorn DaparVnant el Htaflh

NH Hiyiway Sakty Agency
NH Highway Safaty Agency
NH Highway Safaty Agency

New Hampthira OaparVnant of Jutica

Nilknal ChRdran'a ARanca

Varment Oapl lor Chldran and FarrRat

NH Oapt of HaaRh and Human Sankai
Beaten ChRdran't HoapRal

kahn School of Madklna at itloum Sinal

Truaiaa* of Danmeuih CeSega
Unlveralty of Maaaaeftuaattt Mad School

NH Oapl of HaaRh and Human Sarvka*

Varmeni OaparVnant of HaaRh

Vemtem Dapartmant of HaaRh

NH Oapl of HaaRh and Human Sarvka*

117.007

449.787
3.242

391.829

24.111

88.101

227.437

120.704

Amount

Total Paaaad Through
Expandftura* to Subraclplanta

201.881
8.970.977 001.127

0.100.491 003.327

111.778
1.481.790
1.100.149

89.391
119.700

4.809.097

00,000

70,918
02.202

228.777

237.092

1.440

239.140

118.094

118.094

09.948
18.203

082.997 891.411
19.840

072.848 891.411

431.878

120.404
29.830
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Univtnlty C»nl*r> tor Exe«l«AC« in Oovoteprntntal OiMbikllii
Eductiion. R*«Mrcn. and Sarvica

Adoptien Opportunibat
Adepben OpportunWat

Pravanbva Haaldi and HaaGh Sacvicat Block Grant funded «oMy
with Pravantion and Pubic Haaith F«ids (PPHF)
Unrvoreiiy Canian tor Excaianca in Oaralepttiamal OitaMittat
Educabon. Rataarcti. and Sarvica

OpieidSTR

OpioidSTR
OpioidSTR

Organizad Appreaehai to IncraaM Coloractal Cancer Scraaning
Hoapital Preparadnaas Program (HPP) Ebola Prtparadnati

Maiamal, Intant and Earty ChMteed Home Vbibng Grant
Matamal, Infant and Earty ChMtoed Home Vblbrtg Grant

Nabertal BieiarTotiim Hoipttal Prapacadnait Program
Rural HaaGh Cara Sarvicei Outreach, Rural HaaGh Naiwork Oavalop
arid Smal HaaGh Cara Providar Ouaiiy Impravamant
Granlx to Previda Outpabanl Early Iniarvanbon Sarvicat with Ratpact 10
HIV OiraaM

Block Grant* tor Convnurtity Mantal HaaGh Sarvicas
Bloch Grant* lor Comnartty Mantal HaaMi Sarvica*

Block Grant* tor Pravantion and Traatmant of Subatanca Abut*

Block Grant* tor Pravantion and Traatmant of Subttanca Abu*a

Block Grant* tor Pravantion and Traavnani of Sub*ianea Abuta

Block Grant* for Pravantion and Traatmant ol Sub*ianca Abuaa

PPHF Geriatric Education Camera

Dapenmeni of HaaGh and
Dapartmarti of HaaGh and
Oapartmarti of Haaith and
Oapartmam of HaaGh and

Dapartmani of HtaGh and
Oapartmam of Hiatth and

Hurrttn Sardca*

Human Sarvica*

Human Sarvica*

Human Strvlct*

Human Sarvica*

Human Sarvica*

Corporation for National arvd Commuibty Sarvica
AmarlCorp*

Total Othar Programa

Total Fadtral Awards and Expandltura*

93.652

93.652

93.766

93.768

93.768

93.600

93.617

93.670

93.670

93.669

93.912

93.956

93.056

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.969

93.U01

93.U02

93.1103

93.IXH

93.U0S

93.006

Award Numbarfpeea-Chreugh
Mantiflcation Number

AVW00009303

RFP-2016-DPHS41-REGION-1

00FPSGO019

RFP-2016-60AS4S-IKTEG

20t9-BOAS-OS-ACCES-O4

$S-20l9^OAS-0S-ACCES-O2

5 NUS8DP006066

0342M7S5S

0342049S1S

0342047623

03420-7272S

6 006RH310S7-02-03

1 H76HA3ie5441-00

9224120

RFP-2017-OBH4S-FIRSTE

05-65-49-491510-2900

Not Provided

OS-05-40-491510-2990

03420-A18033S

U10HP325I9

RFP.2016-OPHS-OS-INJOR

Not Promdad

NotProwdad

Net Piuwdad

Not Previdad

Not Provided

Fuf>dlng Source

Pa»*-Threugh

Oiract

Pa**-Through

RFP-20164)PKS-0t-RECION.| Pasa-Through

17ACHNH0010001

Oiraci

P*»*-Throuoh
Pa**-Tnrougn
Pa»»-Through

Direct

P«**-Through

Pa**-Through
Pss*-Through

Pa*a-Through

Pa»*-Through
Pa**-Through

Pa»*-Threugh.
Pat*-Th(Ough
Pa**-Threugh
Pa**-Through

Diraet

Pa**-Threugh
Pa**-Threugh
Pa**-Through
Pa»»-Through
Pa*»-Through
Pas*-Through

P***-Through

Pa*»-Through
Entity

UnrvaraGy of New Hamp*hira

NH Oapi at HaaGh and Human Sarvlcas

NH Dap( of HaaGh and Human Sarvica*

NH Oapi el H*iGh and Human Sarvlcas
NH Oapi el HaaGh at>d Human Sarvica*
NH Dapt of HaaGh artd Human Sarbca*

Varment Dapartmani of HaaGh

Varment OapartRtani of HaaGh
Varmertt Oaparanant of HaaGh

Varment Dapartmant ot HaaGh

NH Oapi et HaaGh and Human Sarvica*
NH Oapi of HaaGh and Human Sarvlct*

NH Dap) of HaaGh and Human Sanriea*
Foundation lor Haaldiy Ccmmuiibaa
Foundation lor HaaGhy CommunGItt
Varmont Oeparbnant of HaaGh

NH Hi^iway Sataiy Agency
NH Oapi of HaaGh and Human Sarvica*
NH Oapi of HaaGh and Human SinGca*
NH Dapt of HaaGh and Human Sarvica*

NH Dapt ot HaaGh and Human Sarvica*
County of Chaahira

Amount

TOUl Passed Through
Expandltura* to Subreclplanta

2.811 .

32.364

110.524 .

142.906

343.297 -

134,524 -

954.356 61206

161.164 .

243.747

t 359.267 61.206

912.937

2.347

99.641

176.907

276.746

2.766

136.959

273.666

2.498

32.625

35.123

69276

54,356

1.695

59204

184,531

728 055

60,107

46.489

56,419
37,009

39.653

213,301

474.978

72,297

72.297

7.774.313 652.619

$  19.256.460 3  1,315.946
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2019

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") presents the
activity of federal award programs administered by Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and Subsidiaries
(the "Health System") as defined in the notes to the consolidated financial statements and is
presented on an accrual basis. The purpose of this Schedule is to present a summary of those
activities of the Health System for the year ended June 30, 2019 which have been financed by the
United States government ("federal awards"). For purposes of this Schedule, federal awards
include all federal assistance entered Into directly between the Health System and the federal
government and subawards from nonfederal organizations made under federally sponsored
agreements. The information in this Schedule in presented in accordance with the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Pass-through entity identification numbers and CFDA numbers have been
provided where available.

Visiting Nurse and Hospice of NH and VT ("VNH") received a Community Facilities Loan, CFDA
#10766, of which the proceeds were expended in the prior fiscal year. The VNH had an
outstanding balance of $2,696,512 as of June 30, 2019. As this loan was related to a project that
was completed in the prior audit period and the terms and conditions do not impose continued
compliance requirements other than to repay the loan, we have properly excluded the outstanding
loan balance from the Schedule.

2. Indirect Expenses

Indirect costs are charged to certain federal grants and contracts at a federally approved
predetermined indirect rate, negotiated with the Division of Cost Allocation and therefore we do not
use the de minimus 10% rate. The predetermined rate provided for the year ended June 30, 2019
was 29.3%. Indirect costs are included in the reported federal expenditures.

3. Related Party Transactions

The Health System has an affiliation agreement with Dartmouth College dated June 4,1996 in
which the Health System and the Gelsel School of Medicine at Dartmouth College affirm their
mutual commitment to providing high quality medical care, medical education and medical research
at both organizations. Pursuant to this affiliation agreement, certain clinical faculty of the Health
System participate in federal research programs administered by Dartmouth College. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, Health System expenditures, which Dartmouth College
reimbursed, totaled $3,979,033. Based on the nature of these transactions, the Health System and
Dartmouth College do not view these arrangements to be subrecipient transactions but rather view
them as Dartmouth College activity. Accordingly, this activity does not appear In the Health
System's schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed In

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees of

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and subsidiaries

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and its subsidiaries (the "Health System"), which comprise the consolidated

balance sheet as of June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets and of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated November 26, 2019, which included an emphasis of a matter
paragraph related to the Health System changing the manner in which it accounts for revenue recognition
from contracts with customers and the manner in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects
of its financial statements as a not-for-profit entity in 2019 as discussed in note 2 of the consolidated

financial statements.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Health System's
internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's internal
control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not'designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, lOi Seaport Boulevard, Suite 500, Boston, MA 02210
T: (617) 530 5000, F: ('627)5305001, \wv\v.pwc.com/us



DocuSign Envelope ID: 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

pwc

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Health System's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with [
Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, j
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston, Massachusetts

November 26, 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance with Requirements

That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal

Control Over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Trustees of

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and subsidiaries

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and its subsidiaries" (the "Health System") compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the Health System's major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2019. The Health System's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Health System's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Health System's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Dartmouth-Hitchcock
Health and its subsidiaries compliance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, lOi Seaport Boulevard, Suite 500, Boston, MA 02210
T: (617) 530 5000, F: ("6^7)530 500J, ,ww\v.p\vc.com/us
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health and its subsidiaries complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material e^ect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Health System are responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Health System's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Health System's intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston. Massachusetts

March 31, 2020
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued

Internal control over financial reporting

Material weakness (es) identified?
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness (es)?
Noncompliance material to financial statements

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs

Material weakness (es) identified?
Significant deficiency (ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness (es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs

Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs

CFDA Number

Various CFDA Numbers

93.800

93.788

93.110

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified opinion

No

None reported
No

No

None reported

Unmodified opinion

No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Research and Development

Organized Approaches to Increase
Colorectal Cancer Screening
Opiod STR
Matemal and Child Health Federal

Consolidated Programs

$750,000

Yes
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Financial Statement Findings

None Noted

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None Noted
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock and Subsidiaries
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and Status
Year Ended June 30, 2019

There are no findings from prior years that require an update in this report.
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DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK (D-H) | DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK HEALTH (D-HH)
BOARDS OF TRUSTEES AND OFHCERS

Effective: Tanuarv 1. 2021

Geraldine "Folly" Bednash, PhD, RN, FAAN
MHMH/DHC Trustee
Adjunct Professor, University of Vermont

Jonathan T. Huntington, MD, FhD, MFH
MHMH/DHC (Lebanon Physician) Trustee
Acting Chief Medical Officer, DHMC

Mark W. Begor, MBA
MHMH/DHC Trustee
Chief Executive Officer, Equifax

Laura K. Landy, MBA
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
President and CEO of the Fannic E. Rippel Foundation

Jocelyn D. Chertoff, MD, MS, FACR
MHMH/DHC (Clinical Chair/Center Director)
Trustee

Owir, Dept. ofRadioloj^y

Jennifer L. Moyer, MBA
MHMH/DHC Trustee
Managing Director & CAO, White Mountains Insurance
Group, Ltd

Duane A Compton, FhD
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
Ex-Officio: Dean, Geisel School ofMedicine at Dartmouth

David F. Faul, MBA

MHMH/DHC Trustee
President & COO, JBG SMITH

Joanne M. Conroy, MD
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
Ex-Officio: CEO & President. D-H/D-HH

Charles G. Plimpton, MBA
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Boards' Treasurer & Secretary
Retired Investment Banker

Faul P. Danos, FhD

MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
Dean Emeritus; Laurence F. Wlnttemore Professor of
Business Administration, Tuck School of Business at
Dartmouth

Richard J. Powell, MD
D-HH Trustee

Section Chief, Vascular Surgery; Proffssor of Surgery and
Radiology

Carl "Trey" Dobson, MD
MHMH/DHC Trustee
ChiefMedical Officer, Southzvestem Vermont Medical
Center

Thomas Raffio, MBA, FLMI

MHMH/DHC Trustee
President & CEO, Northeast Delta Dental

Elof Eriksson, MD, FhD
MHMH/DHC Trustee
Professor Emeritus, Harvard Medical School.and
QiiefMedical Officer, Applied Tissues Technologies, LLC

Kurt K. Rhynhart, MD, FACS
MHMH/DHC (D-H Lebanon Physician Trustee
Representative) Trustee
DHMC Trauma Medical Director and Diznsional Chief of
Trauma and Acute Care Surgery

Gary L. Freed, Jr., MD, FharmD
MHMH/DHC Trustee
Plastic Surgeon, DHMCand Assistant Professor of
Surgery for Geisel School ofMedicine at Dartmouth

Edward Howe Stansfield, III, MA

MHMH/DHC/D-HH Boards' Chair
Setiior VP, Resident Directorfor the Hanover, NH Bank of
America/Merrill Lynch Office

Thomas P. Glynn, FhD
MHMH/DHC Trustee
Qtief Executive Officer, Massachusetts Port Authority

Pamela Austin Thompson, MS, RN, CENP, FAAN
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
Qtief executive officer emeritus of the American
Organization of Nurse Executiz;es (AONE)

Robert S.D. Higgins, MD, MSHA
MHMH/DHC Trustee
Nicholas M. Greene Professor and Chair, Dept. of
Anesthesiology, Yale School of Medicine

Marc B. Wolpow, JD, MBA
MHMH/DHC/D-HH Trustee
Co-Chief Executive Officer ofAudax Group

Roberta L. Hlnes, MD

MHMH/DHC Trustee
Surgeon-in-Chief, The John Hopkins Hospital
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CURRICULUM VITAE

Date Prepared: September 7, 2017

NAME: Julia Renee Frew, MD

ADDRESS: QfTice: Department of Psychiatry
Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Lebanon, NH 03756
Julia.R.Frew@hitchcock.org

603-650-4564 office

Home

EDUCATION:

DATE

1992-1996

1998-1999

2000-2005

rNSTITUTTON DEGREE

Kenyon College B.A., summa cum laude
New York University Postbaccalaureate Premedical Program
Brown Medical School (Brown-Dartmouth M.D.
Program in Medical Education)

POST-DOCTORAL TRAINING:

DATE

2006-2010

2009-2010

SPECIALTY

Psychiatry
Psychiatry- Chief Resident

INSTITUTION

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION:

DATE

2010-

2010-

2011-

LICENSURE/CERTIFICATION

New Hampshire Board of Medicine #14795
Vermont Board of Medical Practice #042-0011941

Diplomate, American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology (Psychiatry)

ACADEMIC APPOINTMENTS:

DATE ACADEMIC TITLE

2009-2011 Instructor in Psychiatry
2011 - Assistant Professor of Psychiatry
2016- Assistant Professor of Obstetrics

and Gynecology
2017- Assistant Professor of Medical Education

INSTITUTION

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth
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HOSPITAL APPOINTiMENTS:

DATE HOSPITAL TITLE INSTITUTION

2010 Inpatient Psychiatrist (per diem) Central Vermont Medical Center

2010- Attending Psychiatrist Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

2010- Director, Women's Mental Health Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Program

2010-2015 Consulting Psychiatrist, Live Well/ Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Work Well Employee Wellness Program
2016- Medical Director, Perinatal Addiction Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Treatment Program

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS:

DATE

2008-

2009-2010

2009-2010

2009-2010

2010-2011

2011-2016

2012-

2012-

2013-

2013-

2014-

2015-

COMMITTEE

Education Policy Committee
Residency Curriculum Committee
Quality Improvement Committee
Psychiatry Grand Rounds Committee
Guardianship Policy Committee
Faculty Council (Psychiatry representative)
Clinical Education Course Director

Committee

Psychiatry Residency Selection Committee
Graduate Medical Education Committee

Chair, Residency Program Clinical
Competency Committee
Residency Program Evaluation Committee
Graduate Medical Education Curriculum

Committee

INSTITUTION

Geisel Department of Psychiatry
Geisel Department of Psychiatry
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Psychiatric Associates
Geisel Department of Psychiatry
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Geisel Department of Psychiatry
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Geisel Department of Psychiatry

Geisel Department of Psychiatry
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

MEMBERSHIP IN PROFESSIONAL SOCIETIES:

DATE

2008-2010

2009-

2010-2015

SOCIETY

American Psychiatric Association
North American Society for Psycho-
Social Obstetrics & Gynecology
Academy of Psychosomatic Medicine

ROLE

Member-in-Training
Member

2012-

2013-

Intemational Association for Women's

Mental Health

Association of Directors of Medical

Student Education in Psychiatry

Member, Founding Member of
Women's Mental Health Special
Interest Group
Member

Member
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2013- American Association of Directors Member

of Psychiatry Residency Training
2014- Postpartum Support International Member

AWARDS AND HONORS:

DATE AWARD

1992-1996 National Merit Scholarship
1992-1996 Kenyon College Honors Scholarship
1996 Phi Beta Kappa
2000 Volunteer of the Year, St. Vincent's Hospital and Medical Center, NYC
2004 "Best Platform Research Presentation", Academy of Breastfeeding Medicine Annual

Meeting
2005 Patricia McCormick Prize, given to the outstanding female student in the graduating

class of Brown Medical School

2016 Inducted into Geisel Academy of Master Educators

CLINICAL AND RESEARCH INTERESTS

Women's mental health, perinatal addiction treatment, psychosomatic medicine, physician and medical
student health and wellness, psychiatric education of medical students and residents

TEACHING EXPERIENCE/CURRENT TEACHING RESPONSIBILITIES

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth:

DATE TEACHING

2010- OB/Gyn Residency Program: Teach on perinatal psychiatry topics
2012 Created and implemented Frontiers in Brain and Behavior preclinical elective for fu^t

and second year medical students
2012- Co-director, Psychiatry Clerkship

-  Didactic and small group teaching since 2008
-  Assumed Co-directorship in 2012: assist with administration of the course including

attending weekly clerkship oversight meetings, grading student write-ups, overseeing
residents involved in teaching in the clerkship, and assigning final grades

2012- Residency/Career Advisor for Geisel students interested in pursuing careers in psychiatry
2013- SBM- Psychiatry Course Director

-  Facilitate small group sessions to teach 2"'' year medical students psychiatric
interviewing skills since 2006.

-  Teach topics such as psychiatric interviewing, delirium, psychiatric ethics since 2010
-  Assumed Directorship of course in 2013: oversee all aspects of the course including

faculty recruitment, curriculum oversight, final examination, and small group
interviewing component

2013- Associate Director, Psychiatry Residency Program
-  Teach and directly supervise residents since 2010
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-  Assumed Associate Directorship in 2013: assist with administration of Adult
Psychiatry Residency Program including participating in recruitment, designing and
implementing evaluation methods for residents, overseeing teaching activities of
senior residents, and meeting regularly with residents regarding their progress

2013- SBM Reproduction Course: Teach session on perinatal psychiatry
2013- Travel yearly to Providence, RI to provide mock oral board exams for Brown Psychiatry

Residents

2014-2017 Co-Director, Scientific Basis of Medicine Program (2"^ year medical school
curriculum at Geisel School of Medicine)
-  Oversee Scientific Basis of Medicine Program, including course review, recruitment

and evaluation of PBL tutors, review of examinations, determination of final grades,
advising for students, and strategic planning

West Central Behavioral Health:

DATE TEACHING

2009 Led inservice training sessions for case managers at community mental health center
on psychopharmacology and substance abuse

2009 Provided psychoeducation about psychopharmacology to clients in Illness Management
and Recovery Program

INVITED PRESENTATIONS

Local/Regional

DATE TOPIC

2011 Depression 101:
Treatment of Depression

2011 Effective Treatment of

Anxiety
2011 Women's Mental Health

2012 Postpartum Depression

2012 Access to Mental Health

Care for Perinatal Women

2012 Access to Mental Health

Care for Perinatal Women

2012-14 Women's Mental Health

In Primary Care

2013 Perinatal Psychiatry

2014 Management of Bipolar
Disorder in Pregnancy
and Lactation

ORGANIZATION

DHMC Live Well/Work

Well Program
DHMC Live WellAVork

Well Program
DHMC Live WellAVork

Well Program
Geisel OB/Gyn Interest
Group
Northern New England
Perinatal Quality
Improvement Network
OB/Gyn Grand Rounds

"What's New in Psychiatry
for Non-Psychiatric
Providers" CME event

Geisel OB/Gyn and
Psychiatry Interest Groups
Psychiatry Grand Rounds
Dartmouth-Hitchcock

LOCATION

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Hanover, NH

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon, NH

Lebanon & Manchester, NH

Hanover, NH

Lebanon, NH
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Julia R. Frew

5

2014

2015

2016

Management of Bipolar
Disorder in Pregnancy
and Lactation

Assessment and Manage
ment of Depression and
Anxiety in Primary Care
Patients; Management of
Stressful Encounters and

Difficult Patients in Primary

Care

Perinatal Psychiatric Illness

Psychiatry Grand Rounds
University of Vermont

"What's New in Psychiatry
for Non-Psychiatric
Providers" CME event

Burlington, VT

Lebanon, NH

Mental Health Center

Of Greater Manchester

Grand Rounds

Manchester, NH

2017

2017

2017

Building a Life Worth
Living: Treating Moms
With Opioid Use Disorders

Moms in Recovery:
Treatment for Pregnant and
Parenting Women with
Substance Use Disorders:

Typical Treatment Dilemmas

Co-occurring Disorders
In Perinatal Women with

Substance Use Disorders

New Hampshire Association Concord, NH
for Infant Mental Health

Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Pediatric Schwartz Rounds

Lebanon, NH

Perinatal Opioid Use
Disorders Learning
Collaborative

Lebanon, NHAVebinar

2017

2017

2017

Tackling the New
Hampshire Opioid Crisis
(Perinatal Addiction
Treatment)

No Health without

Mental Health (Perinatal
Addiction Treatment)

Opiate Crisis: Stories
and Solutions (panel
discussion)

Northeast Node/NIDA

Clinical Trials Node/

Center for Technology
and Behavioral Health

Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Departments of Psychiatry
and Population Health

VT PBS

Hanover, NH

Lebanon, NH

Rutland, VT

Natiooal/lnternational

DATE TOPIC ORGANIZATION LOCATION
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2004

2016

2016

2017

BIBLIOGRAPHY

First Steps Breastfeeding
Education Project

Moms and Moms-to-Be

in Recovery: a Perinatal
Addiction Treatment

Program

The Earlier the Better:

Developing a system of
integrated care for child-
bearing families with
substance use disorders

Pregnancy and Psychiatric
Medication

Julia R. Frew

6

Academy of Breastfeeding Orlando, FL
Medicine Annual Meeting

North American Society
for Psychosocial Obstetrics
and Gynecology

National Drug Abuse
Treatment Clinical Trials

Network/ Center for

Substance Abuse Treatment

Recovery Library by
Pat Deegan

New York, NY

Webinar

Online resource

Original Articles;

Frew, J & Taylor, J. First Steps: A program for medical students to teach high school students about
breastfeeding. Medicine and Health / Rhode Island. 2005;88:48-50.

Frew, J. Psychopharmacology of Bipolar I Disorder During Lactation: a case report of use of lithium
and aripipra2ole in a nursing mother. Archives of Women's Mental Health. 2015; 18(1):135-136.

Posters:

Frew, J & Taylor, J. First Steps Breastfeeding Education Project. Society of Teachers of Family
Medicine Predoctoral Education National Conference, New Orleans, LA. 2004.

Larusso, E, Frew, J & Krishnan, N. Integrating Mental Health Care into Obstetrics & Gynecology:
Results from an embedded psychiatry consultation clinic and implications for quality improvement.
North American Society for Psychosocial Obstetrics & Gynecology Annual Meeting, Providence, RI.
2012.

Frew, J & LaRusso, E. Psychiatric consultation in obstetrics/gynecology (OB/GYN): Updated results
from a reproductive psychiatry consultation clinic and implications for quality improvement. Perinatal
Mental Health Meeting, Chicago, IL. 2013.

Frew, J. Psychopharmacology of bipolar I disorder during lactation: A case report of use of lithium and
aripiprazole in a nursing mother. Perinatal Mental Health Meeting, Chicago, IL. 2013.

Goodman, D & Frew, J. Dismantling Barriers to Addiction Treatment and Maternity Care: Results from
an Integrated Program. American Society of Addiction Medicine, New Orleans, LA. 2017.
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CURRICULUM VITAE AND BIBLIOGRAPHY

3/2018

Alena Katherine Neton Shoemaker, MD

Family Physician and Clinical Faculty, Lawrence Family Medicine Residency

EDUCATION

2006 Bachelor of Science John Carroll University, University Heights, OH

2011 Doctor of Medicine The Ohio State University School of Medicine, Columbus, OH

POSTDOCTORAL TRAINING

Residency:
6/2011 - 6/2014 Family Medicine

Greater Lawrence Family Medicine Residency, Lawrence MA

Fellowship:
10/2014- 10/2015 Holistic, Integrative, and Pluralistic Medicine

Greater Lawrence Family Health Center (GLFHC), Lawrence MA

LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION

2014 - present Medical Board of Massachusetts, American Board of Family Medicine

HOSPITAL APPOINTMENTS

2014 - present Associate Staff, Dept of Family Medicine, Lawrence General Hospital

TEACHING RESPONSIBILITIES

Regular Clinical Teaching:
Community and Obstetric Faculty at the Lawrence Family Medicine Residency Program
Community Faculty for Tufts University School of Medicine
Faculty Director oflntegrative Medicine Curriculum and Resident OMM Clinic

Presentations:

Get 2015 DMT for the primary care physician, co-presenter, FMEC 2015 Danvers, MA



DocuSign Envelope ID; 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

PROFESSIONAL SOCIETIES

American Academy of Family Physicians
Integrative Medicine for the Underserved

MAJOR RESEARCH INTERESTS

Integrative medicine, non-pharmacologic management of pain, group medical visits, Osteopathy

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Geller JS, Kulla J, Shoemaker A. Group Medical Visits Using an Empowerment-based Model as
Treatment for Women with Chronic Pain in an Underserved Community. Global Advances in Health and
Medicine: 2015 Nov; 4(6): 27-31, 60

Heather Markey Waniga, RN, MSN, Travis Gerke, ScD, Alena Shoemaker, MD, Derek Bourgoine, MHA
and Pracha Emranond, MD, MPH . The Impact of Revised Discharged Instructions on Patient
Satisfaction. Journal ofPatient Experience: 2016, Vol 3 (3): 64-48

LANGUAGES SPOKEN

English, Medical Spanish
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LICENSE#

New Hampshire LICSW # 1847

Massachusetts LICSW #1021146

Vermont LICSW # 0890055650

TERI BISHOP LAROCK

EDUCATION

Boston University School of Social Work, Boston, MA

University of Vermont, Burlington, VT

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center (DHMC)

Lebanon, New Hampshire

Clinical Director: Moms in Recovery: Psychiatry

MSW, May 1990

BA Psychology, May, 1988

2018-Present

•Management of a team of clinicians providing psychosocial assessment, counseling and treatment to
pregnant and parenting women in an integrated care clinical setting.

* Facilitation of and assistance with development, design and training of agency programs.

•Clinical supervision to candidates for MSW licensure. Clinical supervision of peer support recovery
coaches in Emergency Department setting.

Behavioral Health Clinician: Moms in Recoverv: Psvchiatrv 2016-2018

•Evaluation, diagnosis and treatment of women with substance use disorder and co-occurring mental
health diagnoses such as anxiety and mood disorders in an integrated care clinical setting.

•Establishment and documentation of treatment goals utilizing appropriate psychotherapy including

group and individual, trauma sensitive cognitive behavioral therapy, crisis intervention and supportive
cognitive therapy. Trained facilitator of Circle of Security Parenting curriculum.

•Communication and collaboration with interdisciplinary team and community partners to assure

proactive and successful integrated care with a high risk population facing significant resource
insecurities and marginalization.

Behavioral Health Clinician: Behavioral intervention Team: Psvchiatrv 2014-Present

•Comprehensive and targeted proactive primary mental health assessment and intervention with

medically hospitalized patients experiencing mental health related symptoms. Timely follow-up and
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targeted behavioral health interventions including cognitive behavioral therapy, motivational

interviewing, guided visual Imagery, crisis intervention and therapeutic supportive counseling.

*Development of strategies with the healthcare team to advocate for patients psychiatric and

behavioral needs. Work with team to negotiate complex systems to remove barriers and limitations in

accessing appropriate disposition plans. Participation in complex care and ethics meetings.

Consultation and professional support to interdisciplinary team members. Education of mental health

education with medical staff. Teaching with and support of primary MSWs on units regarding behavioral

and mental health patient care and interventions.

Continuing Care Manager: Child Advocacv and Protection Program: Pediatrics 2007-2017

•Perform comprehensive assessment with families of children suspected to be victims of neglect,

physical, sexual abuse and intimate partner violence. Evaluation of health and functional status,

cognitive capability, support systems, biopsychosocial functioning, finances and heatth/wellness status

•Development and implementation of plan of care to include family strengths and challenges.

Supportive trauma informed and trauma focused counseling with family. Collaboration with involved

child protection, law enforcement and mental health agencies. Testimony in court as needed. Non-

offender support group.

•Teaching with pediatric residents, nursing and allied health service staff about trauma informed mental

health assessment, diagnosis and psychosocial care of at risk children and families. Supervision of MSW

interns from Boston University, University of Vermont, University of New Hampshire, and Simmons

College

Pediatric Nephrology Social Worker 2012-Present

•Coordinated caseload of children and families diagnosed and coping with kidney disease as part of a

multidisclpllnary team. Case management and collaboration with community resources including

Partners in Health, Children with Special Health Needs, Team Impact, Camp Sunshine and primary care

offices

Pediatric Social Worker 2006-2007

•Assessment, supportive counseling and referrals to and collaboration with community agencies for

families of children admitted to pediatric and pediatric intensive care units for treatment of illness and

injury. Crisis intervention and bereavement counseling. Member of interdisciplinary care team.

Psychosocial and mental health education with Dartmouth medical students, residents and nursing.

Per Diem Social Worker . 2004-2006

Clinical social work coverage on adult and pediatric units throughout the 400 bed medical center.

Assessment and brief intervention with individuals and families. Facilitation of processes Including
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guardianship, placement, and residential settings. Coordination of care with existing resources and

referrals to community supports.

Community Health Llnk/Universlty of Massachusetts (aka The Herbert Upton Center) Fitchburg, MA

Clinical Social Worker 1998-2004

Provided both long term and brief individual weekly therapy to clients with mental health and complex

psychosocial challenges in a multicultural, low socioeconomic clinical setting. Modalities of counseling

included cognitive behavioral therapy, crisis intervention, motivational Interviewing and supportive

counseling. Individual counseling with women transitioning from Framingham State Prison system to
home/community environment who were working with child protection to re-establish custody of their

children. Development and implementation of treatment plans and collaboration with community

agencies.

Clinical Social Worker 2002-2004

School based counseling at Leominster High School, a large suburban high school, via Community Health

Link. Assessment and crisis intervention with adolescents and families. Wrote comprehensive

evaluations and developed treatment plans for adolescents engaging in self harming behaviors and

substance use. Collaboration and referral to community based services. Member of interdisciplinary

team working with Department of Youth Services, Department of Social Services and Department of

Mental Health.

Boston Children's Hospital

Boston, MA

Clinical Social Worker Emergency Department 1995-1998

•Child abuse and neglect assessment, collaboration with Department of Social Services and other

collateral agencies. Crisis intervention counseling and intervention. Referrals to local community

resources and health centers.

Clinical Social Worker 1991-1995

•Psychosocial assessment, crisis intervention, brief treatment and case management with families on

three Inpatient medical and surgical units. Individual, family and group counseling. Collaboration with
interdisciplinary team and community resources.

•Supervision responsibilities; summer staff social work position, Boston University, Simmons College

and Boston College MSW students. Emergency room coverage. Co-leader of weekly Parent Support

Group and Adolescent Cystic Fibrosis Group.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

Waltham Weston Hospital and Medical Center

Waltham, MA

Clinical Social Worker 1990-1991

•Assessment of individual and family psychosocial situations on Birthing/GYN, Pediatric and

Medical/Surgical adult units. Development of Family/Child High Risk Criteria. Provided crisis

intervention, short term and group therapy. Rotating Emergency Department coverage. Facilitator of

community based Gulf War Family Support Group.

Boston Children's Hospital

Boston, MA

Social Work Intern 1989-1990

Provided individual and group counseling to hospitalized children and families. Referrals to relevant

community counseling agencies, support groups, shelters, IPV resources and economic agencies.

Collaboration with hospital based Child Protective Team and Massachusetts Child Protection.

Mary Curley Middle School

Jamaica Plain, MA

Social Work Intern 1988-1989

Provided individual counseling and brief treatment to teenage adolescents in an urban middle school

environment. Facilitation of multicultural seventh grade girls Peer Support and Leadership Groups with

focus on societal challenges of poverty, oppression and ethnic difference. Co-facilitator of drug, alcohol

and sexual health education psych-educational groups.
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Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

Key Personnel

FY'22 Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment (IMAT) SOR-IIB

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this Contract

Julia Frew Medical Director (MD) $280,000 10% $21,000

Alena Shoemaker Integrated Primary Care MD $243,000 10% $18,225

Teri Larock LICSW $96,637 70% $50,734
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VtORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 09301
603-271.9544 1.S004S2-9349 ExL 9544

Fm: 609-271.4932 TDD Acms: I.SOO-7354964 www.4Ua.Dh.cov

January 21, 2021

Hia Excdloncy, Governor ChrislDpher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampsbire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter Into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital, (VC#177160). Lebanon, NH to provide integrated obstetric, primary care,
pediatric. and Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) for pregnant and postpartum women with
opiold use disorder, by increasing the price limitation by $1,200,000 horn $4,255,413 to
$5,455,413 and by extending the compietjon date from September 30. 2020 to September 29.
2021. effective retroactive to September 30. 2020 upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 24, 2018. item
d8 and most recently amended with Governor and Councii approval on October 2, 2019, item
tfl'OA.

Funds are available in the foOowing account for State Fiscal Year 2021 and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price
limitation and encumlKanoes between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
Justified.

05-95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OP DRUO
AND ALCOHOL, OPIOID STR GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

NumlMr

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92052559 $862,630 $0 $ 862,630

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92052559 $1,892,813 $0 $1,892,813

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92052559 $600,000 $0 $600,000

Subtotal $3,355,443 $0 $3,355,443
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His Excenency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and ite Honorable Councfl

Page 2 of 3

0&-9&-92-820510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUaiAN SVS, HNS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL, STATE OPtOlD RESPONSE GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92057040 $ 603.472 $0 $ 603,472

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057046 $296,498 $900,000 $1,196,498

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92057046 $0 $300,000 $300,000

Subtotal $899,970 $1,200,000 $2,099,970

Total $4,265,413 $1,200,000 $5,456,413

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroacttvo because there cannot be a lapse in client services and the
Department did not receive the federal award letter for funding in time to submit this request prior
to the current contract expiring. Additionally, funds anticipated to be availat)le in Fiscal Year 2020
were not yet appropriated in the operating budget. This request is Sole Source because the
completion date Is being extended beyond the remaining rer^ewal option.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Corttractor to continue serving the target
population artd geographic areas without interruption at seven (7) sites. The Contrador
will continue providing integrated obstetric care, primary care, pediatric care and
Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) for pregnant and postpartum women with optoid
use disorder and any co-occurring mentol health disorders. MAT services will be
integrated with prenatal and postpartum care, and provided with parenting support and
education at seven (7) sites across New Hampshire, including sites in the high need areas
of Belknap and Coos Counties where optoid use dtsorder treatment sen/ices are limited.

Approximately 1,000 individuals will be served from September 30,2020 through
September 29,2021.

The State continues, to ne^ population-specific Substance Use Disorder
Treatment and Recovery Support Services for pregnant women due to a rise in Neonatal
Abstinence Syndrome In infants bom to mothers vrho have used opioids. Babies with this
syrxlrome experience symptoms of drug withdrawal and require special treatment prior
to leaving the hospital. It is critical that providers offer integration of services, approaches
to meet individual dient needs, and the means to maximize State and Federal dollars to
meet the demand for these specific services. The services provided by the Contractor will
be compreherisive and focus not only on the mother's recovery, but also on ensuring that
the infant is rec8ivir>g the necessary health and social supports and services to mitigate
risk associated with maternal optoid use.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E.

Hit Exoeltoflcy. Governor Chitstopher T. Summu
and the Honorable CouncQ

Pegeaofd

The Department will monrtor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  Fifty percent (50%) of women referred to the program, who consent to
treatment and qualify based on clinical evaluation, will enter opioid use
disorder (OUD) treatment as reported by the Contractor.

• Seventy-five percent (75%) of women Wontrfied by American Society of
Addiction Medidne (ASAM) criteria as in need of a higher level of care will
be referred to treatment services in order to increase referral of pregnant
and postpartum women to OUD treatment providers as reported by the
Contractor.

•  Five percent (5%) decline in neonatal abstinence syndrome (NAS) rates of
Infants bom to mothers served in this program, not attributable to the mother
taking MAT medications as prescribed, as reported by the Contractor.

• Five percent (5%) decrease in positive urine drug screens for illicit
substances for pregnant women served in this program as reported by the
Contractor.

•  Five percent (5%) decrease in reports to Division for Children, Youth, and
Family (DCYF) of substance-exposed infants born to mothers served in this
program, not attributable to the mother taking MAT medications as reported
by the Contractor and through the use of collected hospital and DCYF data.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General Provisions, Section 3.
Extension, of the original contract, the parties have the option to exte^ the agreement
for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
Department Is exercising its option to renew services for the remaining nine (9) months
available as well as extending the contract an additional three (3) months.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, pregnant women and
parents in recovery may not receive the supports necessary to maintain sobriety.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI083328.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A Shiblnette
Commissioner

rht Dtportment cfHtaiih and Human Strvwa'Mittion i* tajoin communiiia end fomUia
in providing opportunilia far cidttns to aefueve hootth and independenct.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr.. Concord, NH 03301 .

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-600-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doil

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

December 18, 2020

Lori A. Shibinetic, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Corhmissioner Shibinette:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source and retroactive contract amendment with
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, of Lebanon NH as described below and referenced as DoIT No.
2018-047B.

This is a request to amend a current contract for Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital to
coniinue'providing integrated obstetric care, primary care, pediatric care and Medication
Assisted Treatment (MAT) for pregnant and poslpartum women with opioid use disorder
and any co-occurring mental health disorders. Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital will
continue serving the target population and geographic areas without interruption at seven
(7) stand up sites. •

The funding amount for this amendment is $1,200,000 increasing the current contract
from $4,255,413 to $5,455,413, retroactive to October 1, 2020 and by.extending the
completion date from September 30, 2020 to September 29, 2021, efTective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health, and Human Services
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/ik

DolT #2018-0478

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for
Pregnant and Postpartum Women

State of New Hampshire .

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for

Pregnant and Postpartum Women Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant and Postpartum
Women contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #2") Is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Stale" or
"Department") and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a
domestic nonprofit corporation with a place of business at One Medical Drive. Lebanon. NH 03756.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 24. 2018, (Item #8), as amended on October 2. 2019, (Item #16A), the Contractor.agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended) and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, Extension, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scop)e of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, Jhe parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

V

1. Form P-37 General Provisions,- Block 1.7, Completion Dale, to read:

September 29. 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,455,413.

3. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Senrices, Section 2. Scope of Wortt, Subsection 2.1.
to read:

2.1 The Contractor shall provide comprehensive Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) for
pregnant and postpartum women diagnosed with opioid use disorder (OUD) and co-
occurring mental health disorders. The Contractor shall:

2.1.1 Ensure services are Integrated with prenatal.and postparturri care.

2.1.2. Provide parenting support and education for parents at five (5) sites across the
State of New Hampshire.

2.1.3. Ensure one (1) of the five (5) sites in 2.1.2. is located in Coos County.

2.1.4. Provide copies of the executed agreements with the sites described in Subsection
2.1. to the Department within five (5) business days of fully executing the
documents.

2.1.5. Obtain approval.from the Department for each executed agreement and
subsequent renewal.

4. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Work. Subsectton 2.3.
to read:

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure delivery of the required services at the four (4) PTIT^ sites
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Amendment tn Contractor Initials
RFP-201&.BDAS-05-INTEG-01-A02 Page 1 of 11 Date
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3
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human'Servlces
Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for
Pregnant and Postpartum Women

where services shall be offered by OB/Gyn practices that are enhanced with integrated
addiction services.

5. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 2, Scope of Work. Subsection 2.5.
to read:

2.5. The Contractor shall provide sen/ices at all five (5) sites including, but not limited to:

2.5.1 Peer recovery coaches.

2.5.2. Resource/Employment specialists. ^

2.5.3. Case n^anagement/Care coordination.

2.5.4. Parenting education groups.

2.5.5. Health education.

2.5.6. Social supports including, but not limited to access and/or referrals to food,
housing, child care, and transportation services.

6. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Work, Paragraph 2.8.6.
to read:

2.8.6. Offering co-located child "play time," which provides supportive child engagemenf that
allows women to participate fully in group therapy and receive care without distraction,
when possible given pandemic restrictions.

7. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.20.
to read:

2.20. The Contractor shall ensure that D-H Lebanon Addiction Treatment Program protocol for
PDMP monitoring includes, but is not limited to, reviewing the POMP at a patient's first
visit and when clinically indicated.

8. Modify Exhibit A • Amendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Work. Paragraph 2.23.1.
to read:

2.23.1. Using their Patient Advisory Board, which meets biannually and is composed of
participants in long-term recovery.

9. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services. Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.24.
to read:

2.24. The Contractor provide assistance with accessing child care services that includes, but is
not limited toon-site well-child care at the D-H Lebanon Moms in Recovery Program, when
possible during pandemic restrictions, to ensure lack of child care is not a barrier to
accessing treatment.

10. Modify Exhibit A-Amendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 2, Scope of Work, Paragraph 2.26.2.
to read:

2.26.2. Collecting data on participant demographics utilizing a REDCap database designed
for this purpose, svhich allows de-identified, participant-level data to be entered
remotely by all sites. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.26.2.1. Data is entered for each participant from the time of entry into the program
for up to a minimum of three (3) months postpartum.

2.26.2.2. Sites have the option to follow participants" longer, if consistent with
practice operations. For example, a participant entering care In the late
first trimester, data would entered at entry to care, at 24-2arw^ks of

Mary Hitchcock Manorial Hospital Amendment #2 Contractor Initials i
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^  pregnancy, at delivery, and at three (3) months postpartum.
I

2.26.2.3. Data is available for utilization In quality improvement initiatives and
program evaluation, as well as development of targeted services at all
sites

11. Modify Exhibit A - Amendrnent #1, Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Work, Paragraph 2.26.5.
to read:

2.26.5. Employing a research assistant to assist with data entry and quality.

12. Modify Exhibit A - Amer^dment#1. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Work, Subsection 2.28.
to read:

2.28. The Contractor shall participate in the State-funded "Community of Practice for MAT"
along with other State-funded projects that include, but are not limited to:

2.28.1. Quarterly web-based discussions and trainings.

2.28.2. Ad hoc communication with expert consultants on MAT clinical care topics
such as Hepatitis C. Virus (HCV) and Human Immunodeficiency Virus
(HIV) prevention, diversion risk mitigation, and other relevant issues.

13. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Work, Subsectbn 2.29.
to read:

2.29. The Contractor shall participate in the development of a Safe Plan of Care for each
infant affected by illegal substance use, withdrawal symptoms, or a Fetal Alcohol

"" Spectrum Disorder. The Contractor shall ensure participation with:
2.29.1. Birth attendants and the New Hampshire Division of Children. Youth, and

Families (DCYF);. which includes, but is not limited to:

2.29.2. Other community agency supports, which may include but are not limited
to:

2.29.2.1. Home visitations services.

2.29.2.2. WIC.

2.29.2.3. Housing agencies.

2.29.2.4. Other services central to recovery and parenting.

14. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1. Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.30.
to read:

2.30. The Contractor shall work with hospitals to aid in preparing the hospital system with
the clinical policies and procedures necessary, to address neonatal abstinence
syndrome in the newborn while supporting the mother's recovery.

15. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work; Subsectbn 2.40.
to read:

2.40.'^ The Contractor shall ensure all sites are in compliance with confidentiality
requirements, which include, but are not limited to:

2.40.1. Applicable federal and state laws.

2.40.2. HIPAA Privacy Rule.

2.40.3. 42C.F.RPart2.

16. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Work, Subs/cti^ 2.42.
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Amendment #2 ^ Contractor Initials i
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to read:

2.42. The Contractor shall provide a written vyork plan to the Department for review and
approvai, ensuring the plan describes the process for ensuring the completion of ail.-
aspects of the Scope of Services (Section 2), Staffing (Section 3). and Training
(Section 4) as outlined in this Contract within thirty (30) days of Governor and
Executive Council approval of the Contract. The Contractor shall provide monthly
status reports based on work plan progress that includes, but Is not limited to:

2.42.1.. Staff retained to support MAT at each site:

2.42.2. Number of prescribers waivered to prescribe Ixjprenorphine at each site;
N

2.42.3. Outreach activities conducted by the Contractor and by each site;

2.42.4. Policies and practices established;

2.42.5. Encountered and' foreseeable issues, along with actual or suggested
resolutions; • •

2.42.6. Changes made to the Initial work plan;

2.42.7. Training and technical assistance provided to or needed by each site; and

2.42.8. Other progress to date.

17. Modify'Exhlbit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services. Section 3. Staffing. Subsection 3.5. to read:

3.5. RESERVED

18. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services. Section 4. Training, Paragraph 4.2.3. to
read:

4.2.3. RESERVED.

19. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1. Scope of Services, Section 4, Training. Section 4.3. to read:

4.3. RESERVED

20. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 4, Training, Section 4.5. to read:

4.5. RESERVED

21. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #.1. Scope of Services. Section 4. Training, Section 4.7. to read:
4.7. The Contractor shall assist practice staff in atteriding externally provided formal

trainings where appropriate.

22. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1. Scope of Services. Section 2,. Scope of Work, by adding
Subsection 4.8 to read:

4.8. The Contractor and all its sites shall report all critical incidents and sentinel events to
the Department In writing as soon as possible arid no more than 24 hours following
the incident. The Contractor agrees that:

4.8.1. "Critical incident" means any actual or alleged event or situation that creates
a significant risk of substantial or serious harm to physical or mental health,
safety, or well- being, including but not limited to:

4.8.1.1. Abuse; C-04
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital 1/5/2021
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4.S.i.5. Exploitation;

4.8.1.4. Rights violation;

4.8.1.5. Missing person;

4.8.1.6. • Medical emergency;

4.8.1.7. Restraint; or

■  4.8.1.8. Medical error.

4.8.2. All contact with law enforcement shall be reported to the Department In
writing as soon as possible and no rnore than 24 hours following the incident;

4.8.'3. All media contacts shall be 'reported to the Department.in writing as soon as
possible and no more than 24 hours following the Incident;

4.8.4. • All sentinel events, Involving any individual receiving sen/Ices under this
contract, shall be reported to the Department as follows:

4.8.4.1. "Sentinel events" as defined by the Department's Sentinel Event
Reporting and Review policy Is an unexpected occurrence
Involving death or serious physical or psychological Injury, or the
.risk thereof. Serious Injury specifically Includes loss of limb or
function.

4!8.4.2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shall provide
Immediate veitial notification of the event to the Department,

which shall include:

^  4.8.4.1. The reporting Individual's name, phone
numt)er, and organization;

4.8.4.2. Name and date of birth of the
Individual(s) Involved In the event;

4.8.4.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

4.8.4.4. Description of the event. Including what,
when, where, how the event happened,

. aixl other.relevant Information, as well as
the identification of any other Individuals
involved;

4.8.4.5. Whether the police were Involved due to
a crime or suspected crime; and

4.8.4.6. The Identification of any media that
I  reported the event.

4.8.4.7. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the
Contractor shall submit a completed

"Sentinel Event Reporting Form"
(February 2017), available at
httDs://www.dhhs.nh.QOv/dcbcs/docume

nts/reportinQ-form.docx the

Department; and

Mary Hitchcock Manorial Hospital Amendment #2 Contractor initials
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——^ 4.0.4.6. Additional information on the event that is

discovered after filing the form in Item
4.8.4.1.1.7. above shall be reported to

the Department, In writing, as it becomes
available or upon request of the
Department.

23. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1; Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Work, by adding
Subsection 4.9. to read:

4.9. The Contractor shall report all Critical and Sentinel events as outlined in Subsection
4.8, to other agencies as required by law.

24. Modify Exhibit A.- Amendment #1, Scope of Services. Section 2, Scope of Work, by adding
Subsection 4.10. to read:

4.10. The Contractor shall submit, and ensure all Sites submit, additional information
regarding Critical and Sentinel events if required and as requested by the Department.

25. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Work, Section 2, Scope of Work, by adding
Subsection 4.11. to read: c

4.11. The Contractor shall submit a sustainability plan, to the Department for review and
approval, at least three (3) months prior to the end of this contract.

26. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scop^f Services. Section 5, Reporting to read:
5. Reporting and Data Collection

5.1. The Contractor shall assist and ensure each site collects, reports and submits de-
identified, aggregate patient data that includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. Demographics and measures for all program participants, as identified by the
Department.

5.1.2. Number of people referred to or from local and regional Doorways, detailing
DoooA^ay and service.

5.1.3. Federally-required data points specific to this funding opportunity, as
identified by SAMHSA.

5.1.4. The number of additional supports and services provided, by type of service
and support.

5.2. The Contractor, in collaboration with the Department, shall analyze and utilize data
collected to promote quality improvement efforts of this project.

5.3. The Contractor shall report all data in Section 5 to the Ciepartment for ail sites in totality
as well as individually in a format approved by the Department.

5.4. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic
surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department
and/or SAMHSA.

5.5. The Contractor shall report on and submit all data points in Section 5, as requested by
the Department, on the 20"^ day of each month, and send the results in de-identified,
aggregate form to the Department using a Department-approved format. ^
5.6. The Contractor must submit a final report to the Department within 4^;^ys of

Mary Htchcock Memorial Hospital Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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conclusion of the contract which includes, but is not limited to:

5.6.1. A summary of Information detailing progress made toward
completion of all aspects of the Scope of Services, including
challenges encountered and actions taken;

5.6.2. Total of de-identified and aggregate data by Site and by program as
a whole;

5.6.3. Demographics of participants;

5.6.4. Number of patients receiving MAT prior to program Implernentation

compared to number of patients receiving MAT at end of Contract,
Including demographic (e.g.,' gender, age, race, ethnicity) and
outcome data as appropriate;

5.6.5. Training and technical assistance provided; and

5.6.6. Other progress to date.

27. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 6, Performance Measures to read:

6. Performance Measures

6.1. The following aggregate performance indicators are to be achieved annually and
^  ■ monitored monthly to measure the effectivenessjDf the agreement:

6.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that fifty percent (50%) of women referred to the

program who consent to treatment and qualify based on clinical evaluation will
enter OUD treatment as reported by the Sites.

6.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of women identified by

ASAM criteria as in need of a higherjievel of care will be referred to treatment
services in .order to increase referral of pregnant and postpartum worhen to
OUD treatment providers, as reported by the Sites.

6.1.3. The Contractor shall attempt to lower positive urine drug screens for illicit

substances for pregnant women served in this program by five percent (5%)
from State Fiscal Year 2020 to State Fiscal Year 2021. as reported by the Sites.

6.2. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the Department, a corrective action
plan, in a format approved by the Department, for any performance measure that was
not achieved. - ,

6.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department on the development, reportir^g, and

quality Improvement efforts for additional performance measures and outcome
indicators.

28. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1. Scope of Services, by adding Section 7, State Opioid Response
(SOR) Grant Standards to read:

7. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

•- 7.1. In order to receive payments for ^rvices provided through SOR granTltinded
initiatives, the Contractor shall ensure each Site.

Mary Hiichcock Memorial Hospital Amendment« Contractor Initials
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7.1.1. Establishes formal information sharing and referral agreements with all

Doorways for substance use services that comply sfvith all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

7.1.2. Completes Client referrals to applicable Doonways for substance use services
within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the program.

7.1.3. Only provides medical withdrawal management services to any individual
supported by SCR Grant Funds if the withdrawal management service is
accompanied by the use of injectable extended-release naltrexone. as

clinically appropriate.

7.2. The Contractor shall ensure that-only FDA-approved MAT for DUD is utilized.

7.3.' The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty <30)
days of the contract effective date.

7.4. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation. ̂

7.5. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans

associated with SOR funcjed activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

—  7.6.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required timeframe, the

Contractor shall submit an updated implementation plan to the Department
for approval to outline anticipated sen/ice start dates.

7.6.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and liquidate
unspent funds, if services are not in place within ninety (90) days of the

contract effective date.

7.6. The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or private health insurance,

if the client is determined eligible for such coverage and will have staff trained in
Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid.

7.7. The Contractor shall accept clients for MAT and facilitate access to MAT on-site or
through referral for- all clients supported with SOR Grant funds, as clinically
appropriate.

7.8. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program for clients

identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

7.9. The Contractor shall ensure that all clients are regularly screened for, tobacco use,

treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of treatment planning.

7.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with
all appropriate DHHS, State of NH. SAMHSA, and other Federal terms, conditions,
and requirement.

7.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that: ' ̂

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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7.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder

(OUD).

7.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any'individual who or organization

that provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating
substance use or mental disorders.

7.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
under5tandir>g (MpU) that receive SOR funding.

7.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

7.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department
within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

7.12. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit C for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to;

7.12.1. • Invoicing;

•7.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

7.12.3. Billing.

29. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing In its entirety with
Exhibit B. Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in order to update
references specific to grant funding, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein'.

30. Add Exhibit B-5. Amendment #2, SOR II which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
hereiri.

31. Add Exhibit B-6, Amendment #2, SOR II which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9^
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall l>e retroactively effective to September 30. 2020
upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/5/2021

Date

V  Pocitflamd ky:

1 KdijA. fMt
N—PQtOI«Ba<Cft344?

Name;Katja fox .

Title. Qi rector

1/5/2021

Date

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

C-0*cuSlgfw4bir
-oooMtiBnaiMM.-

N amgOennvrerLopez

Title: Director of Research Operations Finance

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
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M-

The preceding Amendment; having been reviewed by this.office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

.  OocuSte^br

1/15/2021 1̂
 mrfiTmTf.yrrinr

Oite
Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Mary Hllchcxx* Memorial Hospital Amendment #2
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EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #2

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Pavment

1. This Agreement is funded by100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI081685
and as awarded on 9/30/2020. by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI080246.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement;

2.1 .The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient in accordance with 2 GFR
200.330.

2.2. the Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 GFR
§200.87.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillrrient of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits B-1, Amendment #1, Budget through Exhibit 8-6, Amendment #2. SOR
II.

4. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement as follows:

4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or or payer sources.

4.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows;

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization
'  (MCO), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the

MCO:

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the
Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client In accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale
Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the 25th working
day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed,dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoicesp^l be net any

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital ExhWlB Contractof inflJais
RFP-20ieeOAS-05-lNTEG-01-A02 P«9« ̂  oT 5 D«®

Pev. 01/08/19



DocuSign Envelope ID: 22E1D175-C472-43AE-AEEF-7AAE7066468E

DocuSIgn Envelope ID; 894A5096-2B27-4A1&-98l2-427B3B253ie5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant and Postpartum

EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #2

other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The
Contractor shall ensure;

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for wages
reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries and
wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates are available upon request from the
Department.

5.1.2.3. The Contractor shall hold all subcontractors to the same rules and regulations
stated in this Exhibit B.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses that include, but are not limited to:

^.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs:

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract;

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses;

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees;

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide
mariiuana or treatment using marijuana;

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties; and

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally unallowable
unless they are an integral part of a conference grant or
specifically stated as an allowable expense in the FOA. Grant
■funds may be used for light snacks, not to exceed $3.00 per

£
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

person for clienls.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.3.2. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year

5.1.3.3. Cost center reports

5.1.3.4. Profit and loss report

5.1.3.5. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not
need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available
upon request.

5.1.3.6. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or off-set based
on third party revenue received.

5.1.3.7. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions included in the FOA.

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoice^ may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to;

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

8. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of me
last day of me billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to iapproyal of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds are available,
subject to Paragraph 4 of me General Provisions (Form Number P-37) of this Agreement.

10.The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance svim
funding requirements..

12.The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be \MthheId, in >vhole or in
part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A Amendment#2 Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or qu^r^^ reports.

Mary HilchcocX Memorial Hosj^lal Erftibit 8 Conuactor initials
RFP-2018-BOAS-05-INTEG-01-A02 PaoaSolS Dale

Rev. 01/08/19 i .
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EXHIBIT S, Amendment #2

13. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal-Years
and budget dass lines through the Budget Office-may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

14. Audits

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit ah annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions.exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds
received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most

recently completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:26, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations
receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor.is a public company and required by Security
and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual
financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed

by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department withini 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with
the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial
audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the dose of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the
Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding .source, may be
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the
Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments

e
al ExMbit B Comraclor IniUat

RFP'2016'BOAS4)&>INTEG-01-A02
Mary Hitchcock Manorial Hospital E*Wbii B Comracior iniUais

PdQ«4ol5 DateliZZZZlZ

Rev. 01/08/19
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EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #2

made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Mary Hitchcock Manofial Hospital E*hlb«B Cortractof Inftials YflflOll
RFP-2018'80AS-05-INTEG-01-A02 Pago 5. ol 5 Date

Rev. 01/08/19
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiyiSfON FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

.  129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27I-9S44 I-800452-334S ExL 9544

Fax:603'27M332 TOO Accos: I-W0-73S-2964 www.dhhj.nh.jov

September 19, 2019

His Excetiency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House ^

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health, to
retroactively exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with Mary Hitchcock Memorial
Hospital. Vendor #177160, One Medical Center Drive. Lebanon, NH 03756. to provide integrated
obstetric, primary care, pedlatric. and Medication Assisted Tr^eatment (MAT) for pregnant and postpartum
women with opioid use disorder by increasing the price limitation by $1,499,970 frorn^ $2,755,443 to
$4,255,413'and by extending the completion date from June 30,2019 to September 30. 2020, retroactive
to June 30. 2019. effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on January 24.
2018 (Item #8 Vote 5-0).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account(s) for Stale
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limilatiori and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office.-if needed and justined.

05-95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731 Contracts for

Prooram Services

92052559 $ 862,630 $0 $ 862,630

2019 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services

92052559 $1,892,813 SO $1,892,813

2020 102-500731 Contracts for

Program Services

92052559 $0 $600,000 $600,000

Subtotal $2,755,443 $600,000 $3,355,443
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05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL

SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budqet .

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Modified

Budqet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for

Proqram Services

92057040 $ 0 $603,472 $ 603.472

2021 102-500731 Contracts for

Prooram Services

92057040 $0 $296,498 $298,498

Subtotal $0 $899,970 $099,970

Total $2,765,443 $1,499,970 $4,255,413

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because additional time was required to address invoice
matters that needed to be resolved prior to executing this amendment. The Department also
held discussions with the Contractor during this time to identify necessary changes to the scope
of work, described below, that will allow the Contractor to achieve desired positive outcomes for
the targeted population and service areas.

This purpose of this request is to allow the Contractor to continue to serve their target
population and geographic areas without interruption, while revising the project to accurately
reflect changes to the scope of services by reducing the number of service sites from eight (8)
to six (6). Through the initial agreement, the Contractor collaborated with the Department to
identify and approach agencies in geographic areas of need and was able to reach agreement
with six (6) of the eight (8) sites proposed and offer services at the following locations: Dartmouth
Hitchcock - Keene, Dartmouth Hitchcock - Manchester. Dartmouth Hitchcock - Nashua. Coos
County Family Health, Goodwin Cornmunity Health - Dover, and Darthmoth Hitchcock -
Lebanon. They were unable to reach agreement with two (2) additional providers who were not
interested in expanding their services at this time. Changes reflected lathis amendment will
allow the Contractor to continue to achieve positive outcomes for the women arwl children served
at the six (6) existing sites.

The Contractor will continue to provide integrated obstetric care, primary care, pediatric
care and Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) for pregnant and postpartum women with opioid
use disorder and any co-occurring mental health disorders. MAT services will be integrated with
prenatal and postpartum care, and provided with parenting support and education at six (6) sites
across New Hampshire, including sites in the high need areas of Belknap and Coos Counties
where opioid use disorder treatment services are limited.

Approximately 260 individuals served from July 1. 2019 through September 30. 2020.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-l, Revisions to Gerieral
Provisions, Section 3. Extension, that allows the Department to renew the contract for up to two
(2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance of sen/ice,
parties* written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The
Department is in agreement with renewing services for one (1) year and three (3) months of the
two (2) years at this time.
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The Contractor delivers seivices through both a Perinatal Addiction Treatment Program
in Lebanon. NH that is integrated Nvith obstetrics/gynecology and pedlatric care on-site and at
seven (7) other sites virhich are obstetrical/gynecological practices that are enhanced with
Medication Assisted Treatment services and pediatric care.

The State of New Hampshire.was awarded funding authorized through the 21st Century
CURES Act by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration which is
overseeing the process for states to receive federal funding through the State Targeted
Response to the Opioid Crisis Grants Program. New Hampshire's application is a joint effort by
several state agencies and proposes to use evidence-based methods to expand treatment,
recovery and prevention services to targeted populations. These critical funds will strengthen
established programs that have had a positive impact on the opioid crisis as well as expanding
the capacity for programs that have shown promise in helping individuals battling a substance
misuse issue and combatting the epidemic in New Hampshire.

In 2018, the State of New Hampshire experienced four hundred seventy-one (471) deaths
from drug overdoses. At present, the State is experiencing an increase in the need for
population-specific Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services for
pregnant women due to a rise in Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome in infants born to mothers who
have used opioids. Babies with this syndrome experience symptoms of drug withdrawal and
require special treatment prior to leaving the hospital. It is critical that providers develop
integration of services, approaches to meet individual client needs, and approaches to maximize
State and Federal dollars to meet the public's demand for these specific sen/ices. The sen/ices
provided by the Contractor will be comprehensive and focused not only on the mother's recovery,
but also on ensuring that the infant is receiving the necessary health and social supports and
services to mitigate risk associated with maternal opioid use.

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital's effectiveness in delivering services will be measured
through monitoring of the following aggregate performance measures on an annual basis;
•  Fifty percent (50%) of women referred to the program, who consent to treatment and qualify

based on clinical evaluation, will enter opioid use disorder (OUD) treatment as reported by
the Contractor.

• Seventy-five percent (75%) of women identified by American Society of Addiction Medicine
(ASAM) criteria as in need of a higher level of care will be referred to treatment services in
order to increase referral of pregnant and postpartum women to OUD treatment providers as
reported by the Contractor.

•  Five percent (5%) decline in neonatal abstinence syndrome (NAS) rates of infants born to
mothers served in this program, not attributable to the mother taking MAT medications as
prescribed, as reported by the Contractor.

•  Five percent (5%) decrease in positive urine drug screens for illicit substances for pregnant
women served in this program as reported by the Contractor.

•  Five percent (5%) decrease in reports to Division for Children, Youth, and Family (DCYF) of
substance-exposed infants born to mothers served in this program, not attributable to the
mother taking MAT medications as reported by the Contractor and through the use of
collected hospital and DCYF data.
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Should the Governor and Execulive Council not authorize this request, pregnant and
postpartum women in New Hampshire diagnosed with opioid use disorder may not receive the
support necessary to overcome their addiction which could negatively impact their health and
the heatth of their newborn child(ren).

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds; 100% Federal Funds. CFDA#93.788 /FAIN# TI0B0246 and FAIN #
TI081685.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

ersJefrey A. M
Corn^issioner

77w Departmtnl ofHtollh and Human Serweet' Mission is to join eommunilUs and fomilies
in providing opportunities for diiesns to oehitue health and independenee.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMEI^Of INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Haten Dr.. Concord, NH OMOl
Fftx: 6C3.27M516 TDD Accesa: l-MO-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

E^nl) Goulet
Commissioner

September 23,2019

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Depftrtment of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a retroactive contact amendment with Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital, of Lebanon NH as described below and referenced as Doll No. 20i8-047A.

This is a request'to enter into a retroactive contract amendment with Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital to provide integrated obstetric, primary care, pcdiatric, and
' medication assisted treatment for pregnant and postpartum women with substance use

disorder (SUD). Tltls will also include utiliiing the State's Prescription Drug Monitoring
Program (POM?) database to mitigate prescription drug diversion or harmful
interactions.

The funding amount for this amendment is $1,499,970.00, Increasing the current contract
from S2,755,443.00 to $4,255,413.00, retroactive to June 30.2019 and by extending the
completion date.from June 30, 2019 to September 30, 2020, efTcclivc upon Governor and
Executive Council approval.

A copy of this letter should ^company the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Govemor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

/P/Z

Denis Goulet

DG/kaf/ck
DolT«20l8.047A

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

'Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'
' I
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for
Pregnant and Postpartum Women Contract

This Amendment to the Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment for Pregnant and Postpartum
Worhen contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #1') Is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Heelth and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Mary Hitchcock. Memorial Hospital, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor), a
nonprofit corporation with a place of business at Dartmouth-Hitchcock. One Medical Center Drive.
Lebanon, NH 03756.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive CounctJ
on January 24. 2018. (Item #8), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agre^ to make changes to the scope of work; payment
schedules or terrfis and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, (General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions. Paragraph 3. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of sen/Ices to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract, and set forth herein. the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: {

A I

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read: \

September 30. 2020.

-  ft.2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: *

$4,255,413. J.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:.

Nathan D. White. Director.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.10, Slate Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.
I

5. Form P-37. Ger^ral Provisions. Section 14. Insurance. Subsection 14.2, to read:

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on policy forms and
endorsements approved for use in the State of New Harrtpshire by the N.H. Department
of Insurance.

' 6. Form P-37, General Provisions, Section 15, Workers' Compensation, Subsection 15.2, to read:

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A,.
Contractor shall maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and
maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement as required in N.H. RSA«|i(<|i^r
281-A. Contractor shall furnish the Contracting (Officer Identified in block 1.9,

Mary Hitchcock MemorisI Hosptlal AmorKknont#t Cor^lraaor Initta

RFP-2018-80A$-05JNTEG-OVA01 Page 10(4 Date
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successor, proof of Worlcers' Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renews 1(8) thereof, which shall be attached and are inco^orated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payrherit of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or any
subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

7. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A • Amendment #1.
Scope of Services.

8. Add Exhibit B-3. Amendment #1.

9. Add Exhibit B-4. Amendment If 1.

10. Delete Exhibit K, OHHS Information Security Requirements, dated 032917, and replace with
Exhibit K, OHHS Information Security Requirements, v4, dated October 2018.

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hos(^ta)

RFP-2018-BOAS-OS-INTEG-OVA01

Amendmantsi

Paga2ol4

Ccrttractor Initl

Data
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This amendment shall be retroactively effective to Jur>e 30. 2019. upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services

Date
ifJjS.

Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

k
Date

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

Name: B.Juopr<J 'S- rf^tf/tnS
Title: C^lr\l^4

Acknowledgement of^ontEaetOiXsignature:

State of fvJfcu) County of G-nuAt>f\ on-5fcf>k>^V^/" (i»^^.^ofe the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknovirledged that s/he executed this document In the
capacity, indicated above.

.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

//liJrw (^rvLeiilU AJO'hLrH ■ fUjtC
Name and Title of f^otary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: 1^

OARrs ;

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

RFP*201&-BOAS-0$-INTEG-01-A01

Amendmenl 0\

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this offtce. is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

c

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date 'f ^ Naryfe: ^

I hereby certify, that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Mary HilchcocX Memorial Hospital Amendmeni 01

RFP-2018-BOAS-0iS-INTEG-O1-A01 Pooe4of4
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Exhibit A - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Provlelons Applicable to All Services

'1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they uvill provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court ordere may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve comptiance
therewith.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall provide comprehensive Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) for
pregnant and postpartum women diagnosed with opioid use disorder (OUD) and co*
occurring mental health disorders, integrated with prenatal and postpartum care, and
provide parenting support and education for parents at six (6) sites across the State
of New Hampshire, including one (1) in Coos County.

2.2. The Contractor shall deliver the required services in Lebanon through the Dartmouth
Hitchcock (D-H) Moms in F^ecovery Program a comprehensive addiction treatment
service with Integrated obstetrical/gynecologicat (06/Gyn) services and pediatric care
offered on-site.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure delivery of the required services at the five (5) other sites
where services shall be offered by OB/Gyn practices that are enhanced with integrate<f
addiction services and pediatric support.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide project management, program consultation, and clinical
consultation through their O^H Center for Addiction Recovery in Pregnancy, and
Parenting team to each site.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services at all six (6) sites Including, but not limited to:

2.5.1. Oh-site family support for children.

2.5.2. Peer recovery coaches.'

2.5.3. Resource/Employment specialists.

2.5.4. Case management/Care coordination.

2.5.5. Parenting education groups.

2.5.6. Health education.

2.5.7. Social supports including, but not limited to access and/or referrals to food,
housing, and transportation services.

2.6. The Contractor shall employ a licensed behavioral health clinician whose
responsibilities shall include, but not be limited to:

2.6.1. ̂  Providing necessary supenrision at each site.

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital Exhibit A - Amendment #1

RFP-2018-60AS-05-IHTEG-01-A01 Page 1 of 13

Contractor I

Date
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Exhibit A - Amendment

2.6.2. Supporting and n^ntoring for weekly N^T'visits.

2.6.3. Supporting and- mentoring of the leadership providing group therapy for
participating women.

2.6.4. Collaborating with each site to identify or develop behavioral health resources
in the local community.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure each site:

2.7.1. Identifies a minimum of one (1) waivered provider to prescribe
buprenorphine.

2.7.2. Provides consultative phone calls over a twelve (12)-month period In a
frequency determined necessary by the providers and the Contractor.

2.8. The Contractor shall provide services through the D-H Moms In Recovery Program
which include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Collaborating with the Fam9y Resource Centers, whose services include, but
are not limited to:

2.8.1.1. Home visiting.

2.8.1.2. Lactation support.

2.8.1.3. Case management.

2.8.2. Providing parent education groups to program participants on a regular basis
which integrate the parenting education curriculum with addiction treatment,
so that participants have the opportunity to learn about the impact of
substance use on family functioning and heatthy child development.

2.8.3. Providing educational sessions to all pregnancy groups which include, but are
not limited to The Period of Purple Crying,' safe sleep practices, and car seat
safety and are integrated vrith newborn nursery and outpatient pediatric follow
up.

2.8.4. Collaborating vrith Continuum of Care Coordinators as part of Region 1
Integrated Delivery Network (IDN).

2.8.5. Participating in the Boyte Program, which co-sponsors and facilitates the Child
Focus Forum, a bi-monthly collaborative of medical, govemmental and
community agencies serving parents and children.

2.8.6. Offering co-located child 'play time,* which provides supportive child
engagement that allows v^omen to participate fully In group therapy and
receive ca re without distraction.

2.8.7. Sponsoring co-location of resources such as a food pantry, infant books, and
diaper bankUhrough active partnerships with community agencies such as
The Upper Valley Haven end The Family Place.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure patient-centered, effective, integrated care and attention
to overdose prevention by employing educational materials which include, txit are not
limited to:

2.9.1. Center for Disease Control (CDC) opioid prescribing guidelines.

Mary rttchcock Memorial Hospital Exhibit A-Amendment 01
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2.9.2. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administietion's (SAMHSA's)
Opiold Overdose Prevention Toolkit.

2.9.3. State-published Guidance Document on Best Practices: Key Corhponents for
Oelivering Community Based Medication Assisted Treatment Services for
Opioid Use Disorders in New Hampshire.

2.9.4.. Care guidelines for OB/6YN providers and delivery hospitals developed by
the Northern New England Perinatal Quality Improvement Network
(NNEPOIN). .

2.10. The Contractor shall provide interim CUD treatment services when the needed
treatment services are not available to the participant within forty-eight (46) hours of
referral.

2.11. The Contractor shall provide QUO treatment services that support the Resiliency and
Recovery Oriented Systems of Care (RROSC) by operationalizing the Continuum of
Care Mode). (More information can be found at
httD://www.dhhs.nh.Qov/dcbcs/bdas/CQntinuum^f-oare.htm.)

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure that participants are able to easily transition t>etween
levels of care within a group of services which includes, but is- not limited to:

2.12.1. Working with the Continuum of Care Facilitator(s) in the development of a
resiliency and recovery oriented system of care (RROSC) in the region(s).

2.12.2. Participating in the Regional Continuum of Care Workgroup(s).

2.12.3. Participating In the Integrated Delivery Network(s) (lONs).

2.12.4. Working with the Doorways system.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure ongoing communication and care coordination with
entities Involved in the participants' care Including child protective services, treatnr^nt
providers, home visiting services, and pedlatric providers.

2.14. The Contractor shall actively participate in the Regional Continuum of Care and IDN
Region 1. and maintain good relationships with relevant community partners.

2.15. The Contractor shall assist enhanced sites with hiring for any vacant position for a
Recovery Coach to help participants locate community resources including, but not
limited to local recovery centers, peer support meetings, and transitional housing.

2.16. The Contractor shall assist enhanced sites with collaborating with their local/regional
Continuum of Care Facilitators and leaders of their regional Integrated Delivery
Networks to ensure alignment and coordination across these service networks.

2.17. The Contractor shall collaborate with each enhanced site to modify workflows and
electronic records processes to ensure screening and required data collection.

2.18. The Contractor shall modify the obstetrics office electronic health record (EHR) and
clinical work flow, to ensure required screening activities by OB staff and appropriate
required data collection by care coordinators.
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2.19. the Contractor shall utilize the Stale's Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP)
database to mitigate prescription drug diversion or harmful interactions and ,shall
assess each enhanced site's use and support them to develop protocols to monitor
the PDMP regularly.

2.20. The Contractor shaU ensure that D-H Lebanon Addiction Treatment Program protocol
for PDMP monitoring includes, but is not limited to. reviewing the PDMP at a patient's
first visit and the day before each subsequent visit.

2.21. The Contractor shall develop and Implement outreach activities, which may include
maf1(6ting designed to engage pregnant women with an OUD in the community. The
Contractor and Contractor's' sites are not required to market themselves publicly as
substance use disorder treatment centers. The Contractor shall:

2.21.1. Ensure that their staff at the Center for Addiction Recovery in Pregnancy and
Parenting collaborate with the appropriate D-H department to develop
appropriate materials and methods to promote the program throughout their
service areas.

2.21.2. Collaborate with each implementing site to ensure marketing materials, if any.
and outreach methods used, are consistent with the Contractor's standards
and policies in its discretion.

2.21.3. Actively engage with referral networ1(S in the service areas to increase
awareness of ttie program with pregnant women with OUD and to enable the
program to be utilized to its greatest capacity. . -'

2.22. The Contractor shall maintain formal and effective partnerships with behavioral health.
OUD specialty treatment and Recovery Support Services (RSS), and medical
practitioners to meet the needs of the target population and the goals of MAT
Expansion.

2.23. The Contractor shall erasure meaningful input of consumers in program assessment,
planning, Implementation, and improvement which includes, but is not limited to:

2.23.1. Using their Patient.Advisory Board, which meets quarteriy and Is composed
of participants In long-term recovery.

2.23.2. Engaging participants in all stages of recovery in the development of key
program elements through focus groups and targeted Interviews.

2.24. The Contractor shall ensure that treatment Is provided in a child-friendly environment
with childcare support available to participants which Includes, but is not limited to:

2.24.1. Developmentally-appropriate childcare support as well as integration with
pediatric and developmental services at all enhanced sites.

2.24.2. Co-located child 'Play Time' where children engage in developmentalty
appropriate play while their mothers participate in group treatment and receive
care in both Lebanon and Keene.

2.24.3. On-site well-child care at D-H Lebanon Moms in Recovery Program.

'  2.25. The Contractor shall ensure participants' transportation needs are met to maintain
participant involvement in the program by utilizing a Resource Specialist wbe^duties
related to transportation may include, but not be limited to:
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2.25.1. Assisting participants to enroll in Medicaid transpoflatlon services.

2.25.2. Developing a network of support to help with transportation needs.

2.25.3. Identifying resources to help participants to obtain a vaDd driver's license or
an affordable car loan.

2.25.4. Finding housing in close proximity to social services.

2.26. The Contractor shall use data to support quality improvement induding. but not limited
to:

2.26.1. Developing, disseminating, and implementing best practices for pregnant and
parent!^ women with QUO.

2.26.2. Collecting data on participant demographics and more than thirty (30) key
perinatal, neonatal, and treatment outcomes for all program participants,
using a REDCap database designed for this purpose.

2.26.2.1. REOCap allows de-identrfied, participant-level data to be entered
remotely by sites.

2.26.2.2. Data shall be entered for each partidpant from the time of entry into the
program until three (3) months postpartum. For example, a participant
entering care in the late first trimester, data would entered at entiy to
care, at 24-28 weeks of pregnancy, at delivery, and at three (3) months
postpartum.

2.26.2.3. Data shall be utilized for quality Improvement purposes and program
evaluation, as well as development of targeted services at all sites.

2.26.3. Collecting data on key measures identified by the Department and. the
Contractor's multidisciplinary stakeholder group and using the data to track
performanoe.

2.26.3.1. The existing REDCap database shall be expanded as needed to include
additional measures identified by the Department.

2.26.3.2. Site specific data shall be reviewed quarterly.

2.26.4. Reporting data to sites, quarterty and addressing areas flagged for
improvement both directly through discussion and process improvement at
the individual practice level and through learning collaborative sessions with
multiple practices.

2.26.5. Employing a research assistant to support sites with data entry challenges
and ensure data quality.

2.26.6. Analyzing the data and promoting quality Improvement efforts.

2.27. The Contractor shall maintain the infrastructure necessary to achieve the goals of k4AT
Expansion for the target population, to meet SAMHSA requirements, and to deliver
effective medical care to pregnant and postpartum women with an CUD.

2.28. The Contractor shall participate In the State-funded "Community of Practice for MAT"
along with other State-funded prelects which include, but are not limited t( '

2.28.1. Project-specific trainings.
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2.28.2. Quarterly web-based discussions.

2.28.3. OorSite Technical Assistance (TA) visits.

2.28.4. Ad hoc communication with expert consultants on MAT clinical care topics
such as Hepatitis C Virus (HCVO and Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
prevention, diversion risk mitigation, and other relevant issues.

2.29. The Contractor shall participate In the development of a Safe Plan of Care with birth
attendants and the New Hampshire Division of Children. Youth, and Families (DCYF)
for each infant affected by illegal substance use. withdrawal symptoms, or a Fetal
Alcohol Spectrum Disorder, which Includes, but Is not limited to:

2.29.1. Employing a social worker to work with clients in this program.

2.29.2. Ensuring that planning and communication regarding the Safe Plan of Care
vnll also involve other community agency supports Including, but not lirnited to
home visitation. WIG. housing, and other services central to recovery ar>d
parenting.

2.30. The Contractor shall establish formal agreements with hospitals to aid in preparing the
hospital system v^th the clinical policies and procedures necessary to address
neonatal abstinence syndrome in the newborn while supporting the mother's recovery.

2.30.1. The Contractor shall engage with the NNEPQIN leamir>g collaborative, the
organization that has developed policies and procedures to effectively
address.-neonatal abstinence syndrome while supporting the mother's
recovery.

2.31. The Contractor shall have billing capabilities which include, but are not limited to:

2.31.1. Enrolling with Medicaid and other third party payers.

2.31.2. Contracting vwth managed care organizations and Insurance companies for
MAT and deitvery of prenatal care.

2.31.3. Having a proper understanding of the hierarchy of the'billing process.

2.32. The Contractor shall assist the participant vwth obtaining either on-site or off-site RSS's
including, but not limited to:

2.32.1. Transportation.

2.32.2. Childcare.

2.32.3. Peer support groups.

2.32.4. Recovery coach.

2.33. The Contractor shall use the New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Treatment Locator
rhttD://www.nhtreatment.orQl and Doorways to identify specific services that-are
available by location, population, and payer to enable patient choice.

2.34. The Contractor shall establish agreements with specialty treatment organizations that
can provide higher levels of OUD treatnient and co-occurring mental health treatment.

2.35. The Contractor shall deliver parenting and personal development education using
evidence-based curriculum including, but not limited to:
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2.35.1. Marsha Linehan's Dialectical Behavior Therapy approach to treatment and
Lisa Najavlts' Seeking Safety curriculum to increase emotion regulation skills
in participants to address Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) symptoms
and decrease emotional vulnerability that could lead to relapse.

2.35.2. SAMHSA materials. 12-Steplnformalion. and other materials that the program
has developed to increase participants' knowledge of the disease model of
addiction and to enhance understanding of biological vulnerability and the
progression of addiction.

2.35.3. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (GST). SAMSHA materials. 12-Step materials,
and mindfulness-baSed stress reduction approaches to bolster relapse
prevention strategies and improve resiliency.

2.35.4. Ouluth Model Domestic Abuse Intervention Programs and Dialectical
Behavior Therapy (DBT) to promote healthy relationships and decrease risk
of Interpersonal violence.

2.35.5. Circle.of Security and the Nurturing Program for Families in Substance Abuse
Treatment and Recovery curricula to Increase parent-child attachment and

^  increase parents' knowledge of healthy child development.

2.36. The Contractor shall Improve participants' access to a sober network of support and
increased resiliency to relapse which includes. t>ut is not limited' to.

2.36.1. Utilizing an on-site Reco^ry COach who participates in group therapy
sessions and engages ow-on-one with participants to provide additional
support between sessions.

2.36.2. Inviting representatives from 12-Step groups and peer-run recovery groups
on a regular basis to speak to participants.

2.37. The Contractor shall refer relapsing participants to residential or intensive outpatient
care and provide support for accessing appropriate services including, but not limited
to follow-up care after intensive treatment services are completed.

2.38. The Contractor shall provide parenting supports to participants Including, but not
limited to;

2.38.1. Parenting groups.

2.38.2. Childbirth education.

2.38.3. Safe sleep education.

2.39. The Contractor shall collaborate with other providers that offer services to pregnant
women with an OUD including, but not limited to programs funded by the Cures Act
resources for similar populations.

2.40. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with confidentiatity requirements, which
include, but are not limited to:

2.40.1. Applicable federal and state laws.

2.40.2. HIPAA Privacy Rule.

2.40.3. 42C.F.RPart2.
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2.40.3.1. The D-H Moms in Recovefy Program shall be required to follow 42
C.F.R Pan 2 rules.

2.40.3.2. The OB/Gyn programs that will be enhanced with integrated addidion
services are not required to follow 42 C.F.R. Pan 2.

2.41. The Contractor shall panicipate in all evaluation activities associated with the funding
opportunity, including national evaluations.

2:42. The Contractor shall submit an updated wort^ plan to the Department for review end
approval, which describes the process for ensuring the completion of all aspects of the
Scope of Services (Section 2), Staffing (Section 3). and Training (Section 4) as
outlined in this Contract within thirty (30) days of Govemor.and Executive Council
approval of the Contract.

2.43. The Contractor shall maintain policies and procedures and have regular required
employee training (at least annually) in the areas of ethical conduct, confidentiality,
compliance, cyber security, and conflict of interest

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall meet the minimum MAT team staffing requirements to provide
the Scope of Services which Includes, but is not limited to at least one (1):

' 3.1.1. Walvered prescriber.

3.1.2. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselo^(MLADC) or behavioral health
provider with addiction training.

3.1.3. Obstetrician or midvrtfe.

3.1.4. Care coordinator.

3.1.5. Non-clinical/administrative staff.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure that all unlicensed staff providing treatment, education,
and/or recovery support services are under the direct supervision of a licensed
supervisor.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure that no licensed supervisor oversees more than eight (8)
unlicensed staff, unless the Departrnent has approved an alternative supervision plan.

3.4. The Contriactor shall ensure that at least one Certified Recovery Support Worker
(CRSW) is available for every fifty (50) participants or portion thereof.

3.5. The Contractor shall ensure that unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support
services must hold a CR$W within six (6) months of hire or from the effective date of
this contract, whichever is later.

4. Training

4.1. The Contractor shall make available initial and on-going training resources to all staff
including, but not limited to buprenorphrne waiver training for physicians, nurse
practitioi^em, and physician assistants. The Contractor shall develop a plan for
Department approval to train and engage appropriate staff.
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4.2. The Contractor shall participate In training and technical assistant activities as directed
by the Department including, but not limited to the Community of Practice for MAT
which may include, but is not limited to:

4.2.1. Project-specific trainings.

4.2.2. Quarterty web-based discussions.

4.2.3. On-site technical assistance visits.

4.2.4. Ad hoc communication with expert consultants regarding MAT clinical care
topics including, but not limited to:

4.2.4.1. HCV and HIV prevention.

4.2.4.2. Diversion risk mitigation.

4.2.4.3. Other relevant issues.

4.3. The Contractor shall train staff on relevant topics which may Include, but are not limited
to:

4.3.1. Integrated care.

4.3.2. Trauma-informed care.

4.3.3. MAT (e.g. prescriber tralnbig for buprenorphine).

4.3.4. Care coordination.

4.3.5. Trauma-informed wrap around care/RSS delivery best practices.

4.3.6. Evidence-Based Practices (EBPs) such as Screening. Brief Intervention, and
Referral to Treatment (SBIRT).

4.3.7. Buprenorphine waiver trainings, available locally and at \vebsites includir>g.
but not limited to:

4.3.7.1. https://www.sdmh$a.gov/m8dication-assisted-treatmentAralnirig-
resources/buprenorphlne-phySician-tralning

4.3.7.2. http$://www.asam.org/education/live-online-cme/buprenorphine-course

4.3.7.3. httDs://aanD.inreachce.com/De1ails?QrouDld=714cb0a9-73b2-4daf-
e382-27cbdb70ef5a

4.3.6, Cognitive behavioral therapy, dialectical behavior therapy, motivational
enhancement therapy, mindfulness. and relapse prevention.

4.4. The Contractor shall provide ongoing supervision for buprenorphine prescribers with
access to consultation from experienced providers.

4.5. The Contractor's Center for Addiction Recovery in Pregnancy and Parenting shall offer
online training, CME/CNE events, and monthly teaming coUaboratives to each practice
including, but not limited to:

4.5.1.1. Toolkil of training materials.

4.5.1.2. Weekly team meetings on day of clinic facilitated by the behavioral
health clinician.
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4.5.1.3. Monthly webinar learning coDaboratives for all parlicipating practices
with rotating topics

4.5.1.4. Quarterly ln>person gatherings.for all participating practices, focused on
relationship building and sharing of experiences, hosted- at rotating
locations to maximize participation.

4.5.1.5. Annual CME event aimed at all staff involved In this model of care,

4.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Doorways to provide assistance to all sites
regarding training and logistics for the distribution of naloxone kits to patients and
family members.

4.7. The Contractor shall assist practice staff in attending the following externally provided
formal trainings:

4.7.1. CRSW training (or prospective Recovery Coaches

4.7.2. Buprenorphine training for MDs/PAs/ARNPs

4.7.3. Smoking cessation training for any interested staff

4.7.4. Motivational Interviewing training for any interested staff

4.7.5. Additional trainings on trauma-informed care and other evidence based
treatment strategies as Indicated

5. Reporting

5.1. The Contractor shall gather, monitor, and submit participant data to the Department
monthly. Participant data will t>e submitted in de-identified, aggregate forrn to the
Department using a Department-approved method. The data being collected Includes
all data points required in the Treatment Episode Data for Admissions.

5.2. The Contractor shall report on federally-required data points specific to this fundir>g
opportunity quarterly and send the results in de-identtfied. aggregate form to the
Department using a Department-approved method. The required data points include,
but are not limited to:

5.2.1. Number of participants with OUD's:

.  5.2.1.1. In total.

5.2.1.2. Receiving integrated MAT with prenatal care.

5.2.1.3. Receiving care coordination/case management.

5.2.1.4. Receiving peer recovery support services.

5.2.1.5. Parlicipating in parenting education programming.

5.2.1.6. Referred to or placed in recovery housing.

5.2.1.7. Referred to higher levels of care. ^

5.2.2. Number of providers in the program implementing MAT.

5.2.3. Number of OUD prevention and treatment providers trained by the program
Including, but not limited to Nurse Practitioners. Physician's A^i^t^ts,
physicians, nurses, counselors, social workers. aixJ case maniaj
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5.2.4. Numbers and rates of opioid overdose-related deaths within population
served.

5.2.5. Number of children receiving childcare services by MAT program.

5.2.6. Number of infartts in the program born with NAS not attributable to the mother
taking prescribed MAT medicdtlons.

5.2.7. Number of referrals made to IXYF for substance-exposed infants not
attributable to ttte mother taking prescribed MAT medications.

5.3. The Contractor shall require that all MAT-providIng implementation sites report on the
data points specified by the Department, utilizing a standardized protocol.

5.3.1. Each site will have exclusive access to protected health information for Its own
participants, and REDCap wilt be used to facilitate reporting of de-identified,
aggregated data.

5.3.2. The Contractor shall provide a research assistant to help sites develop and
implement appropriate site-specrfic data collection strategies to ensure
compliance with reporting protocols.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide a final report to the Department within thirty (30) days of
the termination of the contract which will include the following de-ldentifi^ Information
based on the work plan progress, but shall not be limited to:

5.4.1. Policies and practices established.

5.4.2. Outreach activities.

5.4.3. Demographics of participants.

5.4.4. Outcome data (as directed by the Department).

5.4.5. Participant satisfaction.

5.4.6. Description of challenges encountered and action taken.

5.4.7. Other progress to date.

5.4.8. A sustainability plan to continue to provide MAT services to the target
population beyond the completion date of the contract, subject to approval by
the Department.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a report to the Department regarding critical incidents
and sentinel events which include, but are not limited to:

5.5.1. All critical Incidents to the Department in writing as soon as possible and no
more than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor agrees that:

5.5.1.1. 'Critical inddenf means any actual or alleged event or situation that
creates a significant risk of substantial or serious harm to physical or
mental heaith. safety. or well- being. Including but not limited to:

5.5.1.1.1. Abuse;

5.5.1.1.2. Neglect;

5.5.1.1.3. • Exploitation;
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5.5.1.1.4. RIghls violation;

5.5.1.1.5. Missing person;

5.5.1.1.6. Medical emergency;

.5.5.1.1.7. Restraint; Of

5.5.1.1.6. Medical error.

5.5.2. All contact with law enforcement to the Department In writing as soon as
possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident.

5.5.3. All media contacts to the Department in writing as soon as possible and no
more than 24 hours following the incident.

5.5.4. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

5.5.4.1. Sentinel events shall be reported when they involve any individual who
is receiving services under this contract.

5.5.4.2. Upon discovering the event, the Cohtractor shall provide Immediate
verbal notrflcalion of the event to the Department, which shall include:

5.5.4.2.1. The reporting individual's name, phone number-, and
agency/organization..^

5.5.4.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the Individual(s) involved
in the event. -

5.5.4.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event.

5.5.4.2.4. Description of the event. Including what. when, where, how
the event happened, and other relevant Information, as well
as the identi^catlon of any other Individuals involved.

5.5.4.2.5. Whether the police were involved due to a crime or
suspected crime.

5.5.4.2.6. The identification of any media that had repbrted! the event.

5.5.4.3. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shall submit a
completed "Sentinel Event Re^rting Form" (February 2017). available
at https:/Awww.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbc5/documents/reporting-form.pdf to the
Department.

5.5.4.4. Additional information on the event that is discovered after filing the form
in Section1.9.4.3. above shall be reported to the Department, in vmting,
as it t>ecomes available or upon request of the Department; and

5.5.4.5. Submit additional information regarding Sections 5.5.4.1 through 5.5.4.4
atwve if required by the department; and

5.5.4.6. Report the event in Sections 5.5.4.1 through 5.5.4.4 above, as
applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

6. Performance Measures

6.1. The following aggregate performance indicators are to be annually a^
monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
integrated Medication Aaeieted Treatment for
Pregnant and Postpartum Women

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

• 6.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that fifty percent (50%) of women referred to the
program who consent to treatment and qualify based on clinical evaluation will
enter OUD treatment as reported by the Contractor.

6.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of women identified
by ASAM criteria as in need of a higher level of care will be referred to
treatment services in order to increase referral of pregnant and postpartum
women to ODD treatment providers as reported by the Contractor.

6.1.3. The Contractor shall attempt to ensure that NAS rates of infants bom to
mothers served in this program not attributable to the mother taking MAT
medications as presented will decline by five percent (5%) from SFY16 to
SFY19 as repoded by the Contractor.

6.1.4. The Contractor shalt attempt to tower positive urine drug screens for Illicit
substances for pregnant women served in this program by five percent (5%)
from SFY18 to SFY19 as reported by the Contractor.

6.1.5. The Contractor shall seek to help tov^r reports to OCYF of substance-
. exposed infants bom to mothers served in this ixogram, not attributable to the
mother taking MAT medications as prescribed by five percent (5%) from
SFY1B to SFY19. This performance measure will be reported by the
Contractor and through the use of collected hospital and DCYF data.

6.2. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the Department, a corr^tive
action plan for any performance measure that was not achieved. —

Mary Kit^wocK Memorial Hospital Exhibit A-Amendment Contractor Initiei

RFP-2018-BOAS^IHTEG-OI-AOI Page 13 of 13 Date
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DErARTMRKT nfllKALTII & HItMAN SERVICES

June 23. 2015

f nersin Soppon Cemer
Mssnriij Mxmxrmtid
CcM AUerelks ticrrka

U »>dtrii Pin. Rooa 41-IS
Nffw Yot. NV lOTS

PtlOKE>OIDK440(9

CMAJU CAMOrOpBltbKe'

Ms. Tina B. Naimie

Vice President-Corporate Finance
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
One Medical Cemer Drive •

Lebanon. New Hampshire 03756-0001'

Dear Ms. Naimie:

A copy of an indirect cost late agreement is being sent to you for signature. This agreerocot reflects an
understanding retched between your organization and a member of my staff concerning the ratefi) that
may be used to support your claim for indirect costs on grants and contracts with the Federal
Oovernmeni.

Please have the agreemeot sigrted by ao authorized represenutive of your organiuiion artd return
within ten business dayi of receipt. The signed agreement should be emailed to CAS-
NYdbpsc.hhsieoy. while retaining a copy for your files. We will reproduce and distribute the
agreement to the appropriate awarding organizations of the Federal Covernmeoi for their use only when
the signed agreement is returned.

An Indirect cost proposal, together with the supporting information, is requinsd to aubsiamiate your
claim for indirea costs under grants and contracts swarded by the Federal Government. Thus, your
next proposal based on actual cosu for the fiscal year ending 6/3(V20l7 b due in our office by
12f31f20l7. Please submit your next proposal electronically via email toCAS-NY<fbpg.hhs.gov.

Sincerely,
DarrylW.
Mayes-S

Darryl W. Mayes
£>eputy Director
Cost Allocation Services

Enclosure

PLBAS8 SIGN AND RETURN THE NEGOTUTION AGREEMENT BY EMAIL
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HOSPITALS RATE. AOREBHENT

.CIN: 1020233I40A1

OROANIZATION:

Dartmouth•Hitchcock

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
One Medical Center Drive

Lebanon. NH 03756-

DATS:06/23/301S

PILING REP.: The preceding
agreement was dated

03/27/2014

The rstee approved In thla agreement are for use on grants, ccntrocto and other
agreonente with tho Pederal Oovemnont. eubioct to tho condltiono In Section III.

SBCriON Xi INDIRECT COST RATES

KATC TTPBS: FIXSO PINAt

BPPRCTTVR PRRTOD

PSOV. (PROVTSIONAI.) PRtO. fPREOSTBIWXNED)

TYPE PROM JQ

PRBD. 07/01/2015 06/30/2018

PROV. 07/01/2018 06/30/2020

RATgfA^ LOCATION

39 .30 On-Site

29.30 On-Site

APPT.TrABt.R

Other Sponsored
Prog rams

Other Sponsored
Programs

la&fifi

Total dlrect'coete excluding capital e}q>endltures (buildings, individual items
of equipment; alteratlone and renovations), that portion of each subaward in
excess of $25,000: hospitalitation and other fees aeeociated with patient care
whether the oorviccs are obtained from an owned, related or third party
hospital or other medical facility; rental/maintenance of off-site activities;
sCudsnt tuition remission and student support costs (e.g.. student aid.
Stipends, dependency allowances, scholarships, fellowships).

Page 1 of 3 H31324
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ORGANIZATION; Dartmouth-Kicchcock

AGREEMENT DATE: 6/23/2015

8BCTZ0N IZt 8PBCZAL RSMARRfi

TOEATMSMT OP PPTWGR HKWBFTT.c;.

Fringe BenoflCo applicable Co direct oalariee and wages ere Created ao direct
cooCo.. - ^

TRBATMRtfT QF PAID AHSEWCKS

Vacation, holiday, sick leave pay and other paid absences are included in
'salaries and wages and are claimed on granco, contracts and other agreements
ao part of Che normal cost for oalariee and wages. .Separate claims are not
made for the coot of these paid absences.

Bquipmenc means an article of nonexpendable, tangible person property having a
useful life of more than two years, and an acquisition cost of $2,000 or more
per unit.

your next pr^>osal based upon fiscal year ending 6/30/17 is due by 13/31/17.

Page 2 of 3
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OROANIZATION: DartrnouCh-Hitchcock

AORBBMBKT DATE: 6/23/201S •

SECTION Illt GENERAL

k. bini.T*qfliAi

IB chIb •ffMfMi Bra BBbJact t» Bay BtBtatary mt B«alMlBCrBiL«B tlBllBtlma and arvlr t* t 9r«ai.
•VMiritk •« •k>iir ayimn wlir iW ih* •atw>t ihst (wndt tr* avalUkU. *«ccpUwa CC IK« rM«« (• auHact c* tM
C*ll*Btnfl c«n41tlMkB> (It Onir InewmP ar •ffanliBtlen osra In U# la4trBCi nvBl y*«l •« (laaUir
•nmplaei aweli emcb ar* iaoai akilpatkena aC ih* at^snltBilan and «ra allaaakla yaaar tha gaaarnlno caak prlael^laaf
|»| Tlia MM BMia iMt M** Man trailM aa IfMiraat «Mta ara nak alalaM aa eiract cMka< 1)1 Cl^kar C)*aa *t aaaka
Kaaa Mm aaaM*B< aanaUkaM aaasaaklA* kraataanti a«4- l«> TM latanwktan ar**lM« *r tM ai^alMklan wUdi vaa aaM ta
aatBkllalt IM rataa U aat lakar (mM t* M Mkarlally Ina^^aia ar Inawaraka aj tM PaMral »«araM*k. (a awch
aUMilMa kka ralala) aasda M awkjaci t* »eweatUll* at kha «M«raklM •( kha raMral PMariMaM.

»■ Hountm mimMi

Tkka afraaaank la Maa4 *• kka aaMuatlnp ayaiaa pwyMkae *r kka ai^aaluklan ka M la arraak aarlfig tka^ kf raaMnk
aarlM. CMn«M ta kka Mkrai at amawkktkt Im caaca Mick aCtack^kka laaMt at (aiakwraaaant raawlkint 'Cm* kka aaa at
tkla J^aaaaak raaalra prlar aMravat aC kka awkfca'taca ra^aaaakaklaa al kka acwnl MM a«cacV- CkanjM IneliMa. Mt
ara aai lialkaa ta. Qiaaaac in tM cMrpIng at a tnOlraet ta «l rack, falltra ta ektain
acaraval My raaaU in aMk CliailavaMM.

C. anait aaaaa.

It a flaad rala la U tkia *o>a««anc. It la kaaai M an MClMta at kka CMka lar kka patl«4 coaa'ae ay kka raia. Wkak kka
aakuO CMka Car Ikla patlae aia Cataratlfiae. aa aC)«atM«k afU ka aaM ta a raCa at a lakara yMtlai ta aOM*****^*
kka Alttvana Mkaaaa tka caata aaaC ta aacakllak kka (laad rata aM actual cmm.

». uaa M wwaa

ftta raiaa In kkia kfraaMM uara aparaaa^ In aacarMnca alck kka aMk prinetplaa a>MB>l|ata4 ky kka OaaackMnt at HMllk
ana MUMti MrrlCM. an« akaaU ka a^Uad ka tka franta. aentraaka anC ackar agraMaata aa«arad ky tkcaa ragalakiana
awk)a«k ta arty llalkailana la * aka*a. nia kMplcal My prmida CMiaa at kka kariaaawk ka atkar Padaial CgaMlM ta flM
ikM aariy aaklilcaclan al tka AgraaMnk.

It aay fadarai eantnck. great ar atkar agraaannt la rnlnkarakng inatrack omcb ky a Mana atkar tkan tkn aggravad ratatal
la tkla neraaMnk. tka oagaalMtlan akauld Hi aradlt auak OMt* ta kta alCaatad arafraM. ana (ll applf kka aygiMad
raialal ka tka af^ragrlata Maa la laanklfy tha aragar mpmc at indltaek CMta atiaaakla ta Ckaaa pragraM.

■ T Till l«TITkm«H> CM ■tNkl.y OP Ml POUkk e9«lAM(l«Tt

ocaacTNOry or uiAkni amO omm oiticu
Da r t aay t n•!>t k«neaek

Hitchcock MeiDOhel Hospltel

iiariTortttii uawcti

DarrylW.Mayes-S^™

• leMTM^
RoMn IU(eether-M«RetilnKlllMU.ef-MKt.T ..

HUM) laAMcl

Chlof PInencial ORicCf Deputy klraciar. CMC atlaeatlan aa««icM
ITITUI IriTVII

f/)>/ni>M/s-
IMTk) IMTW iita

ats itMiMmrKM. toul# NartinoiCl

Taiapkona. 013) 3«Oq<9
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally idemifioble information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Infonnetion, " Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800*61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. ."Confidential Information", "Confidential Data", or "Data "(as defined in Exhibit
K),means all confidential information disclosed by one party to the other such as all
medical, health, financial, public assistance benefits and personal information
including without limitation, Substance'Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records,
Protected Health Information end Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
' Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal taw or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health information (PHI), Personal Information (Pi), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor's employee, business
associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS data or
derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder. ;

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates a security policy, which includes
successful attempts) to gain unauthorized access to a system or its data, unwonted
disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of a system for the processing or
storage of data; and changes to system hardware, firmware, or software
characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or consent. Incidents

V4. Last updtit 2.07.2018 EzT^tiltK Contractor inSlsU
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

include the loss of data through ihef^ or device misplacement, loss.or misplacement of
hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic documents or mail.

7. 'Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by
means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open-network and not
adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI, PHI or confidential
DHHSdata..

8. "Personal Information" (or "Pi") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359*C:19, biomciric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is
linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's
maiden name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable
Health Inforrnation at 45 C.F.R. Pans 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R.
§ 160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Pan 164, Subpan C, and ameridments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable,.or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American
National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential information.

I. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as required or permitted under this Contract or required by law. Further,
Contractor, including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and
agents, must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and. Security Rule.

V4. Last updste 2.07.2018 ExHWiK Contnctor tnlUsls
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis (hat it is required by law, in response to a subpoena,
etc., without first notifying DHHS so (hat DHHS has an opportunity to consent or
object to the disclosure.

3. ThcContractoragre.es that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

D. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If Contractor is transmitting DHHS Data containing
Confidential Data Ixtween applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert krtowledgeable in cyber security and that .said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the imemet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. Contractor may not use computer disks or
portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS' Data.

3. Encrypted Email. Contractor may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and bOing sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
tiuthorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If Contractor is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure.
SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing-Sites. Contractor may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, (o transmit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. Contractor may only -transmit Confidential Data via ceriified
ground mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If Contractor is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encr^ted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. Contractor may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network . End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If Contractor is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a secure method of transmission or remote
access, which complies with the terms and conditions of Exhibit K, must be used.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
Contractor is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure oj

V4. Last updal« 2.07.2018 EtfilMK Contnctofi
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information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Conrideniial Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

I i. Wireless Devices. If Contractor is transmitting Conndeniia) Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of informaiion.

m. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain DHHS Dataand any derivative of the data for the duration of
this Contract. Ahersuch time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the deu and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or or, if it is
infeasible to retum or destroy DHHS Data, protections are extended to such information, in
accordance with the termination provisions in this Section.. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, end incjudes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of-NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems accessed or
utilized for purposes ofcarrying out this contract.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting DHHS Confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic end hard copies of Conndential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
.  FedRAMT/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and

regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, current, updated, and
maintained anti-malware (e.g. anti-viral; an'ti-hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware)'
utilities^. The environment, as a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and
firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chieflnformation Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the
hosting infrastructure.

V4.lCftl update Z07.2018 &drbllK CentrectgrI
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B. Disposition

If the Contracior maintains any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub»
contractor systems) and it has not done so previously, the Contractor will implement
policies and procedures to ensure that any storage media on which such data maybe
recorded will be rendered unreadable and that the data will be un>recoverable when
the storage media is disposed of. Upon request, the Contractor and will provide the ̂
Department with copies of these policies and with written documentation
demonstrating compliance with the policies. The written documentation will include

'  all details necessary to demonstrate data contained in the storage media has been
rendered unreadable and un-recoverable. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements may be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

1. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

rv. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or Hies, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifccycic, where applicable,•(from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the rhedia
used lo.^tore the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contracior will ensure End-
User will maintain an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notifi^tion requirements.

mV4.LMI update 2.07.2016 &MbnK Contracior
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5. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department sysum access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as pan of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-conlraciors prior to system access
being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agrccrncnt
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for niainuining compliance with the
agreement.

7. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Sute of New
Hampshire or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales
unless prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

8. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any computer security incident,
incident, or breach Contractor shall make efforts to investigate the causes of the
breach, promptly lake measures to prevent future breach and minimize any damage or
loss resulting from the breach. The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of
response and recovery from the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring
services, mailing costs and costs associated with website and telephone call center
services necessary due to the breach.

9. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
then the level and scope of, HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160
and 164) and 42 C.F.R. Part 2 thai govern protections for individually identifiable
health information and as applicable under State law.

10. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps://www.nh.gov/doii/vcndor/indcx.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

11. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within 24-hours oi th

V4. Last up4«ta 2.07.2018 EjtfMDRK Cortrtdo*
OHHS Ifltormatlon

Modlflad fc» State Opidd Response Securtiy fteqiifefnents
Award Aereemed October 2018 ^ ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

ihc Contractor Icams of its occurrence. This includes a confidential information breach,
computer security incident, or suspected breach which affccis or includes any State of
New Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

12. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential-Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform
their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

13. The Contractor is responsible-for End User oversight and compliance with the
terms and conditions of the contract and Exhibit K.

DKHS reserves the right to conduct onsile inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within 24- hours of the time
that the Contractor Icams of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with DHHS's documented Incident'Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with- the HIPAA, Privacy and Security Rules. In addition
to, and notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and
procedures, Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

V4. LMl 2.07.2016 EiMMK Comndor irMsh.
.  « « OHHS WormaUonModlfled for SUte 0^e«P^ seeurtiy Roqiiremenu
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact program and policy:
(Insert OfTicc or Program Name)
(Insert Title)
OHHS-Contracts@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOrnce(^hhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfricer@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformalionSecurityOrrice@dhhs.nh.gOv

E. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DKHSInformBtionSecurityOfTice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHS^rivacy.Offi cer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 2.07.2016

Modified lor Steta Opioid Reaponse
Award Agreemerd October 20i6
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Jeffrey A. Al«y»ri

K'a(/i S. Kii>
Oirceior

state OFiNEW HAMPSHIRE

department of health and human servicf.s

DIVISION FOR BEHA VtORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES '

105 PL>>SA.\T STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-27I-6II0 ■•800-8.42-33J5Eai.6738
F*x:60J.27l-6IO5 TDDAcects: I-80O-735-2964

H'ww.dhhs. nh.gov

December 27. 2017

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 ,

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, to enter into an agreement with Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital. Vendor #177160. One Medical Center Drive. Lebanon. NH 03756, for the
provision of integrated obstetric, primary care, pediathc. and Medication Assisted Treatment
(MAT) for pregnant and postpartum women with opioid use disorder in an amount not to
exce^ $2,755,443. effective upon date of Governor and Executive Council approval, through
June 30. 2019. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account(s) for SFY 2018 and SFY 20>9. with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation.and adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor
and Executive Council.

05-95-92-920S10-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, OPIOID STR GRANT

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Total

' Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052559 $ 862,630

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052559 $1,892,813

Total $2,755,443

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide integrated obstetric care, primary care,
pediatric care and Medication Assisted Treatment for pregnant and postpartum women with
opioid use disorder and any co-occurring mental health disorders. Medication Assisted
Treatment services will be integrated with prenatal and postpartum care, and provided with
parenting support and education at eight (8) sites across New Hampshire, including sites in

77i« De-ixi'tiiieiil v/Jlenfih and Hmitfin Snn-iea'Miuiou it lojei't runiuni'tUirt
r'ft pronrting for eilizrut to fieluttrf. hmllh iind iittifpenticncc.
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His Excellency. Governor Cnrisiopher T. Svnunu
and (ho Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

the high need areas of Belknap and Coos Counties where opioid use disorder treatment
services are limited.

The Contractor will deliver these sen/ices through both a Perinatal Addiction Treatment
Program in Lebanon. NH that is Integrated with obstetrics/gynecology and pediatric care on-
site and at seven (7) other sites which are obstetrical/gynecological practices that are
enhanced with Medication Assisted Treatment services, and pediatric care.

The State of New Hampshire was awarded funding authorized through the 21st Century
CURES Act by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration which is
overseeing the process for states to'receive federal funding through the State Targeted
Response to the Opioid Crisis Grants Program. New Hampshire's application is a joint effort
by several state agencies and proposes to use evidence-based methods to expand treatment,
recovery and prevention services to targeted populations. These critical funds will strengthen
established programs that have had a positive impact on the opioid crisis as well as expanding
the capacity for programs that have shown promise in helping individuals battling a substance
misuse issue and combatting the epidemic in New Hampshire.

In 2016. the State of New Hampshire experienced four hundred eighty-five (465) deaths
from drug overdoses. At present, the State is experiencing an increase in the need for
population-specific Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Suppon Services for
pregnant women due to a rise in Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome in Infants born to mothers
who have used opioids. Babies with this syndrome experience symptoms of drug withdrawal
and require special treatment prior to leaving the hospital. It is critical that providers develop
integration of services, approaches to meet individual client needs, and approaches to
maximize State and Federal dollars to meet the public's demand for these specific services.
The services provided by the Contractor will be comprehensive and focused not only on the
mother's recovery, but also on ensuring that the infant Is receiving the necessary health and
social supports and sen/ices to mitigate risk associated with maternal opioid use.

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital was selected for this project through a competitive
bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human
Services* v/eb site from August 28. 2017 through September 25. 2017. The Department
received one (1) proj^osal. The proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals
with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the strengths
and weaknesses of the proposals/applications. The Score Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1. Revisions lo General
Provisions., of this contract, the Department reserves the option to extend contract services for
up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of sen/ices, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, pregnant and
postpartum women in New Hampshire diagnosed with opioid use disorder may not receive the
support necessary to overcome their addiction which could negatively impact their health and
the health of their newborn child(ren].

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from DHHS. Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Services Administration, Center for Substance Abuse Treatment. CFDA <*93.788.
FAIN TI080246.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

'  Respectfully submitted,
\

Katja S. Fox

Director

Approved

ey : Meyers

Commissioner

The Deparlment of Health and Human Servicee' Mission it to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve heuUh and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contrapts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet ;

Integrated Medication Assisted
Treatment for

Pregnant and Postpartum Women

RFP Name

RFP.2018-60AS-05-INTEG

RFP Number Reviewer Names-

1. Jamie Powers. Clinical A Recovery
Serv Unii Administrator II. 80AS

Bidder Name
Pass/Fail

Matimum

Poirits

Actual

Points

Ifho^a Siegd. Administrator II.
DPHS Health Mgmt Oto

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital 575 444

Abby Shockley. Senior Policy
Analyst. Substance Use Serves.

2 0 575 0

Laune HeaUi. Business Adminsu

ttl. 0BK/8DAS Finance

^ 0 575 0

Don Hunter. Planning and Review
Analyst BOAS
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Haxen Dr.. Concord. NH 03301

Fe*: 603-27M516 TOD Access. 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doil

Denis Couici

Comrrn'ssioner

Jenusry 3. 2018

JcfTrey A. Meycf?, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of-New Hampshire
129. Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract with Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, of
Lebanon NH as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2018-047.

This is a request to enter Into a contract with Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
to provide integrated obstetric, primary care, pediairic, and medication assisted

,  treatment for pregnant and postpartum women with substance use disorder
(SUD). This will also include utilizing theiState's Prescription Drug Monitoring
Program (PDMP) database to mitigate prescription drug diversion or harmful
interactions.

The amount of the contract is not to exceed S2.755,443.00, and shall become effective

upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30,20)9.

A copy of this letter should accompany, the Depatimeni of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely. ( ,

\

DG/kaf

DoIT fl2018-047

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

Denis Goulet

'Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'
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(  rORM NUMBER P-37 (version S/8/15)
Subjeci: Integraird Mcdicaiion Asiisied Treaimeni fgf Pfcgp^nt flpfl Posioartum Women fRFPOOIB-BDAS^S-INTEGl

Noiicc: This agreemeni and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council Tor approval. Any information that is private, conHdeniial or proprietary must
be clearly idcniified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROvTstONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

l.t Slate Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Addre$.<i
l29Ptetisani Street

Concord. NH 03301OM?

1.3 Comracior NarrK

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
1.4 Contractor Address

Dan mouth-Hitchcock

One Medical Center Drive

Ubanon. NH 03756

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-650-8960

1.6 Account Number

05.95.92.920510-25590000

1.7 Completion Dale

June 30.2019

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,755,443

1.9 ContrMiingOrricer for State Agency
E. Maria Reinemann, Es<).
Director of ConirKts and Procurement

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number
60)-27|.93)0

I.I I Cor4{pcior Signature

1.13 Acknowlcdgemeivir Slate of County of

1.12 Namearrd Title ofConiraciorSignatory

Or
T

On /ifti/f'} , before the undersigned ofTicer. personally appeared the person ideniified in blMk l.l2;orsMisraciorily
proven to be the pmon whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged thai s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicaicd in block i.'l2.

1.13.1 Sigirsiure^Notary Public or ioailce Dfyie Puce

MMtlliff

l.l3.^<^W(po«ndTinl(M or Justice of the Peace
/<lV' MV
^  COMWSSIQM \ \

iftntour^
.7021 ; 5

.0

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

.  -V
rtmem of Administration. Division of PersonncH'/npA/fcob/eJ

Director. On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney Cenerttl (Form. Substance and Execution) (i/oppliceble)

ive Council^ (W'epp/iedW^J ' j1.18 Approval by the Governor and Exccy)

By:

Page I of 4
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3. EMPLOYMENT OF contractor/services TO
BE PERFORMED. The Sleic orNew Htmpshifc, aciing
through (he agency identiried in block I.I ("State"), engages
contracior identiried in block 1.3 (^Contractor") to pcrrorm.
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(••Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 KoiwiihSJanding any provision'of this Agreemem to itw
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the S<aie of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereundcr, shall become cfTcctive on the date the Governor
and Execuii>T Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1,18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become efTeciive on the date the
Agreement is signed.by the State Agency as shown in block
l-MCEffeciitrnDaie"). •
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTeciive Date, all Scrxxcs performed by the Contracibr prior
10 the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contraaor, and in the event thai this Agfecmeni does not
beconie effective, the Slate shall have no liability to the
Comractor. including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Complaion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, ill obligations of the State hereundcr. iKiuding.
without limitation, (he conilnuincc ofpaymems hereundcr. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the Slate be liable for any
payments hereundcr in excess of such available appropriated
funds, in the event ofa reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
paymem until such funds become available, if ever, and Shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice ofsuch termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from arty other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are rediKcd or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
S. I The contraa price, method of payment, arid terms of
payment are identified and more panicuiarly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated Serein by feference.
5.2 The payment by the Suie of the contract price shall bcihe ^
only and the complete reimburyemeni to the Coniraeior for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Coniraeior in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contracior other than the contract
price.

5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise pa)rable to the Comractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agrtement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereundcr. exceed the Price Limitation kI forth in blo^
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMChT

. OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the perfonnartce of the Services, the
Contracior shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, slate, county or municipal authorities
which Impose any obligation or duty upon the Contraaor.
including, but not limited to, civil riglus and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the r^uirernem to utilize auxiliary
aids and soviccs to ensure that persons with eommunictiion
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive infotnotion from, and convey
information to the Contraaor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable eopyrighi laws.
6.2 Ourri^ the term ofthis Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and «ill take
afTirmaiivc action to pr^em such discrimination.
6.3 (fihis Agreement is funded in any pad by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Op^nuniiy"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60). and with any rules, regulations araJ guidelines
as the State ofNcw Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contraaor further agrees to
permit the State or United States acce.xs to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the puqMSe of
Bscenaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of (his Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
perstinncl necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that oil personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, attd shall be propaly
licensed and otherwise auihorizcd to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unlc.ts otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contntctor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whorn it is engaged in a combined effon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or omciai, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance ofthis

Page 2 of 4
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Agreement. This provision shot! survive icrmintiion of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting OfTicrr ipcciTied in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shill be the Stele's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the Interpretttion of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Anyoiseor more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure io perform the Services sat isractonly or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to submit any rcpon required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to performany other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon (he occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor o svriueh notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
abserKC of a greater or lesser specification of lime, (hiny (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, elTcctivc two
(2) days aOer giving the Contractor notice of terminaiibn;
8.2.2 give the Co'mraclor a written notice specifying the Event
of Dcfauh and suspending'oil payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the ponion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date ofsuch notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall rtcvcr be paid lo the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligation.^ the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Stale suffers by reason of any ■
Event of Oefault; andfor
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCCSS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, alt studies, reportii
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, artalyses.
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any propeny which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
unda this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned lo the Slate upon demand or upon
lerTOtnatlon of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of en early lermination of
this Agreemeni for any reatton other than thecompleiionorihc
Services, the Coniraciof shall deliver to (he Contracting
OfTicer. not later than nDeen (IS) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Temunaiion Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the coruraci price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, ar>d number of copies of the Termination
Rcpon shall be Identical to (hose of any Final Rcpon
described in the aiiaehed EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreemeni the Contractor is In alt
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or numbers shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benenis, workers* compentaiion
or other emoluments provided by-tltc State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATIONfSUBCONTRACTS.

The Coniracior shall not assign, or otherwise transfer wy
inieroit in this Agreement without the prior written noiiee and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior wriiien
notice and con.^em of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Comracior shall defend,

indemrtify and hold harmless the State, its ofTicers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its ofTiecrs and employees, end any and all claims,
lisbiliiics or penalties asserted against (he State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
b&scd or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing..nolhing herein
conuincd shall be deemed to constitute a.waiverofthc

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of (his Agreemeni.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOpcr occurrerKC and $2,000,000
aggregate: and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
propeny subject to subparigraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the properry.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 hercinshall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Slate ̂  New Hampshire by the N.H. De^mcrtt of
InsurarKc. and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

3 of 4
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14.3 The Conirsctor ihsll Tumish lo the Competing omcer
Identiricd in,block 1.9. or his or her successor, a certific«e(s)
ofinsurBnce for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contncior shall also furnish to thc Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, cenincaie(s) of
insurance feral! renewal(s) of insurance required under this.
Agreement no latex than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ceniricaicfs) of
insurance and any renewals (hereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Eachcertincete(s)of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer idemlfied In block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no lc.*s than thiny (30) days prior written
noiicc'of cancellation or modincation of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies end warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 2Sl -A
("Workers' Compensoiion").
(5.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 211'A. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, paynicni of Workers' Compensaiion in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake purttuani k> this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 2SI.-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
'premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Worken'
Compensation laws inxonnectcon with the paformance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Evcrti of fkfaull shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard lo'thoi Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No e.xpress
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of (he Stale to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Coniracior.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mall, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post OfTice addressed to the parties at the addresses
given^in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

16. AMENDMENT. This Agreernent maybe amended,
waived or discharged only by an Instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only iDer approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Stale law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with (he
laws of the State ofKew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to (he benefit of (he parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording us^ In this Agreement
' is the wording chosen by (he parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any pany.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed lo confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings ihroughouithe Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
(herein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreemem.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are irKorporaied herein by
reference.

23. SEVERaBILITY. In (he event any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a coun of competent juti^iciion to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the eniirc Agreement and
understanding between (he parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreemcnis and understandings relating hereto. «
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contrector shell submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English prondency to ensure meaningful
eccess to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extant future legislative action by the Now
Hampshire General Court or federal or slate court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the Stale Agency has the right to rrtodrfy ServlM priorities

and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
(herewith.

2. Scope of Services
2.1. The Contractor shall provide comprehensive Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) for

pregnant and postpartum women diagnosed with opioid use disorder (QUO) and co-
occurring mental health disorders, integrated with prenalal and postpartum care, and

provide parenting support and education for parents at eight (8) sites across the State
of New Hampshire, including sites in Belknap and Coos Counties.

2.2. The Contractor shad deliver the required services in Lebanon through the Dartmouth

HitchcocH (D-H) Perinatal Addiction Treatment Program (PATP), a comprehensive

addiction treatment service with Integrated obstetrical/gynecological (08/Gyn) services
and pedlatric care offered on*site.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure delivery of the required services at the seven (7) other

sites where services shall be offered by OB/Gyn practices that are enhanced with
integrated addiction services and pedlatric support.

2.4. The Contractor's Center for Addiction Recovery In Pregnancy and Parenting shall

develop an implementation plan with each site to include, but not be limited to:

2.4.1. Treirwng end implementing new practices, using a combination of Contractor
staff end the local site (o fill key roles.

2.4.2. Migrating the required core stafflng to the practice while the Contractor

provides ongoing coaching and consultation for complex situations.

2.4.3. Providing or developing, locally. Hie adjunct services including, but not limited

to child supervision, transportation, and case management as required.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide project management, program consultation, and clinical
consultation through their D-H Center for Addiction Recovery In Pregnancy and

Parenting team to each site.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide services at all eight (8) sites mcluding, but not limited to:

Uafy Kluhcocfc M«morta( HotpbM EcMbii A Contractw *
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2.6.1. On-Sfte family support for chlldrer).

2.6.2. Peer recovery coaches.

2.6.3. Resource/Employment specialists.

2.6.4. Case management/Care coordirtation.

2.6.5. ' Parenting education groups.

2.6.6. Health education.

2.6.7. Sodai supports including, bul not limited to access and7or referrals to food,
housing, and transportation services.

2.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with Coos County Family Health Services and

Implement two (2) of the seven (7) enhanced programs In OB/Gyn practices in Laconia
and Littleton by providirtg intensive support to facilitate the development of an

Integrated perinatal MAT program at each practice.

2.8. The Contractor shall employ a licensed behavioral health clinician whose

responsibililies shall Include, bul not be Umiled to:

2.8.1. Conducting weekly visits to each practice (or the first six (6) rruinths of the

contract.

2.6.2. Providing direct clinical services at a!) sites.

2.6.3. Supporting and mentoring for weeldy MAT visits.

2.6.4. Leading group therapy for participating women.

2.8.5. Collaborating with each site to identify or develop behavioral health resources

In the local community.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure each site identifies at least one (1) provider willing to

become walvered to prescribe buprenorphine before the project launch and shall

provide iniiial on-site mentoring to waivered providers at each practice, followed by

consultative phone calls over a twelve (12)*rTK>nih period in a frequency determined

necessary by the providers and the Contractor.

2.10. The Contractor shall provide services through the 0-H PATP which include, but are not

limited to:

2.10.1. Collaborating with the Family Resource Centers, whose services Include.^ but
are not limited to:

2.10.1.1. Home visiting.

2.10.1.2. Lactation support.

2.10.1.3. Case management.

M«fy HXdKOCk M«morU) HosolUl ExNbi) A ContrKtor UWU
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. 2.10.2. Providing parent education groups to program participants on a regular basis
which integrate the parenting education curriculum with addiction treatment, so

that participants have the opportunity to learn about the impact of substance

use on family functioning and healthy child.development.

2.10.3. Providing educational sessions to all pregnancy groups which include, but are
rv}t limited to 'The Period of Purple Crying," safe sleep practices. ar>d car seat
safety and are integrated with newborn nursery and outpallenl pediatric follow

up.

2.10.4. Collaborating with Continuum of Care Coordinators as part of Region 1

Integrated Delivery Networli (ION).

2.10.5. Participatirtg In the Boyle Program, which co-sponsors and fadtitates the Child

Focus Forum, a bi-monthly collaborative of medical, governmental and
community agencies serving parents ancf children.

2.10.6. Offering co-located child 'play time,' which provides supportive child
er>gagement that allows women to participate fully in group therapy and receive

care without distraction.

2.10.7. Sponsoring co-locdtion of resources such as a food pantry, infant books, and

diaper bank through active partnerships with community agencies such as The
Upper Valley Haven and The Family Place.

2.11. The Contractor shall ensure patient-centered, effective. Integrated care and attention
to overdose prevention by employing educationai materials which include, but are not

limited to:

2.11.1. Center for Disease; Control (CDC) opiold prescribing guidelines.

2.11.2. Substance Abuse arxf Mental Health Services Administration's (SAMHSA's)
Opioid Overdose Prevention Toolkit.

2.11.3. State-published Guidance Document on Best Practices: Key Components for
Delivering Community Based Medication Assisted Treatment Services for

Opioid Use Disorders In New Hampshire.

2.11.4. Care guidelines for 06/GYN providers and delivery hospitals developed by the
Northern New England Perinatal Quality Improvement Network (NNEPQIN).

2.12. The Contractor shall provide Interim OUD treatment services when the needed

treatment services are not available to the participant within forty-eight (48) hours of
referral.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide OUD treatment services that support the Resiliency and
Recovery Oriented Systems of Care (RROSC) by operatlonalizlng the Continuum of
Care Model. (More information can be found at

.  httD://www.dhhs.oh.qQv/dcbc3/bdas/cor^llnuum-of-care.htm.1
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2.14. The Contractor shall ertsure (hat participants are able to easily transition between

levels of care within a group of services which includes, but is not limited to:

2.14.1. Working with the Continuum of Care racllHator(s) in the development of a
resiliency and recovery oriented system of care (RROSC) in the region(8).

2.14.2. Paniclpating in the Regional Continuum of Care Workgroup<s).

2.14.3. Participating In the Integrated Delivery Network(8) (IDNs).

2.15. The Contractor shall ensure ortgoing communi^tion and care coordination witl^
entities involved in the perticipants' care including child protective services, treatment

providers, home visiting services, and pediatric providers.

2.16. The Contractor shall actively participate In the Regional Coniinuum of Care and ION
Region 1. and maintain good relationships with relevant community partners.

2.17. The Contractor shall assist enhanced sites with creating end hiring for a Recovery
Coach position to help participsnts locate community resources including.'' but not
limited to local recovery centers, peer support meetir>gs, and transUionBl housing.

2.16. The Contractor shall assist enhanced sites with collaborating with their ibcal/regional
Continuum of Care Facilitators and leaders of their regional Integrated .Delivery

Networks to ensure alignment and coordination across these sen/ice networks.

2.19. The Contractor shall collaborate with each enhanced siie to modify workflows and

electronic records processes to ensure screening and required data collection.

2.20. The Contractor shall modify the obstetrics office electronic health record (EHR) and

clinicai work flow to ensure required screening activities by 08 staff and appropriate

required data collection by care coordinators.

2.21. The Contractor shall utilize the Slate's Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP)

database to mitigate prescription drug diversion or harmful interactions and shall

assess each enhanced site's use and support them to develop protocols to monitor the
PDMP regularty.

2.22. The Contractor shaD develop and implement outreach activities, which may Include

marketing designed to engage pregnant women vrith an OUD in the community. The
Contractor, and Contractor's sites ere not required to market themselves publicly as

substance use disorder treatment centers.

2.22.1. The Contractor shall ensure that their staff at the Center for Addiction Recovery

In Pregnancy and Parenting collaborate with the appropriate D-H department to

develop appropriate materials and methods to promote the program throughout
our service areas.

2.22.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with each implementing site to ensure

marketing materials, if any. and outreach methods used, ere consistent with the

Contractor's standards and policies in its discretion.

Msry H^c^cock Mcmwbl HospluJ EiMMA Contractor l>
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2.22.3. The Contractor shall actively engage with referral networks In the service areas

to increase awareness of the program with pregnant women with OUD and to
enable the program to be utilized to its greatest capacity.

2.23. The Contractor shall maintain formal and effective partnerships with behavioral health.
QUO specialty treatment and Recovery Support Services (RSS), and medical
practitioners to meet the needs of the target population and the goals of MAT
Expansion.

2.24. The Contractor shall ensure meaningful input of consumers In program assessment,
planning, imptementation. ar>d-Improvement which includes, but Is not limited to:

2.24.1. Using their Patient Advisory Board which meets quarterly and is composed of
participants in lor>g-term recovery.

2.24.2. Engagif>g participants In all stages of recovery in the development of key
program elements through focus groups and targeted interviews.

2.25. The Contractor shall ensure that treatment is provided In a child-friendly environment
with childcare support available to participants which Includes, but is not limited to:

2.25.1. Oevelopmentally-appropriate childcare support as well as integration with
pediatric and developmenlal services at ail enhanced sites.

2.25.2. Co-located child 'Play^Time' where children engage In devekjpmentally
appropriate play while their mothers participaie in group treatment and receive
care in both Lebanon and Keene.

2.25.3. On-site well-child care at D-H Lebanon PATP.

2.26. The Contractor shall ensure participanls" transportation needs are met to maintain
participant InvoNement In the program by utilizing a Resource Specialist whose duties
related to transportation may include, but not be limited to:

2.26.1. Assisting participanls to eruoll in Medlcaid transportation services.

2.26.2. Developing a network of support to help with transportation needs.

2.26.3. Helping participants to attain a valid driver's license or an affordable car loan.

2.26.4. CoIlaboraiir>g with Good News Garage or similar programs.

2.26.5. Finding housing in close proximity to social services.

2.27. The Contractor shall use data to support quality Improvement including, but not limited
to:

2.27.1. Devebpirfg. disseminating, and Implementing best practices for pregnant and
parenting women with OUD. including, but not limited to hosting monthly
webirtars related-to topics such as screening and treatment of co*occurriAg
psychiatric disorders.

MwyHlicheodiMemoriiiHofpftil 6*WbiiA CoiwoctorinHI
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2.'27.2. Collecting data on participant demographics and more than thirty (30) key
perinatal, neonatal, and treatment outcomes for all program participants, using
a REOCap database designed for this purpose.

2.27.2.1. REDCap allows de-identified, participant-level data to be entered
remotely by sites.

2.27.2.2. Data shall be entered (or each participant from the time of entry into
the program until three (3) months postparlurn. For example, a
participant entering care in the late first trimester, data woukf entered

' at entry to care, at 24-28 weeks of pregnancy, at delivery, and at three
(3) months postpartum.

2.27.2.3. Data shall be utilized for quality improvement purposes and program
evaluation, as v^il as development of targeted services at all sites.

2.27.3. Collecting data on key measures kJentified by the Oeparlment and the
Contractor's mullidisciplinary slakehoider group and using the data to track
performance.

2.27.3.1. The existing REDCap database shall be expanded as needed to
Include additional measures identined by the Oeparlment.

2.27.3.2. Site specific data shall be reviewed dUanerty.

2.27.4. Reporting data to. sites quarterly and addressing areas flagged for improvement
both directly through discussion and process improvement at the individual
practice level end through learning collaborative sessions with multiple

• practices.

2.27.5. Employing a research assisien! to support sites with data entry challenges and
ensure data quality.

2.27.6. Analyzing Ihe data and promoting quality improvement efforts.

2.28. The Contractor shall maintain the Infrastructure necessary to achieve the goals of MAT
Expansion for the target population, to meet SAMHSA requirements, and to deliver
effective medical care to pregnant and postpartum women with en QUO.

2.29. The Contractor shall participate in the State-funded 'Community of Practice.for MAT"
along with other State-fun^ projects which include, but are not limited to:

2.29.1. Pfojcct-specificirainings.

2.29.2. Quarterly web-based discussions.

2.29.3. On-site Technical Assistance (TA) visits.

2.29.4. Ad hoc communication with expert consultants on MAT clinical care topics such
as Hepatitis C Virus (HCV) and Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HiV)
prevention, diversion risk mitigation, and other relevant issues.

l4irymcheoeiiMemortMMo»pit»i 6*»ilWiA Conwcuv WUtfs-;
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2.30. The Conlraclor shall participate In the development of a Safe Plan of Care with birth
attendants and the New Hampshire Division of Children. Youth, and Families (DCYF)
for each inlant affected by illegal substance use. withdrawal symptoms, or a Fetal
Alcohol Spectrum Disorder.

2.30.1. The Contractor shall employ a social worker with experience In the Contractor's
ChlkJ Advocacy and Protection Program.

2.30.2. The Contractor shall ensure thai planning and communication regarding the
Safe Plan of Care will also involve other community agency supports including,
but not limited to home visHallon, WIC, houswg. and other services central to
recovery and parenting.

2.31. The Contraclor shall establish formal agreements with hospitals to aid In preparing the
hospital system with the clinical policies and procedures necessary to address
neonatal abslinence syndrome in the newborn while supporting the mother's recovery.

2.31.1. The Contractor shell engage with the NNEPQIN learning collaborative, the
organization that has developed policies and procedures to effectively address
neonatal abstinence syrxlromo while supporting the mother's recovery.

2.32. The Contraclor shall have billing capabilities which include, but are not limited to:

2.32.1. Enrolling with Medicaid and other third party payers.

2.32.2. Contracting* with managed care organizations and insurance companies for
MAT and delivery of prenatal care.

2.32.3. Having a proper understanding of the hierarchy of the billing process.

2.33. The Contraclor shall assist the participant with obtaining either on-site or off«sfie RSS's
Including, but not limited to:

2.33.1. Transportation.

2.33.2. ChlkJcare.

2.33.3. Peer support groups.

2.33.4. Recovery coach.

2.34. The Contractor shall use the New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Treatment Locator
fhttQ://vAvw.nhifeatment.orol to identify specific services that are available by location,
population, and payer to enable patient choice'.

2.35. The Contractor shall establish agreements with specialty treatment organizations that
can provide higher levels of OUD treatment and co-occurring mental health treatment.

2.36. The Contractor shall deliver parenting and personal development education using
evidence-based curriculum including, but not fimited to:

MWY MtcKock MemditsJ Hoipiiel ExhttKA ConlrdCWWl _ _ ^
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2.36.1. Marsha Linehan's Oialectical Behavior Therapy approach (o treatment and Lisa
Najaviis' Seeking Safety curriculum to increase emotion regulation skills in
participants to address Posi-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) symptoms and
decrease emotional vulnerability that could lead to relapse.

2.36.2. SAMHSA materials. 12-Step information, and other materials that (he program
has developed to increase participants' knowledge of the disease model of
addiction and to enhance understanding of biological vulnerability and the
progression of addiction.

2.38.3. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (C6T). SAMSHA materials, 12-Step materials,
and mindfulness-based stress reduction approaches to bolster relapse

prevention strategies and improve resiliency.

2.36.4. Dututh Model Domestic Abuse Intervention Programs and Dialectical Behavior

Therapy (D8T) to promote healthy relationships and decrease risk of
interpersonal violence.

2.36.5. Circle of Security and the Nurturing Program for Families in Substance Abuse
Treatment and Recovery curricula to increase parent-child attachment and

increase parents' knowledge of healthy child development.

2.37. The Ccmtractor shall improve participants' access to a sot>er networit of support and

increased resiliertcy to relapse v^ich includes, but is not limited to.

2.37.1. Utilizing an on-site Recovery Coach who participates in group therapy sessions

and engages bne-on-one with participants to provide additional support
between sessions.

2.37.2. Inviting representatives from 12-Step groups and peer-run recovery groups on

a regular basis to speak to partidpants.

2.38. The Contractor shall refer relapsing participants to residential or intensive outpatient

care and provide support for accessing appropriate services including, but not limited

to follow-up care after intensive treatment services are completed.

2.39. The Contractor shall provide parenting supports to participants including, but rx)t

(imrted to:

2.39.1. Parenting groups.

2.39.2. Childbirth education. ,

2.39.3. Safe sleep education.

2.40. The Contractor shall collaborate with other providers that offer services to pregnant

women with an OUD includifYg, but not limited to programs funded by the Cures Act

resources for simBar populations.

2.41. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with conTidentiality requirements, wbich

include, but are not limited to:

Ma/y HkcAcock Memorial HotpUti EiMbK A
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•  ■ 2.41.1. Applicable federal and stale laws.-

2.41.2. HIPAA Privacy Rule.

2.41.3. 42C.F.RPail2.

2.41.3.1. TheO-H PATP shall be required to follow 42 C.F.R Part 2 rules.

2.41.3.2. The OB/Gyn programs that will be enhanced with integrated addiction
services ere not required to follow 42 C.F.R. Part 2.

2.42. The Contractor shall participate In ell evaluation aclivilies associated with the funding
opportunity, including naiionai-evsluatlons.

2.43 - The Contractor shall develop and subrra't a work plan to the Department for review and
approval, which describes the process for ensuring the completion of all aspects of the

Scope of Services (Section 2), Staffing (Section 3). and Training (Section 4) as
outlined In this Contract within thirty (30) days of Governor and Executive Council
approval of the Contract, the Contractor shall use four (4) phases when designing the
work plan. -

\  2.43.1. Phase 1: The Contractor.shall ertgage In an intensive planrting process and
simultaneous development of the infrastructure of the Center for Addiction
Recovery in Pregnancy and Parenting which will include hiring key staff such

as a project manager and gathering more Information about the current state at
)  Implementation sites..

2.43.2. Phase 2: The Contractor shall solidify services at the D-H Let>anon PATP and
D>H Keene so that they fully meet the service requests of this Contract. The

Contractor shall also begin the data collection process.

2.43.3. Phase 3: The Contractor shall plan and Implerr^ent enhanced services at three

(3) new sites (Berlin. Manchester, and Nashua).

2.43.4. Phase 4: The (^ntractcr shall use lessons learned from previous

implementations to plan and implement enhanced services at the final three (3)

sites (Laconia, Littleton, and Dover).

2.44. The Contractor shaD maintain policies and procedures and have regular required

employee training (at least annually) In the areas of ethical conduct, confidentiality,

compliance, cyber security, and conflict of interest.

3. Stafflrig
3.1. The Contractor shall meet the minimum MAT team staffing requirerrtents to provide the

Scope of Services which includes, but Is not limited to. at least one (1):

3.1.1. Waivered prescriber.

3.1.2. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC) or behavioral health
provider with addiction training.

3.1.3. Obstetrician or midwife.
MxryKficticockMcniO'blHotpllti EiNbrtA' Ccmmctorl _
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3.1.4. Care coordinator.

3.1.5. Non-dlinical/adminlstrative slaH.

3.2. The'Contra^cr shall ensure that all unlicensed staff providing treatment, education,
and/or recovery support services are urtder the direct supervision of a licensed
supervisor.

3.3.. The Contractor shall ensure that no licensed supervisor oversees rnore than eight (6)
-  unlicensed staff, unless the Department has approved an alternative supervision plan.

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure that at least one Certified Recovery Support Worker
(CRSW) is available for every fifty (50) participants or portion thereof.

3.5. The Contractor shall ensure that unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support
services must hold a CRSW within six (6) months of hire or from the effective date of

this contract, whichever is later.

4. Training
4.1. The Contractor shall make available initial and on-going training resources to all staff

including, but not limited to buprenorphine waiver trainirig for physicians, nurse
practitioners, and physician assistants. The Contractor shall develop a plan for
Department approval to train and engage appropriate staff.

4.2. .The Contractor shall participate In training and technical assistant activities as directed
by the Department Including, but not limited to the Community of Practice for MAT
which may Include, but Is not limited to:

4.2.1. Project-specific trainings.

4.2.2. Quarterly web-based discussions.

4.2.3. On-site technicai assistance .visits.

4.2.4. Ad hoc communication with expert consultants regarding MAT clinical care
topics including, but not limited to:

4.2.4.1. HCV and HIV prevention.

4.2.4.2. Diversion risk mitigation.

4.2.4.3. Other relevant issues.

4.3. The Contractor shall train staff on relevant topics which may include, but are not
limited to:

4.3.1. Integrated care.

4.3.2. Trauma-informed care.

4.3.3. MAT (e.g. prescriber training for buprenorphine).

4.3.4. Care coordination.

Mwy Hitcne«ck HOMtii Exfitbit 'A
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4.3.5. Trauma-informed wrap around care/RSS delivery best practices.

4.3.6. Evidence>6a$ed Practices (EBPs) such as Screening. Brief Inten/entlon. and

Referral to Treatment (SBIRT).

4.3.7. Buprenorphine waiver trainings, avallabie locally and at websites includihg, but
not limited to:

4.3.7.1. https^/www.samhsd.gov/medication-assisted-treaiment/trainlng-
re&ources/buprenorphlne-physician-tralnlng

4.3.7.2. http8://www.8sam.org/education/llve-online-cme/buprenorphine-cour9e

4.3.7.3. httPs://aano.inreachce.com/C)etalls?Qrouold=714cbOa9-73b2-4daf-

B3e2-27cbdb7Qef53

"4.3.8. Cognitive behavioral therapy, dialectical behavior therapy, motivational

enhancement therapy, mindfulness. and relapse prevention.-

4.4. The Contractor shall provide ongoing supervision for buprenorphine presciibers vyith

access to consultation from experienced providers.

4.5. The Contractor's Center for Addiction Recovery in Pregnancy and Parenting shall offer

online training. CME/CNE events, arx) monthly learning collaboratives to each practice
iiKluding. but not limited to;

4.5.1.1. Two (2) hour initial in-service training in preparation for openif>g clinic

regarding providing trauma-informed and recovery-friendly care.

4.5.1.2. Toolkit of training materials.

4.5.1.3. Weekly team meetings on day of clinic facilitated by the behavioral
health clinician.

4.5.1.4. Monthly webinar learning collaboratives for all participating practices

^th rotalir>g topics

4.5.1.5. Quarterty in-person gatherings for. ell partidpating practices, focused

on relationship building and shanng of experiences, hosted at rotating

locations to maximize participalion.

4.5.1.6. Annual CME event aimed at all staff involved in this model of care.

4.6. The Contractor shall provide assistance to all sites regarding training and logistics for

the distribution of naloxone kits to patients and family members.

4.7. The Contractor shall assist practice staff In attending.the following externally provided

formal trainings:

4.7.1. CRSW training for prospeciive Recovery Coaches

4.7.2. Circle of Security training for BHCs and Recovery Coaches

4.7.3. Buprenorphine training for MOs/PAs/ARNPs

M«ry KUc^Kock Memodsl HosplU) EjiNM a Cont/*clor tnUals'
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4.7.4. Smoking cessation training for any Interested staff

4.7.5. Motivational Interviewing training for any interested staff

4.7.6. Additional trainings on trauma-informed care end other eviderKe based
treatment strategies as Indicated

5.. Reportirtg

5.1. The Contractor shall gather, monitor, and sutvnit data to the Oeparlment monthly.
Parliclpanl data will be submitted in de-identified, aggregate form to the Oepertment
using a Department-approved method. The data being collected includes all data
points required in the Treatment Episode Data for Admissions which includes, but is
not limited to:

5.1.1. Trealment Setting

5.1.2. Number.of prior treatment episMes

5.1.3. Primary source of referral

5.1.4. Age at admission

5.1.5. Pregnancy status

5.1.6. RaceyEthnicity

5.1.7. Education ..

5.1.8. Employment status

5.1.9. Primary substance

5.1.10. Route of administration

5.1.11. Frequency of use

5.1.12. Age at first use '

5.1.13. Co-Occurring Substance Abuse and Mental Health Status

5.1.14. Veteran status

5.1.15. Living arrangements

5.1.16. Primary source of income

5.1.17. Health Insurance status

5.1.18. Primary source of payment

5.1.19. Details for those nol-in-labor-force

.5.1.20. Marital status

5.1.21. Oa^ waiting to enter treatment

5.1.22. Number of arrests in past 30 days

5.1.23. Frequency at setf-help programming 30 days prior to admission

Mry HiictKDck UemorttJ Hotplui CcMbk A Conuxctor mAixh.
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5.2. The Conirdctor shall report on federally-requifed data points specific to this funding
oppoftuntty quarterly and send the results In de-identified, aggregate form to the
Department using a Department-approved method. The required data points include,
but are not limited'to:

5.2.1. Number of partidpants with OUD's;

5.2.1.1. In total.

5.2.1.2. Receiving integrated MAT with prenatal care.

5.2.1.3. .Receiving care coordination/case management.

5.2.1.4. Receiving peer recovery support services.

5.2.1.5. Participating in parenting education programming.

5.2.1.6. Referred to or ptaced in recovery housing.

5.2.1.7. Referred to higher levels of care.

5.2.2. Number of providers in the program implementing MAT.

5.2.3. Number of QUO prevention and treatment providers trained by the program
including, but not limited to Nurse Practitioners. Physician's Assistants,
physicians, nurses, counselors, social workers, and case nianagers.

5.2.4. Numbers and rates of opioid overdose-retatod deaths within populatlon'servod.

5.2.5.. Number of children receiving chiWcare services by MAT program.

5.2.6. Number of infants In the program born with NAS not attritHJtable to the mother
taking prescribed MAT medications.

5.2.7. Number of referrals made to OCYF for substance-exposed infants not
attributable to the mother taking prescribed MAT medications.

.5.3. The Contractor shall require that all MAT-provlding implementation sites report on the
data points specified by the Department, utilizing a standardized protocol.

5.3.1. Each site win have exclusive access to protected health information for its own
participants, and REDCap will be used to facilitate reporting of de-identified,
aggregated data.

5.3.2. The Contractor shall provide a research assistant to help sites develop and
implement appropriate site-specific data collection strategies to ensure
compliance with reporting protocols.

5.4. The Coniraciof shall provide a final report to the Department within thirty (30) days of
the termination of the contract which will Include-the fot!owir>g de-identlfted Information

based on the work plan progress, but shafi not be limited to:

5.4.1. Policies end practices established.

5.4.2. Outreach aclivliles.

MvyHltcrtOOCliUcni^HoaiA*) EiNW* ComrDClOflAUHj.
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5.4.3. Demographics of participants.

5.4.4. Outcome data (as directed by the Department).
\

5.4.5. Participant satisfaction.

5.4.6. Description of chalienges encountered and action taken. .

5.4.7. Other progress to date.

5.4.8. A sustalnabiiity plan to continue to provide MAT services to the target
population beyond the compietion date of the contract, subject to approval by

the Department.

6. Performance Measures
6.1. The following aggregate performance indicators are to be annually achieved and

monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:
»

6.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that fifty percent (50%) of women referred to the

program who consent to treatment and qualify based on clinical evaluation wlil

enter QUO treatment as reported by the Contractor.

6.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five peixent (75%) of women identified by

ASAM'criieria as in need of a higher level of care will be referred to treatment
services in order to increase referral of pregnant and postpartum. women to
QUO treatment providers es reported by the Contractor.

6.1.3. The Contractor shall attempt to ensure that NAS rates of Infants tx)rn to

mothers served In this program not attributable to the mother taking MAT

medications as presciibed will decline by Hve percent (5%) from SFY16 to

SFY19 as reported by the Contractor.

6.1.4. The Contractor shaii attempt to lower positive uhhe drug screens for illicit

substances for pregnant women served in this program by five percent (5%)
from SFY16 to SFY19 as reported by the Contractor.

I  •

6.1.5. The Contractor shaD seek to help lower reports to OCYF of substance-exposed

infants born to mothers served in this program, not attributable to the mother-
taking MAT medications as prescribed by five percent (5%) from SFY16 to
SFY19. This performance measure will be reported by the Contractor and
through the use of collected hospital and OCYF data.

6.2. Annually, the Contractor shall develop arKf submit to-the Department, a correclive

action plan for any performance measure that was not achieved.

Mvy Klichcock Memorial Hos^d Exhibit A Contnclor I
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Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment ,

1  The Slate shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8. Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of
Services.

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service In compliance
with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded
contractor's current and/or future funding.

3. This contract Is funded with funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services.
Substance Abuse end Mental Health Administration. Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA #) 93.788. Federal Award Identmcalion Nurrtber (FAIN) TIO80246.

4. Payment for'sald services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In
the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line
item.

4.2. The Contractor will submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20") working day of each month, which Identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses'incurred in the prior month. The invoice
must be completed, signed, dated, artd relumed to the Department in order to initiate
payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to
Department programs and services.

4.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient furxis
are available. Contractors will keep detailed records of their activities related to
OHHS-funded programs and services.

4.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract Form P-37. Block 1.7 Completion Date.

4.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Behavioral Health

129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301
Fmali flddfftssfis: laurie heath@dhhs.nh.aov AND abbv.shocklev@dhhs.nh.QQV

4.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, and in this Exhibit 6.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37.. changes limited to
adjusting emounis between budget line items, related'items, amendnnents of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, ar>d to adjusting encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may ba made
without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Coolractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the ̂ ntractor
under the Ccnfracl shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to cligtbie
Individoals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contraclor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1  Compliance with Federal and State Lawa: If ihe Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibilily determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal or*d
slate lows, ragulations. orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Oetormlr>atlon: BlglblHty determinaiions shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be mode aryJ remade at such times as are prescr1t)ed by
the Department.

3. DocumenUtlon: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hercunder. which file shan include all
'information necessary-to support an eligibility deleimination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shell furnish the Depertmeni with at) forms and documentation
regarding etigibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hoarlnge: The Contractor understands that all epplicanis for services hercunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding thai determinaiiw. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all appr>canl$ for services shall bo permitted to fli <Krt
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shaD be informed of hismer fight to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuttloa or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, graluily or offer of employment on t>ehalf of the Contraclor, any Sub-Coniracior or
the Stale in order to influence the performance.of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this ConUaci and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind wore offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Rotfoactlve Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, thai no payments wfll be made hercunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to tha Effective Dale of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by Ihe Contractor for any services provided
prior to the dale on which the individual applies for services or (except as olherwise provided by Ihe
federal regufailons) prior to a determination that the irxJividual is eligible for such services.

7. Cor«IWonB of Purche'so: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hercunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate'
which exceeds the amoonis reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such serwce. or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to inetigWe individuals or other third party
funders for such service, tf et any time during the term of this Contract or after reccipl of the FIrwl
Expenditure Report hercunder. the Depertmeni stiail determine thai the Contraclor has used
payments hercunder to reimburse Hems of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rales charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hercunder. in which event new rates shati be establish^:
7-2! Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shaD constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eiigibiiity of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for aO funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to eny Individual Is fourwt by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any lime during the period of reienlion of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY;

8. Malrtlonance of Records: In addition to the eNgibiiity records specified et>ove. the Contractor
covenants ar>d agroos to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performerKO of the Contract, and aft
income received or coflecied by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufTidenily and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, arrd which ere acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitalion. all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions (or materials, inventories, valuations of
uv4(ind contributions, labor lime cards. payroDs, and other records requested or required by the
Depertment.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendar^ce or visit records for each recipient of
services durir>g (he Contract Period, which records shall mcludo all records of appfa'catibn and
el'igibility (incJuding all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ail invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment lor such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where eppropriele end as prescribed by th.e,Deportment regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/redpleni of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an arvtual audit to (he Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-t33, "Audits of States. Local Governments, artd Non
Profit Organizations* end the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US Ger^erai Accounting Office (GAO starxtards) as
they pertein to finenciel compliar>ce audits.
g.t. Audit end Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

OepartmertL the United States Department of Heallh and Human Services, and any of their
designeted representatives shall have access to all reports arxJ records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit. examinalior>. excerpts artd transaipls.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limltaUon of obligations of (he Contract. i1 is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor ̂ ail be held liable for any slate
or federal audit exceplions and shall return to the Department' all payments mede under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentlelfty of Records: All infomiation. reports, and records maintained hereunder or collecied
in connection with the performance of the services ery} the Contract shall l>e confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state taws and the regulations of
(he Department regarding the use and dcsctosure of such Infcrmalion. disclosure may be mede to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of Ihe senrices and the Contract: and provided further, that
lha use or disclosure by ar^ party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly coruwcled with Ihe administration of the Department or the Contractor's resportsibilifies with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
ettpmey or guordien.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants arvl conditioris contained In
the Paragra^ shall survive (he (ermlnation ol (he CorUract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Rscal end Statistical: The Contractor agrees lo submit the following reports at the following
times If requested by the Depanmenl.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports; Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description ol

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report end
containing such other inlormatlon as shell be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submined or^ (he form
designated by the Oepartment or deemed sati'sfaelory by the Oepadment.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within ihiniy (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Oepadmeni and shall'
contain a turrvnary statement of progress toward goals and ot^ecllves stated In the Proposal
and other information required by the OepartmerU.

t  ̂

12. Compiatlbn of Servfcea; Disatlowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract end upon ppyment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after (he.end of the term of this Contract end/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses deimed by (he Contractor as
costs hereunder (he Department shall retain the rigN. at Its discretion, to deduct (he emouni of such
expenses as ere disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: Aft documents. r>otices. press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
__ during or resulting from the performance ol the services of the Contract shall Include the following

statement:

13.1. The preparation of (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire end/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Oepartment of Health end Human Services.

)

14. Prior Approval end Copyright Ownership: AO matehais (written, video, eudio) produced or
purchased under the contract shaD have prior epprovai from OHMS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The OHMS wOl retain copyright ownership for eny end all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under (he contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of PacHltiao': Compliance with Laws end Regulatione: In the operation of eny facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders end regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities end with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the focility or the provision of (he services at such fadlity. K eny goverrvnentel license or
pennit shall be required for the operation of the said faciBty or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor wSl procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with (he terms and
amditions of each such license or permit. In connection with Ihe foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees thai, during the term of this Coniract the facilities shaD
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of (he Slate Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection egency. and shell be in conformence with locel building end zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide en Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) lo the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of SSOO.OOO or more, if the recipient receives S25.(X)0 or more and h» M or-

CxNM C - SeecUl Provislent Contractor tnUih,
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moro employees. ■! will maintain a cufreni EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Ceftificalion Form to the
<  OCR, certifying that its EEOP b on file. For recipients receiving less than $25.DOO, or public grantees

with fewer than SO emptoyees. regardless of ihe amount of the award, the recipient win provide an
EEOP Certiflcetion Form to (he OCR certifying it is noi required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non>
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, end medical and educationdl Insiitulions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form Ic (he OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are availabie at: hnp://www.ojp.usdO)/aboul/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. UmH«d English Proficiency (LEP); As clarifiod by Execulive Order 13't66. Improving Access lo
Services for persons with Limited Ef>glish Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nalionel orioln
discrimination includes discriminallon on the Oasb ol limited Er>gllsh proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 end TlOe VI of the OvU
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps lo ensure thet LEP persons have
meaningful access to Ms programs.

16. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower Protections: The
foOowir^g shell eppty lo all contracts thai exceed Ihe Simplified Acquisition Threshold es defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. SiSO.OOO)

CONTftACTOR Employee WHisTLEeLOwER Rights and Reouirement To inform Employees of
WhistleblOwer Rights (SEP ̂ 13)

(a) Thb contract and employees working on (his contract w^l be Subiecl to (he whlstleblower rights
arxj remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whisHeblower prolections established at
41 U'.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the National Defense Auihorizalion Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) end FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contrector shall infonn its employees in writing, in the predominant language of (he wodtforce.
of employee whistleblower rights end protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. es described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in ail
subcontracts over the simplified ocqubition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that (ha Coniractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the functionfs). Prior to
subcontracting, (he Coniractor shat) evaluaie the subcontractor's ability lo perform the delegated
function(s}. This is eccompiished through a wrilien agreement that specifies activities and reporting
respor^sibillties of the subcontractor'ar^ provides for revoking the delegetion or imposing sarKtions if
the subcontractor's performance b not adequate. Subcontrsciors ere subject lo the same contractual
conditions as (he Contrector and the Contractor is responslbia to ensure suticontractor compliance
with (hose condiUons.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the ectivities. before delegating

the function
19.2. Have e written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities and how sanctkms/revocetlon will be managed if the subcontractor's
periformance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing bass

EM^ttlC-SpectoJPmrisiortt Cohwcw witob JCJL--
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19 4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Idenlifying all subcontrectors. delegated funcUons and
responsibiliiies. and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Wentiries deOciencies or areas for improvement ere identiried. the Contrector shall
take corrective action.

\

DEFINITIONS

A« used in the Conuoct. tr>e loilowing terms shall have the foDowing meanings:

COSTS' Shall mean those direct and Ir^direct Hems of expense delcrmlned by the Deperiment to be
aUowabie end reimbursable In accordance with cost end accounting principles established in accordance

. with stale and federal laws, regulalions. njtes and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall meen that section of the Contractor Manual which is
eniiiled 'Frnancial Managemeni Guidelines' end which cr^alns the regulalions goyeming the financial
activiiies of conUeclor agencies which have conlracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If oppliceble. shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor cn a form w forms
■ required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
inrfividuals by the Contractor in eccordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract end setting forth
the total cost end sources of revenue for each,service to be provided under Ihe Contract.

UNR": For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible mdlvlduats hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified eclivity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate taws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
roterred to in the Contrect. the said reference shell be dcemed io mean aD such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amertded or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by Ihe NH Department of Admir^tratlve
Services containing a compilation of ell regulations promuigalcd pursuant to the New Hampshire
AdminlstraUve Procedures Acl. NH RSA Ch 54I.A, for the purpose of implementing State o! NH and
federal regulations promulgated (hereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Controclof guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not suppfeni any existing federal funds available for ihcse services.

ExhibiiC-Speciti Provisions Contmciei ir^E
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. SuPparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this coniracl. Conditional Nature of Agreenicnt, is replaced as
follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
'  Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, at) obligalions of (he Stale hereunder,

tncludirtg without limitation. it>e continuance of payments, In w4>ole or in pan. under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or avaHability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive acllon that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies (he appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of approprieted or available funds. In the everu
of a reduction, termination, or modification of appropriated or available Kinds, the Stale shall have the
right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to
reduce, termirtate. or rnodify services under this Agreement Immediaiely upon' giving the Contractor
notice of such reduction, termination or modification. The Stale shall rtoi be required to transfer funds

'  from any other source or accouni into the Account(s) identified in block t.6 of the General Provisions,
Account Number, or any other account. In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language: ,

f  10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sola discretion of the State.
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

' 10.2 In the event of early lermlnation. the Contractor shall, wl^ln 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, inclucGng but not
limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving sen/ices under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contrecior shell fuDy cooperate with the Slate and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or data requested by the Slate
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide or>going
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Slate as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under (he Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
urtder the Agreement are IransJtioned to tiavir>g services delivered by another - entity including
contracted providers or tha Slate, (he Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
senrices in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shati estabtish a method of notifying cflenis and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Ran submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:

The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for .up to two (2) additional years, subject io the'
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

Ej^INi C'1 - Revisions to GcneraJ Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The ConUecior idenlrfied In Section 1.3 of the Generel Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Sections S151>5160 of the Orug^Free Wodtplece Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 1p0«€9p. THIe V, Subtitle D: 4V .
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlified in Sections
1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US OEPARTfMENT OF HEALTH AND HUfMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulatior^s implementing Sections 5151*5160 of the Drvg-Free
WotltplaceAdof 1988(Pub. L. 100*690. Title V, Subtitle 0:41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and put}llshed as Part II of the May 25.1990 Fe^rsi Register (pages
21681*21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees end sub*
contractors), pr'cr lo award, that they will maintain a drug*free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and 8ub<ontr8clors) that is a State
may elect to make one certincafion to the Department in each federal fiscal year in iiei^of certlflcetes for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by Ihe certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon wh'ich reliance is placed vrhen the agency awards the grant. False
cetrtificalion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
lernvnefion of grants, or govemmertl wide susperislon or debarmenl. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Meahh and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301*6505 ' *

1. The grantee certifies that it wUI or will confinue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement ratifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution.

_  dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying Ihe actions that wQI be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness |>rogfam to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of dn>g abuse m the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehebilitalion. and employee assistance programs; arxf
1.2.4. The penaltiM that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the,grant be

g'lven a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employnrent under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abideby the terms Of the stetemenl; end
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of corwicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofTicer on whose grant actrvity the convicted employee was working, unless ihe Federal agency

Etfttit 0 -'CcrtfScstlon regtraing Oiuq ftt Contrsoor Mtlsts
WBrtpUcs ReqiiremerXt
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Noiice shall include the
identKication nurriberts) ot each affected-grant:

1.6. Taking one of the foHowing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any emptoyee who is so convicted
V6.1. Tisking appropriate persoruiel action against such an employee, up to end Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabiiilatlon Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse essistence or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue lo maintain a drug-free workplace through
implemenldtion of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3.1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sKe<$) for the performance of work dor>e in
connection wHh the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, ciiy. county, state. 2ip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

Tiu?

Emt&R 0 - CtnAcstion fegsfCing Drug Free Centrsdor tntUats. ^
Wdrttpiacs Psqdrenwnu ,i • tl
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121.'Government wide Guidance forNewRMtrlctionson Lobbying, and-
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute Ihe following Certificetion: ,

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUPi4AN SERVICES ■ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE'- CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate eppiiceble program covered);
Temporary AssisterKe to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement.Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under TAle XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Chad Care Development Block Grant under Title (V

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge end belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been peid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or ettempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, -a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any^Federai contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (end by specific rrwntion
sutngranlee or sub-conlractor).

2. If any funds other then Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal corUract. grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific menliofl sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobt^ying. in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shaD require that the language of this cerlificat'ion be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans.'and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This ceniflcation is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of (his certification is e prerequisite for making or entering 'nto this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file Ihe required
certiflcation shall be subject to a dvil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name;

Date Name:

TWe:

5omei

ExMM E - Ctniscsilon RtgarCirig lebbytng Contractor irtllals.
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CERTIFICATION REQARDINQ DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor IdemiTied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Presldei^. Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmeni,
Suspension, and Other Responsbility Matters, arid further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, es identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of.the General Provisions execute the fo(}owir>g
Certification:

tNSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFtCATION
1. 6y signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certif^tion set out beiow.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certificatioA required beiow will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit en
explanation of why it cannot provide the certificalion. The certification or explanation wiO be
considered in connection with the NH Oeparlment of Health and Hurnan Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
parl'icipanl to furnish a certification or en explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certificalion in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If K is later determined that the prospective
primary participant l(r>owingly rendered an erroneous certification, in additioh to other remedies
avaitable to the Federal Government, OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shaD provide immediate writlen notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant teams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'debarred.' 'suspended.* 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.* 'participanti* 'person,* 'primary covered transaction,* 'principal.' 'proposal.* end
'votuntarily excluded.' as used In this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of Ihe rules implementing Executive Order 12S49:45 CFR Pert 76. See the

. attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should Ihe
* proposed covered transaction entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from parlldpelion in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wiD include the
clause lilted 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibiity and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS. without modification, in at! lower tier covered
trensactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A partcipant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction thai it is not debarred, suspended, ineiigibie. or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certificalion is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by vrhich it determines Ihe eligibitily of Hs principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be constrxred to require estabUshmeni of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge end

AExhtbn F-CeftlAcxiionRtgardinQ DeMnnerX. Sisptnlon ConuaoorbWi
And Othei ResponsUOiy Matters o • i <*
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infofmation of a participant is not required to exceed (hat wt\lch is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business-dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. H o participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarly excluded from participation in tNs transaction. Irt
addition to other remedies available to the F^eral government, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary panicipant certifies lo the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals:
11.1. ere not presently deberred. suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excfuded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not wKhin a three-yeer period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvU judgrnent rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a pubDc (Federal. State or focal)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction: violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezziemenl, theft, forgery, bribery, fatslfication or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicled (or otherwise criminally or civiDy charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or locaJ) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (IXb)
of this certification: and

11.4. have not within e three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more pubGc
transactions (Federal. Stale or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shaO attach an expfanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. 6y signing end submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier parlicipent. as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that ct and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. dec.lared IneDglble, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tiec participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant ̂ all attach an expbnation to this proposal (contract).

t4. The prospective lower tier pariicipani further agrees by submlalng this proposal (contract) that it will
indite this clause entitled 'Cerilhcation Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without rriodiftcation in alt lower tier covered
transactions and In aD solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

I  ' 15- n
Date Name:

Title:

^'/yi
cuowsnioru
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CERTlFlCATtON Of COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHtSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contrsdof id^tified In Section 1.3 of the Genera! Prowaiona agrees by signature of the Controctor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the-Genera! Provisions, to execute the following
certificstion;

Contractor vrill comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with eny applicable
federal norrdiscriminaiion requirements, which may include;

• the Orr^ibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Aci of 1968 (42 U.SX. Sectior> 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminatihg. either In employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires cedain recipients to produce an.Equal Employmeni Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2(X>2 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obtigal'ions of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminoting. either in employmeni practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the bests of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Acl includes Equal
Employment Opportunlty'Ptan requirements:

• the Civil Rights Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basts of race, color, or naiional origin In any program or aclivity);

. the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipienis of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivefy of
services or benefHs. in any program or activity-. ^

• the Americans with Disabilifies Acl of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131'34). which prohibits
discriminalbn and ensures equal opportunity for persor>8 wilh disabilities in employn^nt. State and local
govemmenl services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transpodalion;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1663; 1685-86). which prohibils
discrimination on the basts of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Oiscrimlhation Acl of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrwlnafion on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. II does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - DJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42,
(U.S. Depdrtmem of Justice Regulatiorts - Nondiscrimlnatloo; Equal Employmeni Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the taws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, whi^ provide fundamental principles and policy-making
crtterta for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizalions;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Oepartment of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistteblower proteclions 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense AulhorizaUon
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Prograrn tor
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistteblower Protecltor>s. which prelects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in conrwction with federal grants artd contracts.

The certificale set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when ifte
agency awards the grant. False certification or viotation of the .certification shat) be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspertsion or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

ExNMG
Certrador InitSal*.
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in the event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or State administrativD agency makes a rir>dir>g ol
discrimirtation after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds; the recipient win forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
(he applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and -
to the Department of Health end Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contrector identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections i.ii and 1.12 of (he General Provisions. 1o execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submUling this proposal (coniraci) the Contractor agrees to comply wflh the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

1^- \5-n
Date Name;

Title:

Wl\* " t 7.* IS* I n

ExhIMC
Comiscior musts,
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CERTIFiCATtQN REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Low 103-227. Pert C • Environmenle! Tobacco Smoke, el&o known as the Pro^ildren Acl of 1994
(Act), requires that smchinp r>ot be permrtted in any portion of ar)y indoor facHity owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity end used routinely or'regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to ch&dren under the age of 18. rf the services are fimded by Federal programs either
directly or through Stale'or local governments, by Federal gram, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facikties funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, end portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law n^y resuB irS the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the ImposiUon of an administralive compliance order on (he responsible entity.

The Contractor tdentlTied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cerlificatlorv

V. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with ell applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Chikfren Ad of 19^.

■  >

Conlractor Name:

i^isn
Data- Name:

Trtle:

EiMM H-CarttftctOon Reqtrdtng Contraclo* Inlfitft.
EnvlronnwfUl Tobacco Smoko < i • i K I

Pagoior^ 0«o. 'y- ' i
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CERTIFICATION REQAROING THE FEOERAt FUNDING ACCOUNTABiUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Fundir>g Accountability and Transparency Aci (FFATA) requires prime awardeea ol individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S25.000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated rirst-tier sub^ranls of S25,000 or more. If Ihe
initial award is below S25.000 but subsequent gran! modiHcations result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the swerd.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report Ihe following Information for any
subaward or contract avrord aubject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. ' Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAiCS cc^ for contracts / CFOA program number (or grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (OUNS d)
10. Total compensation and names of the lop five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
' . revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grarx recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, phis 30 days, in which
Ihe award or award amendment is made.

The Contraclor identified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees to comply with (he provisbns of
The Federal Funding Accountabil'ity and Transparency'Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-2S2,
and 2 CFR Pert 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in ̂ tions 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the foHowlng Certihcation:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accounlabllily and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

I.*) n
Date Name:

Title;

EiN&ii J - CenlftcsUon Reear«ng fMtrtl Funding Conirtoor INSait
AccoixxsbtCry And Transptrsnqr Ad (FFATA) Complsnca

P»0«1O>2 ' Oxta |A- IJ I /
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FORMA

Ai the Com/actor idenliTted in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions. I eertiiy that Ihe responses to the
below tisied questions are true end accurete.

1. The OUNS number for your enlily is: 06-99102-97

2. in your business or orgonlxetion's preceding completed fiscal yeer. did your business or orgentz'elion
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your onnual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loons, grents. sub-grants, and/or cooperative egreements: and (2) (25,000,000 or more in ennual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, tutxontracis. loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperaiive egraemants? • ,

NO YES

If Ihe answer to 07 at>o>« is NO. stop here

if Ihe answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the ioDowing:

3. ' Does the public have eccess to lnform8licr> about (ha compensation of the executives in your
business or organizotion through periodic reports filed under section I3<e) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of iS34 (15 U.S.C.76m(a). 760(d)) or section 6104 of the interne! Revenue Code of
19567

NO YES

"Tf the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If (he answer to 03 above is NO. please answer tha foQowing:

4. The names end compensation of the five most highly compensated officart In your business or
orgentzation are as foUows;

Name;

Name:

Name:,

Nemo:

Name:

Amount:

Amount

Amount:

Amount.

Amount:

CUCwenton)

CtfiM J - C««UScsSonn>0WO)ne vtc FsOsttf Funeing
AccorfUttOly And TrvMpwancy M (fFATA) CempSsnct

P«9«2el2
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DMHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confidenilsl tnfonnstion: In addition to ParagfopO #9 of (he General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, (he Oepartmer^'s Confidential information Includes any and at) information owned or managed by the
State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (OHMS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This information lr>cludes, but is not limited to
Personal Health informaUon (PHO. Persormily IdentiflobleInformation (Pll): Federol Tex Information (FTI).
Social Security Numbers (SSN). Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information.

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls lo protect Deportment confidential tnlormalion codected.
processed, managed, arul/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations inciude:

2.1. Maintain policies and procedures lo protect Department confidential InformaUon throughout (he
Ittformation lifec^e, where applicable, (from aeaiion. transformation, use. storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authenlicalion and access controls to contractor systems that conecl, transmit, or
store Departmentccnndanlialinformalionwftere applicable.

2.-3. ErKrypt. al a minimum. ar>y Department corifidenUal data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops. USB
drives, as wcD as when transmitted over public networks like the Iniemet using current Irtdustry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.4. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilltiei are in place to delect potential security events that can
impact Slate of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub^ntractors in support
of protecting Department confidential information

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notificatjon end incideni response process. The vendor will contact the
Department v^thin rwenly-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email

addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information tvaach. computer security Incident, or
suspected breach which affects or Includes any Slate of New Hampshire systems thai cormecl to the
State of New Hempshire network.

2.6.t .'Breach* shaD have the same meaning as the term'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45. Code of
Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security Incident* shaD have the same meanmg 'Computer
Security Incident* in section two (2) ol NtST Publication 600-61. Computer Security Incideni
Handling Guide. National institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications wid be sent to the followir>g email addresses:

2.6.1.1. DHHSChieflnlQrmfllionOfficerfakfhhs.nh.QOv

2.6.1.2. DHHSInformationSecuritvQfflcef&dhhs.nh.Qov

2.7. If (ho vertdor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its sub-contractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
termination; and will obtain written certification for any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the

vendor Of any sutKontractors as a pan of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.
When no longer in use. electronic media containlrtg State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered
unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance vwth industry-accepted standards lor secure

^n,
ExMM K - DHHS Monnstton Security Requlrtmtnu ConWCtor irMah.

CurDKHSA132917 PigvlofZ Data.
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deletion, of ptherwiso physically destroying the media ((or'exemple. degaussing). The vendor wlQ
document and certify In writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide wrinen certirtcatioo to the
Oepartmeni upon request. The whiten certification wtil Include all deiaifs necessary to demonstrate data
has been properly destroyed arrd vafidaled. Where appficabfe. regufatory and professional standards for
retantion requirements «^U be jointly evaiuaied by the State arxJ vendor prior to destruction.

2.8. If the vendor v4ll be sub-contracting eny core functions of the ertgagemeni supporting the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor vnl! maintain a program of an internal process or processes that
defines spedric security expectations, and moniiortng compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum metch those for the vendor. Including tveach noiificetion requirements.

3. The vendor will worv with the Department to sign arid comply with all applicable State of New Hampshire end
Department system access end euthodzation policies and procedures, syslems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Oepartmeni sysiem(s). Agreements wilt -
be completed and signed by the vendor and any eppllcabte sub-contractors prior to system access being
auihohxed.

4. If the Oepartment determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103. the vendor will
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Assodaie Agreement (BAA) with the
Department end is responsible for maintaining complience with the agreement.

5. The vendor wfl) vcrx with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Oepartmeni end vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threeis. end vutnerebiiities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annuaDy. or en eltemete time
.frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Oepartmeni may request the
- survey be completed when the scope of the ertgagement between the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will rwl store, knowngly or unkr>owngiy. Br>y Stale of New Hampshire or Department date
.Qff.Shore or outside the boundaries of (he United Slates unless prior express written consent Is (^ined from
' the.appfopnate authorized data owner or leadership member within the OepartmenL

ExNbli K - OHHS ifltormatfen Security Requlr«n>«nis Contactor InUiis
■0^
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